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BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT -
BY THE NUMBERS

17

New businesses or expansions
completed since January 2011

> 2,318

Total employment (direct/indirect)
projected through 2017

> $600 million

Personal income projected through 2017

> §2.5 billion

Economic output projected through 2017

> $127 million

State tax revenue projected through 2017

84

New projects actively considering
North Dakota or who have an interest level
in the state since January 2011

30

Company site visits to consider North Dakota
as a business location since January 2011




United Pulse Trading

Although the growing oil industry has been
getting a lot of attention in North Dakota lately,
agriculture is still king as the state’s largest
industry. For United Pulse Trading, North Dakota
is a prime location to capitalize on the growing
market for dried peas, beans and other products
known as pulse crops. “We are the number

one producer of dried peas and lentils,” says
Eric Bartsch, general manager for United Pulse
Trading, a value-added pulse crop processer. “In
2000 we had less than 100,000 acres in North
Dakota. Now we are close to 700-800,000 acres
of dried peas, lentils and chickpeas.”

In 2007, the company opened its processing
facility in Williston, ND, close to the source of
the crop fields. The pulse crops are processed,
cleaned and color sorted, making them ready for
the table. The company packages and ships the
products to over 100 countries, including India

and countries in North Africa and the Middle East.

Bartsch sees North Dakota as one of their key
factors of success. “We have facilities located
in six countries around the world. We have a
pretty far reach. Of all the areas where we’ve
expanded, North Dakota has really been one of
the best places.”

Doing Business Better » »

‘ (; Of all the areas where

we’ve expanded, North Dakota

has really been one of the

best places.

Eric Bartsch
United Pulse Trading

United Pulse Trading received assistance from
the state of North Dakota to get the Williston
facility built and operating. “We used the North
Dakota Development Fund from the North Dakota
Department of Commerce, and the PACE loan
program through the Bank of North Dakota.

It's really programs like these that have made
North Dakota a perfect environment for
expanding business.”

United Pulse itself is growing and looking to
expand. The company currently employs 35
people in Williston with additional staff in
Bismarck. A new United Pulse processing facility
in Minot is expected to be in operation by first
quarter 2013, milling another 100,000 metric
tons of area producers’ split peas and chickpeas
while adding approximately 40 new jobs. The
North Dakota Department of Commerce worked
closely with United Pulse and the Minot Area
Development Corporation to assist United

Pulse with several finance and tax incentives
available to the company. “The programs and
the environment in the state are pro-business,”
Bartsch says. “It really gives a company an
advantage to expand here.”



TOURISM -
BY THE NUMBERS

$4.8 billion

Contributed by tourism to the
state’s economy in 2011

$119

Returned in visitor spending for
every $1 invested in advertising
the state

#1

In the nation for tourism expenditure

growth at 14.9% compared to national
average of 6.8%

10 million

Persons reached by Tourism’s
online presence

20%

Increase in the hotel sector since 2010

3,667

Additional rooms available to travelers at 43
new properties throughout the state



Doing Business Better » »

‘ ‘ We knew that if Regent
were to become a destination, we
had to have a motel. If it wasn’t
for the help of the North Dakota
Department of Commerce, we

wouldn’t have had a start.

Gary Greff
Enchanted Castle, Regent, ND

Enchanted Highway and Enchanted Castle

When the highway to the rural town of Regent, North
Dakota was upgraded from gravel to pavement, Gary
Greff wondered how he could encourage travelers
on the nearby interstate to make a detour and stop
at the community’s local businesses. When Greff
noticed people stopping their vehicle to take pictures
next to a welded statue of a man holding a hay bale
created by a local farmer, an idea was born.

“Id never laid a bead of weld in my life before |
started this project,” Greff said. “But you can do
anything you want if you set your mind to it. I'm living
proof of that.”

The first sculpture, The Tin Family, was erected
in 1991, and others soon followed. Currently, the
Enchanted Highway boasts seven sculptures,
including “Geese in Flight,” which is listed in the
Guinness Book of World Records as the world’s
largest scrap metal sculpture.

Since the sculptures have been erected, a recent
vehicle count shows traffic on the highway has
dramatically increased.

The Enchanted Highway Gift Shop sign-in book
records visitors from all 50 states and many
different countries. “Regent hasn’t gotten any
bigger, so we know the Enchanted Highway had

its influence,” said Greff, who now heads the
Enchanted Highway Foundation. “I've had more
than one person say they would not be in Regent if
it wasn’t for the Enchanted Highway.”

With support from the North Dakota Department
of Commerce’s Tourism Division, the Enchanted
Highway Foundation is developing a hotel, bringing
additional economic activity to the area. The
Enchanted Castle opened in 2012 and is drawing
tourists, hunters and workers from the region.

The Enchanted Highway is located off Interstate
94, exit 72 east of Dickinson, and extends for 32
miles south to Regent. There is no cost to view
the sculptures, but visitors are encouraged to
visit the Enchanted Highway Gift Shop and make
a donation. For more information, visit
www.enchantedhighway.net



COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT -
BY THE NUMBERS

24,000

People impacted by Community
Development and Community
Services Block Grants

632

Families and individuals in the
Relocation program who notified us
of their move to North Dakota

70

Families with disabilities assisted with
Shelter Plus Care housing assistance grants

82

Homes rehabilitated with Community
Development Block Grants and HOME Program

144

New affordable housing and rental units
with Community Development Block Grants
and HOME Program

244

Proposed jobs from Community Development
Block Grants projects




Dale’s Clothing

Dale’s Clothing has been a landmark in downtown
Bowman, North Dakota for 38 years. When the
original owners, Dale and Martha, were ready to
retire, the community worried that it would lose one
of the few clothing shops in the region.

“Bowman has a thriving, diverse economy, but
losing Dale’s Clothing would’ve been a big loss to
the community,” explains Ashley Alderson, Bowman
County Development’s executive director. “We used
the Renaissance Zone and other development

incentives to help another local family purchase this

successful business.”

Dave and Tana Smolnikar of Bowman owned a
trucking business, but after Dave was involved in

a life-threatening accident, they decided it was
time for a change and saw opportunity in Dale’s
Clothing store. “In 12 weeks, we went from owning
a trucking company to owning a clothing store and
embroidery shop,” explains Tana, recounting the
event. “I believe there was an upper hand in the
whole situation.”

Doing Business Better » »

‘ C There is a lot of monetary

commitment when you purchase a
business. | think all the (assistance)
programs are absolutely amazing
and we couldn’t have done any of

it without their help. % 9

Dave and Tana Smolnikar
Dale’s Clothing, Bowman, ND

To help with the initial investment, the Smolnikars
utilized business investment programs from the
state, including the Renaissance Zone program
from the North Dakota Department of Commerce,
which provides tax incentives to help revitalize
North Dakota’s downtown areas and keep

them vibrant.

“I don’t think (buying the business) would’ve been
possible without it,” says Tana of the Renaissance
Zone program. “There is a lot of monetary
commitment when you purchase a business. |
think all the (assistance) programs are absolutely
amazing and we couldn’t have done any of it
without their help.”

When asked about the name of the store, the
Smolnikars insist they have no plans to change
the name from Dale’s Clothing. “It's been Dale’s
Clothing for 38 years,” says Tana. “We didn’t
change the name; it's an icon down here in
southwestern North Dakota.”



WORKFORCE
DEVELOPMENT -
BY THE NUMBERS

8,000

Out-of-state job seekers
connected to the Experience ND
Relocation Program

632

Families and individuals assisted
since July 2008 in relocating to
North Dakota

109

Businesses participating in Operation Intern

348

Internships with funding assistance from
Operation Intern

210,000

Views on Career Conversations podcast videos

5,500

Students and parents reached with Youth
Forward'’s information on North Dakota
education and job opportunities




Spectrum Aeromed

Transporting medical patients by airplane or
helicopter presents unique challenges. Medical
equipment needs to be accessible, yet secure.
Compact equipment design is important due to the
tight spaces of smaller aircraft.

Spectrum Aeromed, based in North Dakota and
recently recognized as one of Inc. Magazine’s 500
fastest-growing companies, provides smart solutions
for air ambulance equipment. From stretchers to
oxygen storage, the company equips aircraft from
around the world with life flight systems.

Eighty percent of Spectrum Aeromed’s business
comes from international sales, with many clients
based in South America, the Middle East, Europe
and Russia. All of Spectrum Aeromed’s operations
are in Fargo near Hector International Airport

with the exception of two small customer service
operations in Washington state and Germany.

The company’s customers appreciate the ease of
international travel and transactions out of Fargo.
“So much of our business is international that if

we bring in an aircraft from Brazil, Mexico or even

Doing Business Better » p

‘ C NDSU and UND are world-
class educational institutions.
Being able to hook into those
sources of talent is really a key

point of differentiation. It allows

us to do some things here that we

really couldn’t do elsewhere.

Dean Atchison
Spectrum Aeromed

Canada, they can do customs right here,” says
Spectrum Aeromed CEO and President
Dean Atchison.

Atchison cites the business-friendly climate of North
Dakota as one of the factors contributing to the
company’s success. “North Dakota gets it, from the
governor on down,” Atchison says. “We don’t need
to show entrepreneurs how to do things. We need to
set up programs and then let them be successful. |
think that’s what really happens in North Dakota.”

Spectrum Aeromed has been able to employ five
interns thanks to the North Dakota Department

of Commerce’s Operation Intern, a cost-sharing
program that encourages businesses to employ
and train interns. The company has also developed
relationships with local universities for workforce
recruitment. “North Dakota State University

and University of North Dakota are world-class
educational institutions,” states Atchison. “Being
able to hook into those sources of talent is really a
key point of differentiation. It allows us to do some
things here that we really couldn’t do elsewhere.”



BUSINESS & INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT

APUC — The Agricultural Products Utilization Commission (APUC) administers grants for the development of new and expanded uses for
North Dakota agricultural products.

» Total sponsored projects from July 2011 - » Total funding provided: $1.6 million
December 2012: 41

CENTERS OF EXCELLENCE & RESEARCH EXCELLENCE — These hubs of research and development at North Dakota
colleges and universities partner with private companies to commercialize new products and services. Detail reflects total impacts through
June 30, 2012.

> Total state dollars invested: $44.1 million » 1,082 new direct jobs

» Total private dollars spent: $95.3 million » More than $4 raised for every $1 awarded

» Total economic impact: $634.6 million

DEVELOPMENT FUND — Providing important gap financing for companies starting or expanding in North Dakota, the Development
Fund coordinates efforts between all financial sources, business and community.

> Invested $7.8 million through 33 loans in 15 cities » Total dollars leveraged for each $1 funded: $14.03
since January 1, 2011 » Total childcare loans accessed since July 2009: 19
» Total jobs at time of funding: 693 » Total childcare dollars loaned since July 2009: $1.011 million

» 24 month job creation: 890

EMPOWER NORTH DAKOTA — The EmPower Commission’s 2012 Policy Updates and Recommendations report was recently
completed in preparation for the 2013 Legislative session.

» EmPowerND.com

ENERGY EFFICIENCY & RENEWABLE ENERGY — Commerce is involved in many activities to promote energy efficiency in the

public and private sectors and to facilitate the development and use of renewable energy sources within the state.

> Total energy grants: 323 » Number of housing units weatherized: 1,654
> Total funding provided: $59.1 million » Blender pumps installed: 210
» Number of public buildings retrofitted: 197 = Increase in gallons of fuel blended with ethanol sold: 15.5%

INNOVATE ND — innovate ND provides education and support to help people turn business ideas into reality in North Dakota.

» Total new businesses in operation or development in state: 135

RENAISSANCE ZONES — By providing incentives to investors to find new uses for existing buildings, Renaissance Zones are helping
to attract new businesses and housing to downtown areas across the state. Detail reflects activity from July 2011 through December 2012.

» Total cities participating: 55 » Total approved/completed projects: 1,172/923

SMALL BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CENTER (SBDC) — The Small Business Development Center provides business
assistance in the form of counseling, training and research that results in job creation/retention and economic wealth. Detail reflects activity
from July 2011 through December 2012.

» Businesses served: 2,927 » Jobs created: 1,440

» Hours of consultation: 18,985 » Jobs retained: 1,021

» Businesses started: 262 » Total capital infused into small businesses in 2011-12:
$208.8 million

TOURISM — The efforts of our statewide hospitality industry, business partners and the Tourism Division make tourism the third-
largest industry in North Dakota.

» Forevery $1 invested in advertising the state, $119 was » Tourism expansion and infrastructure grants awarded funds to
returned in visitor spending. 16 projects, with results including new lodges, campgrounds,
» North Dakota’s tourism industry leads the nation in art and historic site expansions and a winery tasting room and
growth with visitor expenditures increasing to 14.9% vs. event center.
national average of 6.8%. Increases were also seen in » Through December 2012, Tourism’s online presence had
travel-generated payroll (7.6%) and travel-generated tax reached a unique audience of more than 10 million.
revenue (6.1%). » Tourism Development in North Dakota reported a 20% increase
» Tourism contributed $4.8 billion to the state’s economy in the hotel sector since 2010. With 43 new properties built
in 2011. throughout the state, an additional 3,667 rooms were available

to travelers.



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANTS (CDBG) — CDBG provides financial assistance to local governments
through grants and loans for public facilities, housing rehabilitation and economic development projects benefiting low to very low
income individuals.

» Total homes rehabilitated: 46 » Total dollars expended in match funds: $20.1 million
» Total new affordable housing units: 67 » Number of residents impacted: 24,065
» Total proposed jobs from projects: 244

COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANTS (CSBG) — CSBG is an anti-poverty grant addressing low income challenges such

as employment, education, income management, housing, emergency services, nutrition, self sufficiency and health.

» Total CSBG funds distributed to communities in > 24,086 residents in 12,805 families impacted
2011-12: $6.2 million

EMERGENCY GRANTS — Through federal funding, Commerce delivers financial assistance to facilities and programs within North
Dakota which provide temporary shelter to homeless individuals.

» More than $1.06 million was awarded in 2011-2012 to » Over $450,000 from the Shelter Plus Care Program was provided for
27 homeless and domestic violence providers. housing assistance grants to more than 70 families with disabilities.

HOME PROGRAM — The North Dakota HOME program has two primary activities: home owner assistance and rental unit
production and assistance.

» Affordable rental units produced: 77 » Total funding provided for HOME rental, acquisition, rehabilitation

» Homebuyers assisted: 151 and construction: $3.2 million

» Single family homes rehabilitated: 36 » Other funds leveraged for the development of affordable housing:
$12.1 million

COMMUNITY SERVICES INITIATIVES ALSO INCLUDE:

» Backpacks for Kids » Manufactured Housing
» Childcare Grants » North Dakota Census Office
» Homeless Grants

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT

CAREER CONVERSATIONS — career Conversations connects students, parents and educators to professionals with perspectives
on life in high-demand careers, using short videos profiling their occupation.

» Number of views: 210,000 » Career Conversations videos posted as of December 2012: 60

EXPERIENCE NORTH DAKOTA — Experience North Dakota provides one-to-one personalized assistance and connects out-of-state
job seekers with career opportunities, training, and relocation information such as housing, community resources and recreation.

» Over 8,000 out-of-state job seekers in the Relocation » 632 families and individuals in the Relocation program
Program database who notified us of their move to North Dakota
» 87,000 unique visitors to ExperienceND.com since July 2011

OPERATION INTERN — The Operation Intern grant program expands internship opportunities available with North Dakota employers.

» Businesses participating: 109 » Number of interns who notified us they were hired for full-time
» Number of internships funded: 348 jobs from 2007-2012: 78

YOUTH FORWARD — Youth Forward connects people ages 12-24 to a future in North Dakota by promoting jobs, entertainment,
education and opportunities in our state.

» People reached with career and education opportunities information:
®= Student leaders and advisors: >2,000 = Rural high school students and parents: >5,500

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS ALSO INCLUDE:

» AmeriCorps » Workforce Enhancement Grants
» Talent Initiative » Governor’'s Workforce & HR Conference

10
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An Open Letter to North Dakota

North Dakota is in a unique place. We are experiencing unprecedented growth, along with a
state budget reserve. It is time to take our state to the next level of economic prosperity.

North Dakota 2020 & Beyond is a visionary process initiated in 2012 to gather input from the
people of North Dakota to imagine our future. It identifies opportunities that help prepare the
state for ongoing economic and community development.

As co-chairs in this important process, we were surprised by the over 1,700 suggestions
gathered at town hall meetings and through the online portal at www.ND2020andBeyond.com.
These ideas build on North Dakota’s economic growth and success by focusing our attention
on our people, our quality of place and our diverse opportunities.

North Dakota is being recognized nationally for its prosperity and now is the time to ensure
we can continue to bring growth to the state for generations to come. We have based our
final recommendations on the year 2020. We are projecting a state population of more than
800,000 with a change in regional demographics, a more diverse workforce and continued job
growth.

The keys to our future lie in good analysis, sounds ideas and strong leadership so we can all
create a bright future for North Dakota.

We would like to thank all who contributed thoughts and ideas to the plan, with special thanks
to the advisory group and steering committee who further developed the ideas and formed
them into actionable recommendations. Our work does not end here. North Dakota 2020 &
Beyond is ongoing. We will continue to gather ideas to move our great state forward and find
champions to take action on the recommendations.

Sincerely,
Bill Marcil Jr. Kathy Neset
Fargo Forum Neset Consulting

North Dakota 2020 & Beyond Co-Chairs



North Dakota 2020 & Beyond Overview

North Dakota 2020 & Beyond is a joint initiative with
Governor Jack Dalrymple, the Greater North Dakota Chamber,

the North Dakota Economic Development Foundation and
commissioned by the 2011 North Dakota Legislature.

For the past decade, North Dakota has been aggressive in its economic development efforts, with a
solid plan centered on job creation and building a positive environment for business development. The
state enjoys abundant resources, a budget reserve and a growing economy. This position also allows
us the ability to build upon our strengths, discover new opportunities and ensure our future is bright.
This is the vision of North Dakota 2020 & Beyond; a vision that focuses on:

 the value of our PEOPLE,
* our unique quality of PLACE and
» our diverse

North Dakota must capitalize on the opportunities that have emerged as a result of our state’s
impressive economic growth. We should continue to work to create, attract and retain quality jobs
while strengthening our overall business climate; and, in addition, we must also focus on attracting and
training a talented workforce, while still diversifying our economy.

The vision contained here is poised to take North Dakota to the next level of economic prosperity, with
an emphasis on enhancing our quality of life and making our communities an obvious choice for those
interested in diversified opportunities.

An impressive list of national rankings.

North Dakota was the only state in 2011 to report positive economic growth, with job creation and
increased incomes as key indicators. Our unemployment rate is among the lowest in the nation, and
North Dakota had the nation’s highest gross domestic product in 2010. Our exports have grown 303
percent since 2000.

This prosperity brings with it opportunity.

Opportunities for future growth.

» From 2008 to 2011, North Dakota experienced over 38,000 new jobs, with 42 percent
coming from the construction/extraction and transportation/material moving categories. Our
professional, scientific and technology service category grew at only 7 percent.

* Manufacturing makes up 10 percent of North Dakota’s gross domestic product, and while the
nation has been in recession, we have enjoyed an expansion and still have room for growth.

» Advanced technology growth is in the top quarter of the nation, at 3 percent over last year.

» Population continues to grow, along with the need for trained workforce. North Dakota needs to
increase the concentration of young families, in the 35 to 49 age group, to assist in building a
strong future.

» North Dakota is first in science, technology, engineering and math (STEM) occupation job
growth since 2001, but ranks 45" in overall STEM concentration in the U.S.




North Dakota 2020 & Beyond Overview

Continuing and expanding good efforts.

As North Dakota 2020 & Beyond began looking at the concerns and ideas brought forward through
the citizen input process, we realized much is already being done to address the challenges identified
through current programs and studies in progress. We looked at programs such as:

Empower ND, which is focused on energy development across all sectors;

» Speed tests for broadband accessibility;

* Housing studies;

* Healthy North Dakota, which is focused on health prevention and wellness;

* Regional Planning Councils, which assist in community planning efforts; and,

* Many others such as: Renaissance Zones, Centers of Research Excellence, student loans
and workforce training, to name a few.

These efforts will continue to support work that is already happening and may hold opportunities to
address expanded needs identified through the process.

Gathering ideas.

When you generate over 1,700 ideas, many of them are similar, some unattainable and others
insightful. All of the ideas were generated under three themes: People, Places and Opportunities.
These themes gave participants a focal point for discussion, keeping in mind our most important
resource is our people. Below are some of the common ideas that were identified.

People
» Child Care Availability
» Affordable Housing
* Job and Career Development
* Outdoor Recreation
* Education

Places
* High-Speed Internet
* Infrastructure Upgrades
e Rural Health Care Access
* Main Street Revival

* Access to Colleges and Universities

» Capital for Business Start-ups

* Exports

» Sensible and Predictable Regulations for Business
» Fair and Balanced Tax Policy

From the ideas submitted, the committee had the task of reviewing, combining, and prioritizing ideas,
along with developing categories to house them. The steering committee met over a two-month
period to expand on ideas, and brainstorm their value and potential outcomes. ldeas were advanced
and turned into actionable recommendations that addressed citizen’s concerns or capitalized on an
opportunity for North Dakota.




North Dakota 2020 & Beyond Overview

Big thinking and goal setting.

The steering committee recognized the need to take the ideas identified and state them as a visionary
goal for the future. The result can be seen in each category as we present a picture of what the year
2020 and beyond may have in store for North Dakota.

North Dakota 2020 & Beyond ¢ Categories

Arts & Culture
Grow and nurture creativity in North Dakota.

Business
Establish North Dakota’s business climate as one of the best in the nation.

Conservation & Environment
Protect North Dakota’s valuable resource of land and environment.

Education
Build North Dakota to become the #1 state in education.

Energy & Agriculture
Continue to position North Dakota as an admired energy and agricultural leader.

Health
Keep North Dakota healthy to increase our productivity, slow rising health care costs
and ensure a better quality of life.

Housing
Provide access to quality housing for all North Dakotans.

Image
Foster the image that North Dakota is a vibrant, progressive state with a great family
and business environment.

Recreation
Establish North Dakota’s reputation as an attraction.

Transportation & Safety
Build a statewide transportation system that meets the needs for North Dakota’s growing
population and industries, and provides a safe place for workforce, families and visitors.

Statewide Planning
Support North Dakota’s state, regional and local planning efforts from a reliable
state-funded source.

Technology
Grow technology infrastructure to ensure North Dakota is a model for connectivity.

Workforce
Develop North Dakota’s workforce to meet the needs of our changing economy.

The conversation continues.

North Dakota 2020 & Beyond will help us continue to capitalize on our future opportunities. As the
recommendations in this report move forward, the Greater North Dakota Chamber will continue to listen
to ideas and identify champions to determine the best path forward for each of them. In addition, we
will create a North Dakota 2020 & Beyond scorecard to track the progress and the impact the ideas
generate for our state.




Arts & Culture

Grow and nurture creativity in North Dakota.

Arts and culture are important to the economy of North Dakota. They provide social and cultural
opportunities in our communities, and direct economic benefit by creating jobs, attracting investments,
generating tax revenues and stimulating tourism. Opportunities for arts and culture also inspire other
industries with creative insight for research, product and services development and entrepreneurship.

North Dakota must work to enhance opportunities for arts and culture throughout our state. In order
to move forward, we must work to provide greater opportunity for growth of arts and culture in our
communities and build partnerships that will grow this industry.

Arts and culture enhance North Dakota’s quality of life and complement community development by
expanding amenities and attracting young professionals. We need to create greater opportunities for
growth of this important industry to ensure North Dakota is attractive to today’s visitors and young
workforce.

1. Establish an arts and culture commission to develop and incentivize this industry.

* Create opportunities for private/state partnerships to fund grant programs that require local
match dollars for arts and culture expansion.

* Provide opportunities for incorporation of arts and culture into education curriculum.

2. Initiate a focus through the North Dakota Youth Office to enhance communities to more
readily attract young workforce.

« Collaborate with the Young Professionals Networks and statewide planning efforts to identify
regional opportunities to expand amenities and entertainment opportunities.

* Promote and develop youth entertainment venues based on a regional concept.




Business

Establish North Dakota’s business climate as one of the best in the nation.

North Dakota’s business climate has gained a reputation for supporting emerging businesses,
entrepreneurs and expansions. The state’s growing manufacturing, technology-based businesses,
agricultural and energy industries, enhanced with numerous incentives, are drawing some of the world’s
most recognized companies.

Our economic growth is expanding communities, creating new business opportunities, revitalizing our
main streets and creating greater demand for services as new families call our state home.

North Dakota’s business climate is already nationally recognized and has the potential to attract and
grow more companies in our state. In order to move forward, the state needs to address several
key areas crucial to our growth which include taxes and regulations, main street growth, childcare
availability and linking business with research.

People

Quality of life is important to the development of our state’s communities. Local businesses are
expanding and need to be heard in our government decision making processes to ensure their long-
term success. Our growing businesses also have increasing workforce needs. North Dakota will need
to attract new workforce to the state to meet this demand, and as families make North Dakota home, it
also increases the need for daycare, especially in rural areas.

1. Assist small and rural business to have a voice in policy development.

* Provide coaching for small business, through the Greater North Dakota Chamber and their
network of local chambers, to assist them in influencing policy development and to create more
open lines of communication with legislators.

2. Develop a private sector daycare model.
* Review regulations that impact daycare development to encourage fast growth while ensuring
quality.
* Consider development of a state-funded reward system for daycares that meet defined quality
measures. (Review the current Quality Rating System being piloted.)

* Encourage communities to establish private/public partnerships to develop needed daycare in
their cities/counties/region.

» Consider the use of approved modular daycare structures to quickly build capacity and ensure
safety and regulations are met.




Business

Places

North Dakota needs to enhance main streets and downtowns in communities across the state. These
important areas are the center of our state’s quality of place as they provide space for important
services, shopping and recreation opportunities.

3. Expand the idea of renaissance zone development of main street and downtown to include
planning assistance to cities.
» Assistance should include elements of economic restructuring/business improvement, design,
organization and promotion as outlined by the National Trust for Historic Preservation’s National
Main Street Center.

* Restructure the Renaissance Zone Program managed by the North Dakota Department of
Commerce to include planning assistance.

» Consider development of a low-interest loan pool with GAP financing or tax forgiveness similar
to the Renaissance Zone Program that requires an investment of capital in property.

* Encourage local chambers to create main street committees to make sound choices for
community development.

North Dakota'’s taxation system should continue to stimulate economic growth, encourage capital
investment in the state, promote a business climate that enhances economic vitality and improves
the quality of life for our people. North Dakota must create equity among the three major taxes used:
personal income, corporate income and property taxes. We must also look for greater opportunities in
research and development to continue to diversify our economy. All of these then need the support of
good regulations and an ease of business establishment to support our reputation of a good business
climate.

4. Establish a group to review the current state tax structure and work with the legislature
to identify and implement key changes that would position the state as one of the most
business-friendly in the nation.

* Review the tax structure of neighboring states to better understand how competitive North

Dakota is as a potential location for business in our region. (North Dakota is currently ranked 29t
according to the 2012 Tax Foundation Report in terms of state business tax climate — Wyoming is ranked 1%; South
Dakota 2M.)

» Consider adjusting the apportionment formula for North Dakota corporate income tax to
better match other states in the region. North Dakota currently uses a weighted factor formula

consisting of sales, property and employees. (Neighboring states are moving to a heavier sales-focused
formula.)




Business

5. Link business with research universities to foster commercialization and economic
development.

» Establish and enhance the Research North Dakota Program, managed by the North Dakota
Department of Commerce, to include the ability to make investments in equity capital companies
that invest in businesses that use or license university research and technologies. Companies
commercializing research based on partnerships between the private sector and universities,
including, but not limited to, those developed as part of the Centers of Research Excellence
Program should be a focus.

« Use state funds and Public Employee Retirement System (PERS) funds to create a $50 million
pool that will invest in a broad range of venture capital firms, equity capital funds and angel
capital funds only for companies based in North Dakota.

6. Create and support narrowly-defined business incentives.
» Target incentives to achieve the encouraged activity and show measurable impact in the area of
need.

7. Streamline business regulations with input from the business community.
* Review rules and regulations for business to ensure that necessary resources are allocated
while creating a business environment that encourages commerce growth.

8. Continue to market the North Dakota Department of Commerce and their role in economic
development as the home for statewide business resources.




Conservation & Environment

Protect North Dakota’s valuable resource of land and environment.

North Dakota is known for its quality of life and the abundant resources that come from our land. We
need to continue to demonstrate that our state understands the balance between industry growth and
conservation of our unique environment. It is through balance that we can extend opportunities and
conserve resources for our future generations.

Environmental issues continue to rise in importance across the nation. North Dakota must also

be aware of these issues and work to protect our quality of place and the many opportunities it
provides both citizens and visitors to our state. In order to move forward, the state needs work toward
collaborative solutions that provide protection of our natural lands, continue conservation efforts, and
limit potential environmental issues in the North Dakota.

Places

North Dakota has experienced unprecedented growth in the past few years. We need to create an
environment that fosters business growth and enriches the livability of our communities, conserving our
unique lifestyle for future generations.

1. Create conservation efforts to protect our natural lands.

» Develop awareness efforts to educate North Dakotans on the quality, quantity and ample
opportunities provided by our natural lands.

» Establish initiatives that support conservation of lands and establishment of green spaces,
parks, shelter belts, etc.

2. Grow opportunities statewide for citizens to participate in “green” practices.
» Explore becoming the first state to have a statewide recycling policy.

» Consider incentives or grants for communities to develop recycling opportunities or provide
conservation/energy saving education.

*  Encourage private sector development of recycling plants.
* Encourage recycling and use of recycled materials in state and local governments.
* Implement a plan for reduction of state fleet fuel consumption.

» Continue to build awareness around energy saving concepts, including green building methods/
materials, energy efficiency, etc.

* Increase fines to discourage littering.




Education

Build North Dakota to become the #1 state in education.

North Dakota is growing economically, gaining population and is in need of skilled workforce to support
this growth well into the future. Our education system needs to equip our students with the knowledge,
skills and creativity needed to fuel future economic and civic success. In our increasingly knowledge-
based economy, this will demand education tactics that promote a higher-level skill-set across our
entire primary and secondary education system.

We must make improvements in access to early childhood development programs, which nationally
have shown significant benefits including: cognition and academic achievement, behavioral and
emotional competencies, educational progression and attainment, and labor market success. We must
treat our universities and colleges as economic engines, as there is a proven relationship between a
state’s economic development, the use of science and technology, and its quality of life.

Higher education needs support for research and development and must train workers with science,
technology, engineering and math skills to support economic growth. Research by the Milken Institute
shows that 75 percent of the variation in a state’s per capita income can be accounted for by its ability
to convert science and technology assets into economic development.

North Dakota’s education system can work toward the ultimate goal of being the #1 state in
education. In order to move forward, the state needs to focus on scholarships, school funding, career
guidance, and curriculum that develop skill sets that support the outcomes of enhanced research and
development efforts and industry growth.

People

North Dakota’s education system needs to transform for our next era. We must help students identify
the path to future careers, train workers, and prepare people for entrepreneurial pursuits. We need to
expand our online and distance learning opportunities. We must ensure that North Dakota does not
segment education into primary and secondary, but rather looks at the development of our students
from early childhood through technical or higher education, and works to develop them all along their
career path.

1. Establish a blue ribbon committee to define the criteria and develop an action plan toward
the goal of becoming the #1 state in education.

+ Assemble a committee comprised of key stakeholders from business and industry, government,
nonprofits and economic development.

* Review the K-12 funding formula to ensure equitable and adequate support.

* Transform K-12 infrastructure to meet future needs and provide access to programs and
curricula across the state.

« Develop initiatives that support public/private industries in relation to growth of science,
technology, engineering and math (STEM) curriculum. Create partnerships and coordination
around existing programs such as: INSPIRE K-12, Succeed 2020, Great Plains STEM
Education Center, Best Robotics/FIRST and advancement of the arts.

* Expand access to early childhood development programs.




Education

* Explore ways to expand libraries to be thought of as community centers that focus on
information literacy and education delivery.

*  Work with the Greater North Dakota Chamber to develop education on the impact of our
changing and diverse economy and the role of free enterprise in North Dakota.

» Further develop online educational offerings to reach a global student population and improve
access and course offerings to rural school populations.

* Provide career path counseling to students with information about high-demand careers in North
Dakota.

2. Leverage state dollars to create a tuition scholarship program supported by public/private
endowments.

* Issue merit-based scholarships to retain and attract high-caliber students.

¢ Review the current Bank of North Dakota student loan structure to ensure loan rates and
payment schedules are competitive with other states.

* Pursue the idea of tuition discounts for graduates or graduation fellowships in needed fields and
require employment in North Daktoa post-graduation.

3. Increase educational funding for greater curriculum supporting science, technology,
engineering and math (STEM); as well as, those that promote creative thinking, analysis,
problem solving and collaboration, which are critical components of innovation.

» Enhance teaching degree programs at our universities and colleges to provide specific training
on STEM.

» Create opportunities for students to attend summer-based activities around STEM sKills.

*  Work with community arts organizations to include not only artistic, but science, technology,
engineering and math initiatives.

Places

North Dakota has a well-established education structure in place. It is important that we continue
to upgrade our classrooms and learning environments to provide the best possible education for
our students. We must also extend our idea for a “place of learning” to include distance and online
opportunities.




Education

Opportunities

With North Dakota’s growing workforce needs, it is important that we create a partnership between
business and education to ensure we create a skilled workforce that meets the demand of our local
companies.

4. Create opportunities for business to have a stronger voice in the development of higher
education programming that fits needed workforce demands.

Explore the results and outcomes of the Roundtable on Higher Education.
Create an advisory group of business leaders for the State Board of Higher Education to better
craft curriculum that meets business needs.

Further develop internships through incentives that benefit employers through Operation Intern
and give appropriate credit to students.

Create a website that would match North Dakota businesses with open internships with
interested students.

Incentivize older-than-average students to return to school.

Develop opportunities for entrepreneurship activities and incentives around the Research North
Dakota Program.




Energy & Agriculture

Continue to position North Dakota as an admired energy and agricultural leader.

As the nation continues to grow, North Dakota’s fertile landscape has emerged as a leader.

Our diverse, multi-resource energy philosophy is helping to meet growing energy demands nationwide.
Our agricultural industry continues to make significant strides in crop improvements and value-added
agriculture applications. Our diversified economy is what gives our state economic strength and it is
fueled by the leading industries of energy, agriculture and tourism.

Through the EmPower North Dakota Commission, leaders from all major energy industries in North
Dakota serve as critical thinkers for the development of the state’s energy resources. North Dakota
is proactive in addressing energy development. It serves as a model in fostering innovative, long-
term development to meet our nation’s growing energy demand and need for energy security in an
environmentally responsible manner.

Agriculture is the dominant sector of our state’s economy. Over 31,000 farmers and ranchers lead the
nation in the production of more than a dozen important commodities. Livestock production is second
only to wheat in North Dakota’s agricultural industry.

North Dakota’s energy and agricultural future can include development in all sectors, and has the
potential to not only grow, but also develop hew economies based on secondary, value-added
applications related to these resources. In order to move forward, the state needs to address several
key areas crucial to the expansion of these industries which will focus around infrastructure, research
and development, workforce and regulatory policy.

People

It is important that we capitalize on their strengths and seize opportunities in our growing industries. An
integral component will be to ensure our people have the knowledge and skills to grow these industries,
while preparing a workforce qualified and ready to take on the opportunities of tomorrow.

1. Provide opportunities for the energy and agricultural industries to grow through
collaborative efforts with key partners in workforce development.

*  Work with secondary and post-secondary education to enhance core curriculum that creates
interest in agriculture and high-demand energy careers.

+ Offer students greater access to career and technical education programs related to energy and
agriculture, this includes classroom curriculum and distance learning opportunities.

2. Continue to support the NDSU Extension Service, young farmer organizations and other
programs which encourage interest in agricultural careers.

* Encourage the development of the next generation of farmers by helping them to understand
the key role North Dakota farmers wil play in feeding the nation’s growing population in the
future.

» Grow understanding for the export opportunities North Dakota farmers can capture in the
expanding world food market.

» Continue to educate all our citizens on the value of North Dakota’s abundant land resources and
the value of our agriculture industry.




Energy & Agriculture

Places

Strong communities will be vital to the workers supporting the energy and agricultural industries and
therefore a key component in North Dakota’s future. The places most important to the growth of these
industries lies in our research universities and entrepreneurs, as they develop the new technologies
that will keep us competitive into the future.

3. Continue investment in the infrastructure of our research and technical institutions to assist
in the development of new technologies, value-added applications and opportunities for
energy and agriculture.

4. Promote North Dakota’s value as a possible location for energy company offices due to our
substantial and diverse energy resources.

5. Gain support for a North Dakota heritage-based agricultural display that preserves the role
of agriculture in the state’s history that can serve as an educational tool.

Opportunities

Research and development play a critical role in understanding the potential of value-added processing
and manufacturing to our energy and agricultural industries. Similar to the tremendous growth
witnessed in value-added agriculture, the opportunity exists for North Dakota to become a leader in
value-added manufacturing related to both of these abundant resources.

6. Support EmPower ND’s goals.
North Dakota 2020 & Beyond supports the goals of this group and recommendations that link
directly to EmPower ND are noted. Core goals for EmPower ND are:

» Infrastructure — the foundation for continuing existing development and expansion.
* Research and Development — the bridge for industry to move from ideas to new development.
+ Workforce — available workforce to meet the demands.

* Regulatory Environment — support economic growth while ensuring environmentally responsible
development of natural resources.




Energy & Agriculture

7. Continue to support existing research and development programs which will ensure the
discovery and implementation of new technologies to promote new growth for all energy
and agricultural resources. (EmPower ND)

10.

ENERGY

Coordinate with private industry to identify the steps necessary to create a viable chemical
industry related to energy resources. (EmPower ND)

Fund a study to evaluate value-added market opportunities for energy resources. (Empower ND)

Increase funding to the Oil and Gas Research Council by $1 million to explore opportunities
related to value-added processing of natural gas. (EmPower ND)

AGRICULTURE

Coordinate with private industry to identify the steps necessary to create more value-added
applications for agriculture which could include: fuel, medicine, processing, manufacturing,
agritourism, etc.

Support continued agriculture research to build on the efficiencies of North Dakota’s key
crops, increasing production and food-values for each.

Expand trade markets.

Support efforts to double energy production by 2025. Empower ND)

Continue to support organizations who promote environmental responsibility, safety and
sustainability for both energy and agriculture.

Support education that develops potential energy industry workforce.

+ Target Bismarck State College and Williston State College for two-year energy programs.
* Form partnerships with four-year schools to deliver agriculture and energy curriculum.

* Create endowments for NDSU and UND for petroleum careers.




Health

Keep North Dakota healthy to increase our productivity, slow rising health care costs and
ensure a better quality of life.

North Dakota is one of the healthiest states in the nation with health care costs tracking below the
national average. However, North Dakotans have been very clear that health care is becoming
unaffordable. We believe North Dakota can impact the future health of our citizens and be proactive in
keeping costs down.

North Dakota allocates very little funding towards chronic disease prevention programs, such as obesity
or diabetes, either for adults or children. Yet, one-fourth of our youth are considered overweight or
obese. We must encourage state efforts to reduce childhood obesity by investing an adequate level of
resources for prevention.

Decisions by our federal government will also influence health care delivery in North Dakota. The
Affordable Care Act needs to be studied for its impact on North Dakotans in whatever version the
federal government brings forward.

We can take a proactive approach to health in North Dakota, one that considers all citizens and has

a positive impact on our economy, health and future quality of life. In order to move forward, the state
needs to address several key issues such as a rural health care delivery system, wellness opportunities
for our citizens, impacts of federal health legislation and affordability of care.

People

It is important that we encourage North Dakotans to live a life of health. By establishing opportunities
for youth to be more active, we begin habits that can have lasting impacts on health and health care
costs. We must also address hunger and access to care for North Dakotans.

1. Encourage efforts to make North Dakota children the healthiest in the nation.

+ Encourage North Dakota to join others in efforts to reduce childhood obesity by investing in
resources for prevention and education. (Review Healthy ND’s recommendations for childhood obesity.)

- Review current K-12 school lunch program standards and recommend improvements for
North Dakota.

- Review K-12 exercise requirements to ensure we are promoting activity along with
academics.

- Build awareness and resources around best practices for nutrition and activity and consider
incorporating wellness coaching into schools.

* Develop partnerships with parks, health care companies and schools to establish and promote
fitness and activity among all age groups

* Increase access to recreation facilities for youth.

2. Create a Hunger Free North Dakota coalition.
» Establish a committee to identify needs and solutions statewide to address hunger concerns for
vulnerable populations, such as Native Americans, homeless, etc.




Health

Opportunities

As our population shifts, our health care access and delivery will change. Hospitals are creating new
infrastructure to meet demands and our aging population is increasing the need for long-term care and
nursing homes. North Dakota has before it many opportunities to build ideas and structure that can help
support the long-term health of our citizens. We must study areas where improvements can be made
and build greater awareness for personal wellness to temper health care costs.

3. Consider acitizen’s advisory group to study and make recommendations on a model health
care system for North Dakota.
» Consider the impact of federal health care legislation on North Dakota’s citizens and
businesses.
» Explore opportunities to host a model federal project that addresses the reimbursement system
and health care reform.

» Determine measurements to indicate North Dakota is moving toward the goal of being the
healthiest state in the nation and assess on a biennial basis.

4. Develop a health information center with a governing commission to coordinate programs,
publicity and funding.

» Leverage the center to promote a health and wellness focus and provide “coaching” for citizens
seeking a life of health.

» Use technology to share information on all North Dakota health care projects and health care
records.

5. Consider modifying North Dakota pharmacy laws to reflect a free-enterprise system.




Housing

Provide access to quality housing for all North Dakotans.

While the nation continues to struggle with lagging housing markets, North Dakota’s market is on the
rise and experiencing growth. Demand is currently outpacing supply with the growth in western North
Dakota due to the oil boom, which is driving up the price of housing for both renters and owners.

Housing challenges, however, are not confined to western North Dakota. Changing demographics
and a job-creating economy are putting strains on the availability of housing across the state.

These challenges, however, create business opportunities in real estate, development, engineering,
construction, trades and furnishings. Cities can seize opportunities to improve existing neighborhoods
or build new ones. In order to move forward, the state needs to address housing for individuals of all
income levels and leverage private/public partnerships to grow housing infrastructure.

People

Ensuring our population has safe, affordable housing available to them is key to our state’s continued
growth. We must support these efforts to get the needed infrastructure in place quickly to attract and
retain new families to our state.

1. Develop and implement a comprehensive housing strategy with consideration for all income
and family needs.

”

* Review the North Dakota Housing Finance Agency definition of what “available” and “affordable
housing is to ensure it still meets needs.

+ Consider including Equal Housing Opportunity in the strategy.
* Expand the Housing Incentive Fund to enhance quick growth of affordable housing.

» Develop a program targeted at renters as they do not benefit from property tax relief, but still are
responsible for increased rent costs.

» Establish statewide non-profit housing development organization to partner with the North
Dakota Housing Finance Agency to develop affordable housing.

* Determine the need for infrastructure of long-term care and assisted living facilities in relation to
an aging population.

« Continue to use the North Dakota Housing Finance Agency website as an information center/
portal on programs available to support housing development.




Housing

Opportunities

The challenges brought on by rapid growth call for more than just state support, but rather we need to
engage private investors and ensure that we access federal programs to support citizens.

2. Work to ensure North Dakota state housing programs work to leverage private investment
and federal programs to meet supply and affordability issues.

Use the Energy Impact Grant Fund to extend sewer lines and streets, expand water
supply systems and to complete other infrastructure upgrades that directly support greater
development of housing projects in oil-impacted counties.

Promote the Housing Incentive Fund as a loan source for developers who pledge to build
affordable housing for low- and moderate-income residents.

Access the Bank of North Dakota’s Rural Mortgage Loan Program to make residential loans in
rural North Dakota.

Access the Bank of North Dakota’s Flex PACE Affordable Housing Program to assist in the
financing of affordable multi-family housing units for individuals living in counties affected by oll
and gas development.

Work with the North Dakota HOME Program to provide greater homeowner and rental
assistance.




Image

Foster the image that North Dakota is a vibrant, progressive state with a great family and
business environment.

The growth and economic success being realized by North Dakota is not having the maximum impact
on our state’s image. Much of the positive news has been offset by national and local stories focusing
on negative issues that accompany fast growth.

North Dakota must be proactive it telling its own success story. We currently spend promotional
dollars on tourism, business and workforce attraction. Those messages are targeted to achieve their
objectives, but we must also work to deliver a positive “brand” message about North Dakota and our
successes.

North Dakota is in the national spotlight and now is the time to ensure we have positive media stories
to offset the over 40 percent negative stories we are currently seeing. In order to move forward, North
Dakota needs actively work to tell its story and promote our growing state.

We need a stronger state outreach program that will spread positive information about North Dakota
and North Dakota 2020 & Beyond initiatives. Our image plays a key role in attracting a quality
workforce, encouraging outside investment, building our education system and attracting visitors to our
state.

1. Develop the key elements that should be promoted as the North Dakota brand.

*  Work with statewide agencies to adopt key messages to promote the North Dakota brand and
tell stories from all aspects of the state.

2. Appoint ateam to actively promote our story through media as well as other opportunities.
* Create a North Dakota spokesperson roster to be used to promote North Dakota nationally on
topics.
» Coordinate North Dakota media outreach to ensure consistency of messaging and positive
stories.

« Establish benchmarks for tracking results.

* Provide adequate resources to fund image promotion efforts. Consider a partnership with the
North Dakota Economic Development Foundation to support efforts.




Recreation

Establish North Dakota’s reputation as an attraction.

Attracting people to North Dakota, whether they are visitors or families seeking work opportunities,
requires us to provide an experience and quality of life that people desire. We need to continue to grow
our communities to accommodate our expanding population, and provide opportunities for recreation,
culture and adventure to keep them active.

Other states have shown that an investment in the growth of “place” is a key factor in attracting
workforce and enhancing tourism opportunities. In order to move forward, North Dakota must expand
its recreational opportunities statewide.

Places

North Dakota must provide a variety of social, cultural and recreational opportunities to make our
communities enticing as a place to raise a family or take a vacation. We must create experiences that
make our residents and visitors talk about what a great place North Dakota is to live, work and play.

1. Establish atask force to study barriers to private development of recreational efforts.
» Identify needs and opportunities along with barriers such as liability insurance.
» Offer outcome based development grants to qualified ideas.

2. Promote the Theodore Roosevelt National Park and make it a premier North Dakota icon.

+ Explore taking on more of its promotion and development in partnership with the National Park
Service.

3. Encourage development of bike and walking path systems within our smaller communities.

4. Evaluate the North Dakota State Park System, its allocation of resources, and possibilities
for growth of offerings.

5. Develop and promote an event with national appeal. (arathon across North Dakota)

6. Encourage development and use of North Dakota rivers for recreational activity.

(River Keeper Concept)




Safety & Transportation

Build a statewide transportation system that meets the needs for North Dakota’s growing
population and industries, and provides a safe place for workforce, families and visitors.

As North Dakota continues its fast paced growth and shifting industry base, safety issues have moved
to the forefront in a state that has not had many concerns in this area. In the past, we have lived with
low crime rates, relatively low road and highway incidents and low accident incidents per worker. Our
disaster response has been praised by citizens and community leaders. In other words, we have been
one of the safest states in the nation to live and work.

Ensuring North Dakota remains one of the safest states is essential to the peace of mind of our citizens
and our quality of life. In order to move forward, we must look to enhance our safety through protective
services and road and highway improvements.

Changes in our state have put pressures on our infrastructure, law enforcement and emergency
services personnel. Many projects have been implemented to alleviate issues in the short-term, but
steps must be taken to address long-term statewide needs.

1. Determine statewide needs for safety into the future and ensure adequate funding.
* Ensure essential safety services (law enforcement, fire, ambulance, etc.) are given priority.

» Consider emergency response teams with possible state or private sponsorship and
coordination to reduce volunteer approach.

e Continue community support for disaster relief.
- Establish a policy safety net for communities in the aftermath of disaster.
- Fund appropriate equipment and tools to be affective in offering post-disaster assistance.

* Review current road signage statewide to identify areas for improvement and to ensure it is
current.

» Consider using the North Dakota Petroleum Council as a potential advisor on road safety issues
resulting from oil activity.

*  Support the Upper Great Plains Transportation study and urge its implementation.




Statewide Planning

Support North Dakota'’s state, regional and local planning efforts from a reliable state-funded
source.

North Dakota’'s communities are expanding and that has brought with it new challenges in local
planning. As our cities and counties grow, they need access to tools to ensure good decisions are
made for the long-term growth of our state. Ensuring that proper infrastructure such as water, sewer,
electricity and broadband access is available, means local governments must be able to project and
implement plans for their communities.

North Dakota needs to provide planning assistance to state and local governments to ensure that
they have needed information when making decisions. In order to move forward, the state needs to
fund assistance for local planning, consider infrastructure needs statewide, and provide appropriate
information for good decision making.

Places

Our communities support our quality of life. North Dakota needs to assist our communities with
information and resources from a consistent source to enhance their quality of place and aid in making
good community planning decisions.

1. Create a demographer position in the North Dakota Census Office to support consistent
information and resource development in statewide planning.

» Conduct a statewide cost-of-living study and its impact on education, workforce, residents and
other key factors

» Educate communities on the cultural expectations and diversity of the state’s new workforce.

2. Develop a community/county planning assistance initiative.

» Create a team for a regional planning and zoning approach. (Study relationship between eight regional
planning councils, Vision West, NDSU Extension Services, North Dakota Census Office and private firms.)

» Gather potential resources and make them available to local requests.

3. Build statewide infrastructure to meet targeted populations and develop plans based on
regional needs.

» Develop local aid fund from existing funding streams and allow communities to apply based on
need in areas such as schools, infrastructure, transportation and culture.

4. Develop alocal water management plan in cooperation with the North Dakota Water
Commission and the goals of their statewide water plan.




Technology

Grow technology infrastructure to ensure North Dakota is a model for connectivity.

Our increasingly networked society demands access to high-speed broadband service, cellular
coverage and 21% century technology. North Dakota must be a leader in this area to create and sustain
high-value, job-creating economic opportunities, education growth and an enhanced quality of life.

Technology infrastructure plays a key role in the growth of North Dakota. Today, North Dakota is
ranked 41t among the states for the share of households with at least 10 megabits (Mbs) of broadband
availability. Yet, network speeds of up to 100 gigabits (Gbps) are now being planned in several
statewide and city initiatives, which will give these places astonishing access to health care services,
primary and secondary education, potential business growth and a host of other opportunities.

North Dakota must invest as other states have to expand the speed of its broadband network and seek
out key technology partners such as Microsoft, Cisco, Google and others. In order to move forward,
the state needs to develop a plan to enhance our technology infrastructure to ensure our citizens and
businesses have high-speed access.

To stay competitive, North Dakota needs to be a leader in statewide connectivity. Citizens, business
and government all benefit from investments that help our state position itself as a leader in this area.
We need to develop a statewide plan that will bring connectivity to our communities and enhance
access for our businesses to keep us globally competitive.

1. Develop a statewide technology plan that enhances infrastructure and connectivity.

* Position state government and the Greater North Dakota Chamber in a leadership role in
developing and rolling-out a plan statewide.

»  Seek out partnerships with key stakeholders and technology leaders to develop a vision of
connectivity that includes broadband, wi-fi and cellular coverage.

* Create investment and incentive models that could include private, state or tax credit
opportunities.




Workforce Development

Develop North Dakota’s workforce to meet the needs of our changing economy.

North Dakota’s population centers are shifting, statewide industry make-up is evolving and the demand
for workforce is growing statewide. We must begin to think differently about how we build and train our
future workforce as new skill sets for high-demand occupations are identified.

Past workforce efforts created quadrants across the state designed to market and deliver needed
training. It is time we re-examine this delivery method and look to offer education that goes beyond
typical workforce training to meet new demands. We also need to increase our efforts to educate
students on the career opportunities available in North Dakota, especially those occupations that
require two-year degrees or certification.

Our cost of living has also made shifts and has put pressure on the need to increase the overall wage
base. Many employers have concerns about attracting workers at higher than expected salary levels
and retaining current staff. Our system needs to educate and address these issues to assure a quality
and abundant workforce.

North Dakota needs to create workforce development and training initiatives that focus on creating
world-class talent at every skill level for people at all stages of life. In order to move forward, the state
needs to work with industry to develop partnerships to ensure we are generating a workforce that
meets the needs of our changing economy.

People

There is considerable evidence that the most effective workforce development and training programs

are industry-driven and focused on building partnerships among stakeholders in workforce, education,
industry and economic development. North Dakota needs to begin refocusing its efforts to ensure our
workforce needs are fostered through our education and training systems, and that our students know
of career path opportunities at an earlier age.

1. Establish a workforce training task force to explore long-term transformation of education
and training delivery.

+ Assist individuals with self employment training.

+ Educate counselors on high-demand occupations and two-year technical and certification
programs.

» Expand NDSU Extension Services offerings in family business and business succession
planning.

+ Strengthen the statewide Young Professionals Networks.
» Link the statewide apprentice program into the revamped workforce training model.

» Adjust training offerings at Job Service North Dakota to fit changing workforce needs.




Workforce Development

2. Establish a collaborative program to educate business owners on the changing economy, its
impact and how to respond. (See Statewide Planning — Recommendation #1)
*  Work with established business education programs such as the Manufacturing Extension
Partnership (MEP), NDSU Extension Service, the energy industry, local chambers, etc.

3. Develop a program to identify and match business transition opportunities.

*  Work with the North Dakota Department of Commerce to develop a program and have it
administered by local economic development groups.

4. Develop atrailing spouse program.

* Expand the relocation efforts of the North Dakota Department of Commerce to include
assistance for trailing spouses and have it administered by local chambers.




About North Dakota 2020 & Beyond.

North Dakota 2020 & Beyond was formed to expand North Dakota’s vision for the future. Governor
Jack Dalrymple, the Greater North Dakota Chamber and the North Dakota Economic Development
Foundation teamed up to lead the statewide development initiative. A steering committee and an
advisory board, comprised of proven business leaders representing the state’s eight regions, guided
the process and developed this plan to capture ideas from across the state.

The steering committee delivered this report to the Governor, the North Dakota Economic Development
Foundation and the North Dakota legislature in the winter of 2012 outlining its recommendations for
furthering North Dakota’s growth and enrichment. The process gathered ideas from citizens across
North Dakota through community meetings and an online forum. Over 1,700 ideas were gathered and
considered in the development of this report.

The recommendations found here are the collaborative effort of the steering committee’s work to create
possibilities from the ideas shared. They cover a variety of categories and will hopefully enhance North
Dakota through the value of our people, the unique quality of our place, and the diverse opportunities
that lie in our future.
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North Dakota Development Fund Annual Report 2011 - 2012

“The North Dakota Development Fund
is a valuable financing tool for North
Dakota businesses, providing a strong

return on investment for taxpayers
and contributing significantly to
job creation. As we continue to grow
our economy and create economic
opportum'tjes for our citizens, it
is important that we provide the
financing support for start-up or
. . . »
expansion projects in our state.

- Jack Dalrymple, Governor

Jack Dalrymple
Governor

Al Anderson
Commissioner
ND Department of Commerce

North Dakota Development Fund
Board Members

The Governor appoints an eight-member Board of Directors that
oversees the North Dakota Development Fund. Each member
represents a different business sector from the state.

Richard McKennett, Chairman | Williston
Member-at-Large

Bob McNeill, Vice-Chairman | Dickinson
Private Sector

John Erickson | Grand Forks
Industrial Technology and Research Sector

Rob Gayton | Mandan
Native American Sector

Vacant
Rural Sector

Darcy Volk | Bismarck
Exported Services Sector

Terri Zimmerman | Fargo
Finance Sector

Al Anderson | Bismarck
Commissioner of ND Department of Commerce
Agency Sector

The Following Development Fund
Staff Facilitates This Process

Dean Reese, CEO
701-328-5334 | dreese@nd.gov

Scot Long, Vice President
701-328-7256 | slong@nd.gov

Nathan D. Schneider, Credit Technical Analyst
701-328-5349 | ndschneider@nd.gov

Lacey A. Jangula, Technical Accounting/Credit Analyst
701-328-5310 | lajangula@nd.gov



About the North Dakota Development Fund

The North Dakota Development Fund was created through
legislation in 1991 as an economic development tool. It provides
flexible gap financing through debt and equity investments for new
or expanding North Dakota primary sector businesses.

The Development Fund makes investments of up to $300,000.
The Board of Directors may adjust the limit when deemed
appropriate. In general, the following criteria apply to Development
Fund investments:

The entrepreneur must have a realistic financial commitment
at stake. Usually, principals are required to have a minimum
of 15 percent equity in the project.

Refinancing of debt is not eligible.

Principal shareholders with 20 percent or greater ownership
are generally required to guarantee the debt. Other
shareholders may also be required to guarantee.

The Development Fund will not participate in more than
50 percent of a project’s capitalization needs.

Financing is available to any primary sector business project
with the exception of production agriculture.

Primary sector includes individuals and businesses which,
through the employment of knowledge or labor, add

value to a product, process or service which results in the
creation of new wealth. Primary sector includes tourism and
specific types of investor-owned agriculture, and is typically
businesses such as manufacturers, food processors or export
service companies. Investor-owned agriculture includes
livestock feeding or milking operations, or other value-added
agriculture located apart from an individual farm operation
that is professionally managed and has employees.

Loan and equity programs managed by the North Dakota
Development Fund include:

North Dakota Development Fund
Regional Rural Revolving Loan Fund
Rural Incentive Growth Loan Program
Small Business Technology Program
Child Care Loan Program

New Venture Capital Program
Entrepreneur Loan Program
Entrepreneurial Center Loan Program

Please contact the North Dakota Development Fund or visit

www. NDDevelopmentFund.com for additional information

on the programs listed above.
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Dean Reese, CEO
ND Development Fund

“The investments made by the
Development Fund
in 2011 to 2012 contributed to
the projected creation of

152 jobs in the primary sector. ’

>

Introduction

The Development Fund invested $7,114,904 in 28 primary sector and child care
businesses from July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2012. The Development Fund has provided
gap financing in which investments, since inception, have reached $97 million.

With the Development Fund’s dollars invested, there has been $107,286,856
leveraged from other financing institutions resulting in a $15.08 to 1 ratio - for every
Development Fund dollar invested, $15.08 was invested from other sources.

The investments made by the Development Fund in 2011 to 2012 contributed to the
projected creation of 152 jobs in the primary sector.

The Development Fund reported an estimated June 30, 2012 fiscal year-end operating
income of $414,225 before bad debt expense, as compared to $498,877 for the
fiscal year-end 2011. The decrease in income is attributable to a decrease in interest
income on loans and an increase in bad debt expense. The Development Fund saw an
increase in general and administrative expenses of ($22,923) from 2011 to 2012. The
Development Fund continues to pay all costs of operating the fund including salaries
and benefits. The increase in administrative expense was attributable to an increase
in salary expense and repo expense from 2011 to 2012. The cash flow generated from
principal and interest collections remains strong at $6.3 million. The Development Fund
continues to be a “revolving” loan fund as it has collected $9.8 million the past two
years, which in turn can be used for future loan and equity investments.

Net loss before nonoperating revenues (expense) declined by $218,614 from
($16,011) in 2011 to ($234,625) in 2012. The decline in the net loss was due mainly
to the decrease in interest income and an increased allocation to bad debt expense for
the year.

Since the inception of the Development Fund, it has invested $97 million in 519
companies with over $30.8 million invested in rural communities. The investments
made by the Development Fund have contributed to the projected creation of 10,389
primary sector jobs. The Development Fund helped 12 start-up businesses begin
operations in North Dakota in 2011 to 2012. Of the 12 start-up businesses, five were
in rural communities.

The economic activity continued to be strong in North Dakota in 2012 as compared
to the national economy. In providing flexible financing, the Development Fund helped
primary sector businesses start-up or expand, which in turn created new jobs and
generated new revenues. This report includes highlights of 2012 along with the
accompanying financial statements.

Dean Reese, CEO
North Dakota Development Fund



Development Fund Investment Locations
from July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2012

DF- Development Fund Projects | RR - Regional Rural Revolving Loan Fund Projects | CC - Child Care Loans

Growth in Development Fund Projects Development Fund Cash Flow (Millions)

NUMBER OF PROJECTS
CASH FLOW (IN MILLIONS)

70 72

YEARS (BIENNIUMS) YEARS
The Development Fund invested in 28 projects from 2011-12. The Development Fund collected $6.4 million in 2011-12, averaging
The number of projects funded to date are on track to meet $5.2 million in collections in the past eight years. The Development
or exceed the number of projects from the last biennium Fund continues to revolve and the funds collected continue to be used
(2009-2011). to fund future loan and equity investments in the state.
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28 Businesses Benefited from North Dakota Development Fund
Investments from July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2012

DEVELOPMENT FUND

Aldrich Metal Supply Company
Carbontec Energy Corporation
DKX Advanced Manufacturing
Baker Boy Bake Shop, Inc.
Boost Information Systems, Inc.
Cargill, Inc.

Dog IDs

IDA of Moorhead Corporation
Leikas Group, LLC

Loyalty Builders, Inc.

Pedigree Technologies, LLC
American Defense Ind.

Ideal Aerosmith, Inc.

Midwest Energy Emissions
Next Healthcare, Inc.

Telpro, Inc.

Zachmeier Manufacturing, Inc.
Accuity Medical International, Inc.
Fixes 4 Kids, Inc.

Streamline, Inc.

BNG Technologies, LLC

REGIONAL RURAL REVOLVING LOAN
Tuff-E Manufacturing

Sheyenne Tooling and Mfg, Inc.
Killdeer Mountain Mfg.

Firehouse Ribs

CHILD CARE LOAN
Perfect Start Daycare
Rachel’s Daycare, LLC
Tiny Tykes, Inc.

Bismarck
Bismarck
Bismarck
Dickinson
Fargo

Fargo

Fargo

Fargo

Fargo

Fargo

Fargo
Grand Forks
Grand Forks
Grand Forks
Grand Forks
Grand Forks
Mandan
Wahpeton
Wahpeton
Wahpeton
West Fargo

Carson
Cooperstown
Killdeer
Medina

Bismarck
Bismarck
Wahpeton

$ 137,500
$ 333,333
$ 50,000
$ 800,000
$ 300,000
$ 2,000,000
$ 87,500
$ 150,000
$ 50,000
$ 300,000
$ 750,000
$ 140,993
$ 200,000
$ 125,000
$ 150,000
$ 25,000
$ 100,000
$ 150,000
$ 300,000
$ 62,500
$ 90,000

150,000
150,000
300,000
114,000

B H B H

©+

25,000
18,000
56,078

©® &

TOTAL $ 7,114,904



Tuff-E Manufacturing — Carson

REGIONAL RURAL REVOLVING LOAN

A dozen years ago, Peter Reis purchased Tuff-E
Manufacturing, a steel fabrication and manufacturing
business in Carson. He employed three full-time staff and
focused primarily on livestock equipment. Today, he employs
34 full-time employees to handle the manufacturing of
hopper bottom grain bins and oil field production tanks.

To keep up with demand, Tuff-E Manufacturing expanded its
building space to provide additional room for its fabrication
work. The local bank assisted with the start of Tuff-E
Manufacturing’s expansion, but Reis said his company
eventually got into a cash flow crunch and required

more funding than what the bank could offer. The bank
recommended Reis consider the Development Fund.

“This was a really difficult project to get done, and the
people at the Development Fund got it done in a very short
period of time and made it come together,” Reis said.

“To be honest, it was a lifesaver.”

The Development Fund not only brought the 7,200
square foot addition to completion, it gave hope to
a small-town businessman.

“There are a lot of businesses in North Dakota where
people have a lot of vision and drive to make a business
expand, but don’t have the capital means to do it,” Reis
said. “I think it's great that North Dakota has something like
the Development Fund to help do that, because without it,

| don’t know that our business would have progressed to
where it is today.”

Loyalty Builders, Inc. — Fargo

DEVELOPMENT FUND

Loyalty Builders is a marketing analytics software company
that allows retailers and other merchants to use data

from customer behavior and transactions to help predict
customers’ future purchases and increase revenue.

Loyalty Builders sells its software across the country, and
President Dennis Erdle said the new Fargo location was
a great fit for the company to expand its operations due
to the talent available from the North Dakota University
System and assistance from the Development Fund.

“The Fund gave us the confidence to open here, because
to have the support of the North Dakota business
community was critical in helping us open the office,”

Erdle said. “It's doing a great job of helping the business
climate get going.”

The funds allowed Loyalty Builders to set up the Fargo
office, hire six employees and market the business.

The company offers a variety of advanced marketing
techniques to its clients as well as a library of resources
to learn more about customer behavior.

Erdle said there is a high demand for these types of
analytics, particularly because many customers will
experience up to 20 times the return on investment
compared to traditional marketing methods.
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Tiny Tykes, Inc. — Wahpeton

CHILD CARE LOAN

Justin and Jamie Neppl needed more space for their growing The new location required some renovations, so the
Tiny Tykes daycare business in Wahpeton, so they purchased Development Fund assisted with costs to install new
an additional building increasing their capacity from 18 to 49 windows throughout, a more efficient HVAC system and
children. The move was made possible by the Development to remove trees on the property.

Fund which provided working capital, additional equipment

and property improvements.

“It's nice when parents are complimenting the things and
noticing we’re trying to improve the childcare, the building,”

“It provided more opportunity since it helped us to make that Jamie Neppl said. “(After the improvements), the space
next move to the next place,” Justin Neppl said. “Many of our opened up and it was more welcoming.”

families are on childcare assistance so that income comes
in a month behind. We almost have to front payroll for two
months before our accounts receivable starts catching up,

so having that working capital helps out quite a bit.”

Dog IDs — Fargo

DEVELOPMENT FUND

Dog IDs produces personalized dog collars and custom dog identification
tags to promote dog safety and responsible dog ownership. Strictly web-
based, the Fargo company offers a large selection of unique designs for
man’s best friend.

The Development Fund provided working capital to develop the website and
hire additional staff. It also assisted with their marketing efforts and the
purchase of equipment to keep up with customer demand.

“Without the Development Fund, we would have had to say no to some of the
opportunities we capitalized on in the past year,” said co-owner Clint Howitz.
“It supported our growth in general to fulfill the large sales spikes we had at
various times.”

Howitz predicts even faster growth ahead, so the funding is critical for
continued success.

“A large portion of our expenses are non-tangibles such as web and software
development which is extremely difficult to finance,” Howitz said. “Without
the Development Fund backing us, we most likely wouldn’t have found the
financing we needed via traditional lending institutions, and our business
development progression would have been much slower over this last year.”



Next Healthcare, Inc. — Grand Forks

DEVELOPMENT FUND

When seeking the perfect location for a biotechnology
service, founder Vin Singh chose Grand Forks, opening Next
Healthcare, Inc. in early March. Singh said North Dakota'’s
central location, low costs and access to the University of
North Dakota’s excellent bioscience program and medical
school made the decision an easy one. By providing tissue
and cell storage solutions to the general public, Next
Healthcare, Inc. utilizes technology to allow people to
potentially treat their diseases or conditions with their

own cells.

Singh has received a good response to his company’s
services since it became fully operational in July.

The Development Fund assisted Next Healthcare, Inc.
with lab operating expenses.

Firehouse Ribs — Medina

REGIONAL RURAL REVOLVING LOAN

Firehouse Ribs may be tucked away in a small town, but
business is far from small. The Medina-based production
facility and restaurant sells smoked ribs and pulled pork
along with their signature barbeque sauces nationwide.

“I'm a small town girl and | fall in love with small towns,”
said co-owner Tracy Frank. “Then | get there and try to work
with them and do as much as | possibly can and | thought
Medina would be a good place to do that.”

There is no doubting her commitment as she and fellow
owner Robert Heier commute 80 miles each day from Valley
City to run the business. Medina’s old meat locker plant was
a perfect fit, even at only 970 square feet - the smallest
USDA-inspected plant in the state.

“We had to set up a GMP [Good Manufacturing Practice]
lab, which is the highest quality standard,” Singh said.
“That takes time, people and resources to make happen.
The funds enabled us to launch our lab operation and
commercialize our service.”

Next Healthcare, Inc. hopes to expand its network of
doctors and customer base, as well as lab operations.

“Currently we have a network of doctors that offers the
service to their patients,” Singh said. “Now we're starting to
go directly to consumers, educating them about the service
and its benefits so they can then go to their doctor and ask
them to offer it as a service to their other patients.”

“We push a lot of product out of here,” Frank said. “The
Development Fund allowed us to double and triple up on
equipment and now we're at almost one and a half times
our normal production, so instead of making 3,000 pounds
per day, we can almost do 7,000.”

The business has even built a relationship with Walmart.
The retail giant currently carries Firehouse Ribs products
within the tri-state area, but by January the label will go
nationwide. It's a big leap from where Frank and Heier
stood prior to the Development Fund loan. “It was nerve
wracking for a while because if we would not have been
able to expand, we would have been shutting our doors,”
Frank said. “We would have been just another closed-down
small business.”
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Governor of North Dakota
The Legislative Assembly

Board of Directors
North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Bismarck, North Dakota

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the North Dakota Development Fund,
Inc. acomponent unit of the State of North Dakota, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011,
as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Fund's
management. Our responsibility isto express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on atest
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

Asdiscussed in Note 1, the financial statements of the North Dakota Devel opment Fund, Inc. are intended
to present the financial position, changesin financial position, and the cash flows of only that portion of
the financial statements of the State of North Dakota that is attributable to the transactions of North
Dakota Development Fund, Inc. They do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of
the State of North Dakota as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, the changesin its financial position or, where
applicable, its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the
financial position of the North Dakota Development Fund, Inc. as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, and the
respective changesin financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.



In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated October 25, 2012
on our consideration of the North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in
assessing the results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 13 through 16 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements taken as a
whole. The accompanying supplementary information on pages 17 through 33 is presented for purposes
of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. The supplementary
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Cio/dﬁdgzu”

Bismarck, North Dakota
October 25, 2012



North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2012

The discussion and analysis of the financial performance of the North Dakota Development Fund that follows is
meant to provide additional insight into the Development Fund’s activities for the year ended June 30, 2012.
Please read it in conjunction with the Development Fund’s financial statements and footnotes, which are
presented within this report.

Financial Highlights

Total revenue increased by $910,328 (93.20%) to $1,887,396. Operating revenues decreased by $62,572 (6.95%)
to $835,092. Cash flow increased by $2,801,754 (79.25%) to $6,336,733. The Fund collected $4,832,119 in
principal payments in 2012, which was an increase of $2,424,208 (200%) from 2011. The increase in total
revenues and operating revenues was attributable to additional payouts of loans on the books of the North Dakota
Development Fund.

The Development Fund received $162,738 in dividend payments in 2012 from equity investments made, an
increase from the $109,128 received in dividend payments in 2011. The increase was attributable to additional
payments received in dividend payments to the Development Fund in 2012 as compared to 2011.

General and administrative expense increased by $22,923 (5.76%) from $397,944 in 2011 to $420,867 in 2012.
The increase in administrative expense was attributable to an increase in salary expense and repo expense from
2011 to 2012.

Operating loss before non-operating revenues and expenses increased by ($218,614) from ($16,011) in 2011 to
($234,625) in 2012. The decline in the operating loss in 2012 was attributable to an increase in reserve for bad
debt expense and an increase in general and administrative expense in 2012 as compared to 2011 in addition to
the reduction in operating revenues from $897,664 in 2011 to $835,092 in 2012.

Interest income on deposits decreased by $27,100 (34.50%) from $79,404 received in 2011 to $52,304 received in
2012. The decrease was the result of decreased interest rates received on the investments being made in
certificates of deposit at the Bank of North Dakota.

Change in net assets increased by $754,286 from $63,393 in 2011 to $817,679 in 2012. The increase was
attributable to the Development Fund receiving an appropriation from the North Dakota Legislature in the amount
of $1 million dollars for a new funding program called the Small Business Technology Program in July of 2011.

Net assets increased by $817,679 from $23,142,094 in 2011 to $23,959,773 in 2012. The increase was
attributable to the Development Fund receiving an appropriation from the North Dakota Legislature in the
amount of $1 million dollars for a new funding program called the Small Business Technology Program.

Noncurrent net assets (excluding equipment) increased by $1,540,281 from $7,841,863 in 2011 to $9,382,144 in
2012. The noncurrent assets consist of the Development Fund’s loan and equity investments. The equity
investments made decreased by $815,502 from 2011 to 2012. The equity investments that were charged off
during 2012 were $662,324 as compared to $370,800 in 2011. The loan investments made increased by
$2,525,778 from 2011 to 2012. The loan investments that were charged off during 2012 were $280,547 as
compared to $228,327 in 2011. The Development Fund saw a decline in equity requests in 2012, but saw an
increase in requests for loans. Also included in the loan investment balance were loans closed under the new
Child Care Loan Program created by legislative intent and an appropriation from the legislative session in 2009
and became effective July 1, 2009.



North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2012

Interest receivable on deposits and loans decreased by ($3,879) to $70,007. The receivable remained stable in
2012 due to the continued improved monitoring of past due accounts and not having to put additional accounts on
non-accrual.

Cash and cash equivalents increased by $7,052,795 (250%) to $11,703,160 (cash balance is before loan and
investment commitments). The increase in cash and cash equivalents was attributable to less dollars being
invested in certificate of deposits due to the reduction in CD rates and wanting to put the funds to work in primary
sector businesses in the State of North Dakota. The investment account (which includes certificate of deposit
investments) decreased by $8,235,534 from $9,236,500 in 2011 to $1,000,966 in 2012.

The Development Fund invests their excess funds into longer-term deposits for a higher rate of return to coincide
with the funding commitments made by the Development Fund to companies for loans and equity investments,
which are not required to be funded in the short-term. But, due to the low rate of interest being offered on
certificate of deposits on a longer term, the Development Fund has kept the excess funding liquid in saving
accounts and putting the funds to work in loan and equity investments to primary sector businesses in the State
of North Dakota.

Twenty-eight projects were funded totaling $7,114,904.

Required Financial Statements

The discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Development Fund’s financial
statements. The financial statements of the Development Fund provide accounting information similar to that of
many other business entities. The Balance Sheet summarizes the assets and liabilities, with the difference between
the two reported as net assets. It also serves as a basis for analysis of the soundness and liquidity of the
Development Fund. The statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets summarize the
Development Fund’s operating performance for the year. The statements of Cash Flows summarize the flow of
cash through the Development Fund as it conducts its business.

Condensed Balance Sheet
June 30, 2012 and 2011

Assets 2012 2011 2010
Current assets 15,841,282 16,563,884 17,207,305
Noncurrent assets 9,382,144 7,841,863 7,234,496

Total assets 25,223,426 24,405,747 24,441,801

Net Assets
Current liabilities 1,263,653 1,263,653 1,363,100
Unrestricted 23,959,773 23,142,094 23,078,701

Total net assets 23,959,773 23,142,094 23,078,701
Total liabilities and net assets 25,223,426 24,405,747 24,441,801




North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2012

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash deposits with the Bank of North Dakota and are included in the current
assets section of the balance sheet. Additional discussion of cash and cash equivalents can be found in Note 2 to
the financial statements.

Equity Investments

Equity investments consist of capital investments in new or expanding primary sector businesses in or relocating

to North Dakota and are included in noncurrent assets. Additional discussion of equity investments can be found

in Notes 4 and 5 to the financial statements.

Loans Receivable

Loans receivable consist of loans to new or expanding primary sector businesses in or relocating to North Dakota
and are included in current and noncurrent assets in the balance sheet. Additional analysis of loans receivable can
be found in Notes 6 and 7.

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
for the Year Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

2012 2011 2010
Operating Revenues

Interest income on loans $ 584,339 $ 584,757 $ 660,760
Dividend income 162,738 109,128 149,679
Gain on sale of investment 8,214 93,542 -
Other 79,801 110,237 55,118
835,092 897,664 865,557

Nonoperating Revenue
State appropriations 1,000,000 - -
Interest income on deposits 52,304 79,404 91,968
1,052,304 79,404 91,968

Total Revenue 1,887,396 977,068 957,525




North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2012

Operating Expenses
General and administrative
Depreciation expense
Bad debt expense

Change in Net Assets
Net Assets, Beginning of Year

Net Assets, End of Year

2012 2011 2010
420,867 397,944 386,615

) 843 766

648,850 514,888 1,121,985
1,069,717 913,675 1,509,366
817,679 63,393 (551,841)
23,142,094 23,078,701 23,630,542

$ 23959773 $  23142,004 $ 23078701




North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Balance Sheets
June 30, 2012 and 2011

2012 2011
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivaents $ 11,703,160 $ 4,650,365
Interest receivable on deposits and loans 70,007 73,886
Investments 1,000,966 9,236,500
Current portion of loans receivable 3,067,149 2,603,133
Total current assets 15,841,282 16,563,884
Noncurrent Assets
Loans receivable, net of current portion 9,382,144 7,841,863
Total assets $ 25,223,426 $ 24,405,747
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities
Accrued expenses $ 13,653 $ 13,653
Dueto state 1,250,000 1,250,000
Total current liabilities 1,263,653 1,263,653
Net Assets
Unrestricted 23,959,773 23,142,094
Total net assets 23,959,773 23,142,094
Total liabilities and net assets $ 25,223,426 $ 24,405,747

See Notes to Financial Statements




North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

2012 2011

Operating Revenues
Interest income on loans $ 584,339 $ 584,757
Dividend income 162,738 109,128
Gain on sale of investment 8,214 93,542
Other 79,801 110,237
835,092 897,664

Operating Expenses
General and administrative 420,867 397,944
Depreciation expense - 843
Bad debt expense 648,850 514,888
1,069,717 913,675
Operating Loss (234,625) (16,011)

Nonoperating Revenue

State appropriations 1,000,000 -
Interest income on deposits and investments 52,304 79,404
1,052,304 79,404
Change in Net Assets 817,679 63,393
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 23,142,094 23,078,701
Net Assets, End of Year $ 23,959,773 $ 23,142,094

See Notes to Financial Statements




North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

Operating Activities
Other receipts
Payments to suppliers

Net Cash used for Operating Activities

Investing Activities
Interest received on cash and cash equivalents
Purchase of equipment
Purchase of equity investments
Proceeds from the sale of equity investments
Purchase of investments
Sale of investments
Disbursements of business loans
Principal payments received on business loans

Net Cash provided by (used for) Investing Activities
Non-Capital and Related Financing Activities
Paydown of appropriations
Proceeds from state appropriations
Net Cash provided by (used for) Financing Activities
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

See Notes to Financial Statements

2012 2011
$ 226504  $ 386,666
(420,867) (447,601)
(194,363) (61,025)

672,985 689,407

- (843)

(991,668) (87,500)

617,218 150,000
(1,000,966) (13,794,750)
9,228,286 12,575,048
(7,110,816) (3,830,111)
4,832,119 2,407,911
6,247,158 (1,890,838)

- (49,700)

1,000,000 -
1,000,000 (49,700)
7,052,795 (2,001,563)
4,650,365 6,651,928

$ 11,703,160 $ 4,650,365




North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating
loss to net cash from operating activities

Depreciation
Decrease in accounts payable
Gain on sale of investment
Allowance for doubtful loan receivables
Allowance for realized loss on investments
Reclassification of interest and dividend income

Net Cash Used for Operating Activities
Supplemental Schedule of Noncash Activities

Loans receivable written off
Equity investments written off

See Notes to Financial Statements

2012 2011

$ (234,625)  $ (16,011)
- 843

- (49,747)

8,214 93,542

274,400 577,388

374,450 (62,500)
(616,802) (604,540)

$ (194,363) $ (61,025)
$ 280547  $ 228,327
$ 662,324  $ 370,800



North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012 and 2011

Note 1- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Organization and Nature of Activities

The North Dakota Development Fund, Inc. (the Corporation) was established pursuant to Chapter 10-30.3 of the
North Dakota Century Code as amended by the passage of Senate Bill 2058 during the 1991 legislative session.
The Corporation is a statewide nonprofit development corporation with the authority to take equity positions in; to
provide loans to; or to use other innovative financing mechanisms to provide capital for new or expanding
primary sector businesses in North Dakota or relocating to North Dakota.

The Corporation uses funds to report on its financial position and the results of its operations. Fund accounting is
designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating transactions related to
certain corporate functions or activities.

The following activities are used by the Corporation:

Development Fund

The Development Fund is used to account for fund investments, including equity positions, loans, loan
guarantees, and other innovative financing mechanisms for new or expanding primary sector businesses in North
Dakota or relocating to North Dakota.

Regional Rural Development Revolving L oan Fund

The Regional Rural Development Revolving Loan Fund is used to account for fund investments including equity
positions, loans, loan guarantees, or debt financing on a matching basis to new or expanding primary sector
businesses in rural areas.

Small Business Technology Program

The Small Business Technology Fund is used to provide matching investments to startup technology-based
businesses.

Child Care L oan Program

The Child Care Loan Program is used to account for fund investments including loans and loan guarantees for
new or expanding child care facilities in North Dakota.

The Corporation may form additional corporations, partnerships or other forms of business associations in order
to further its mission.

The Director of the Department of Commerce Division of the Economic Development and Finance shall appoint
the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation. All investments, contracts, partnerships, limited liability
companies, and business transactions of the Corporation are the responsibility of the Chief Executive Officer and
the eight-member Board of Directors, who are appointed by the Governor.



North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012 and 2011

Reporting Entity

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, The Financial
Reporting Entity, the Corporation should include all component units over which the Corporation exercises such
aspects as (1) appointing a voting majority of an organization’s governing body and (2) has the ability to impose
its will on that organization or (3) the potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or
impose specific burdens on the Corporation. GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain
Organizations are Component Units, an Amendment of GASB Statement 14, further defined reporting units as a
legally separate, tax exempt affiliated organization that meet all of the following criteria:

* The economic resources of the organization entirely or almost entirely directly benefit the Corporation or
its constituents, and

* The Corporation or its component units are entitled to or can otherwise access, a majority of the economic
resources of the organization, and

* The economic resources that the Corporation is entitled to, or can otherwise access, are significant to the
Corporation.

Based upon criteria set forth in GASB No. 14 and No. 39, no organizations were determined to be part of the
reporting entity. The Corporation is included as part of the primary government of the State of North Dakota’s
reporting entity.

Basis of Accounting

The Corporation is presented in the accompanying financial statements as a proprietary fund type — an
enterprise fund.

An enterprise fund is used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private
business enterprises, where the intent is that costs of providing goods or services to the general public or other
funds on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges. The Corporation operates
primarily with appropriations from the State of North Dakota’s general fund.

As a proprietary fund type, the Corporation accounts for its transactions using the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized for its transactions when they are earned, and expenses are recognized when they
are incurred.

The Corporation follows the pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), which
is the nationally accepted standard-setting body for establishing generally accepted accounting principles for
governmental entities. In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 20, the
Corporation follows all applicable GASB Pronouncements as well as Financial Accounting Standards Board
pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with GASB
pronouncements.



North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012 and 2011

Revenue and Expense Recognition

The Corporation presents its revenues and expenses as operating or non-operating based on recognition
definitions from GASB Statement No. 9, Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and Nonexpendable Trust Funds
and Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting. Operating activities are those activities that
are necessary and essential to the mission of the Corporation. Operating revenues include all charges to
customers, research contracts and grants, dividends earned on equity investments and interest earned on loans.
Revenues from non-exchange transactions and state appropriations that represent subsidies or gifts to the
Corporation, as well as investment income, are considered non-operating since these are either investing, capital
or noncapital financing activities. Operating expenses are all expense transactions incurred other than those
related to investing, capital or noncapital financing activities. Revenues received for capital financing activities, as
well as related expenses, are considered neither operating nor non-operating activities and are presented after non-
operating activities on the accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Loans receivable consist primarily of loans to new or expanding businesses in North Dakota or relocating
businesses to North Dakota. The Corporation performs credit evaluations and maintains a security interest until
related loans are collected.

Cash Equivalents

The Corporation considers all highly liquid investments purchased with maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

Investments

Investments are reported at fair value. All investment income, including changes in the fair value of investments,
is recognized in the statement of revenue, expenses, and changes in fund net assets.

Equity Investments

The Corporation records its equity investments at cost adjusted for other than temporary impairment as
determined by the Board of Directors. The other than temporary impairment of equity investments is included in
fund equity. Realization of the carrying value of these investments is subject to future developments inherent in
such investments (see Note 4).

Among the factors considered in determining whether an other than temporary impairment of an investment has
occurred are the cost of the investment, development since the acquisition of the investment, the financial
condition and operating results of the issuer, the long-term potential of the business of the issuer, and other factors
generally pertinent to the valuation of investments. The Development Fund has relied on financial data of
investees and, in many instances, on estimates by the management company and of the investee company as to the
potential effect of future developments.

Expense Allocation

The Development Fund pays all expenses of the Corporation.



North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012 and 2011

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are
particularly susceptible to significant change in the near-term relate to the determination of the allowance for loan
losses and valuation of equity investments.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation

All fixed assets are recorded in the accompanying financial statements at cost. Donated fixed assets are stated at
fair market value at the time of donation. Equipment with a cost greater than $5,000 is capitalized and reported in
the accompanying financial statements. The Corporation's fixed assets are being depreciated on a straight-line
basis over estimated useful life of three years.

Loans
Loans are reported at their outstanding unpaid principal adjusted for charge-offs and the allowance for loan losses.

Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance. The accrual of interest on loans is discontinued at the
time the loan is 90 to 120 days delinquent unless the credit is well secured and in process of collection. Loans are
placed on non-accrual or charged-off at an earlier date if collection of principal or interest is doubtful. All current
year interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on non-accrual or charged off is reversed against
interest income. All prior year interest accrued but not collected is charged-off against the allowance for loan
losses. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery method, until qualifying for
return to accrual. Loans are returned to accrual status when all principal and interest amounts contractually due
are brought current and future payments are reasonably assured.

The Corporation has determined that the accounting for nonrefundable fees and costs associated with originating
or acquiring loans does not have a material effect on their financial statements. As such, these fees and costs have
been recognized during the period they are collected and incurred, respectively.

Allowance For Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a provision for loan
losses charged to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the
uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to a recovery account.

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon management’s
periodic review of the collectability of the loans in light of historical experience, the nature and volume of the
loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower’s ability to repay, estimated value of any
underlying collateral and prevailing economic conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires
estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available.



North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012 and 2011

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Corporation
will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual
terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment
status, collateral value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due.
Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as
impaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case
basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower’s prior payment
record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured on a
loan-by-loan basis by either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective
interest rate, the loan’s obtainable market price, or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral
dependent. The Corporation separately identifies individual loans for impairment disclosures by rating them on a
scale of 1 to 6.

Note 2 - Deposits and Investments

The Corporation is required to maintain its deposits at the Bank of North Dakota (a related party). As of June 30,
2012, the Corporation had the following cash and investments:

Less
Fair Than
Value One Year
Cash
Bank of North Dakota $ 11,703,160 $ 11,703,160
Investments
Certificates of deposit
Bank of North Dakota 1,000,966 1,000,966

$ 12,704,126 $ 12,704,126

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates of investments will adversely affect the fair value of the
investments. At June 30, 2012, the schedule above shows the investments by investment type, amount and the
duration.

Cash and investments were recorded on the statement of net assets as follows:

Balance
Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,703,160
Investments 1,000,966

$ 12,704,126




North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012 and 2011

Custodial and Concentration of Credit Risk
For deposits and investments, the custodial credit risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, the Corporation will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in possession of an outside

party. The Corporation’s deposits are uncollateralized. All of the Corporation’s deposits are with the Bank of
North Dakota.

Note 3 - Interest Receivable

Interest receivable at June 30, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

2012 2011

Interest receivable from loans $ 70,007 $ 73,886

Note 4 - Equity Investments

Equity investments in business concerns as of June 30, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

2012 2011
Development Fund $ 3,114,165 $ 3,922,830
Rural Development Revolving Loan Fund 1,164,653 1,171,490
4,278,818 5,094,320
Valuation allowance - Other than temporary impairment (4,278,818) (5,094,320)
$ - $ -

Among the factors considered in determining whether an other than temporary impairment of an investment has
occurred are the cost of the investment, development since the acquisition of the investment, the financial
condition and operating results of the issuer, the long-term potential of the business of the issuer, and other factors
generally pertinent to the valuation of investments. The Development Fund has relied on financial data of
investees and, in many instances, on estimates by the management company and of the investee company as to the
potential effect of future developments.

The Corporation acquired its investment by direct purchase from the issuer under investment representations, and
the Board of Directors valued the securities on the premise that they may not be sold without registration under
the Securities Act of 1933. The price of securities purchased was determined by direct negotiation between the
Corporation and the seller.



North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012 and 2011

Note 5 - Equity Investments — Valuation Allowance

Changes in the valuation allowance for equity investments as of June 30, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Balance, beginning of year

Provision for equity investment losses
Transfers

Equity investments charged off

Balance, end of year

Note 6 - Loans Receivable

Loans receivable at June 30, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Development Fund

Rural Development Revolving Loan Fund

Child Care Loan Program

Allowance for loan losses

Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losses
Less: current portion of loans receivable

Loans receivable, net of current portion

Note 7 - Allowance for Loan Losses

Changes in the allowance for loan losses as of June 30, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Balance, beginning of year
Provision for loan losses
Transfers

Loans charged off

Balance, end of year

2012 2011

$ 5094320 $ 5,684,125
374,450 (62,500)
(527,628) (156,505)
(662,324) (370,800)

$ 4278818 $ 5,094,320
2012 2011

$ 11755681 $ 9,134,747
5,428,604 5,528,147
794,326 789,939
17,978,611 15,452,333
(5,529,318) (5,007,837)
12,449,293 10,444,996
3,067,149 2,603,133

$ 09382144 $ 7,841,863
2012 2011

$ 5007837 $ 4,502,271
274,400 577,388
527,628 156,505
(280,547) (228,327)

$ 5529318 $ 5,007,837




North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012 and 2011

Note 8 - Equipment

A statement of changes in fixed assets for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

Balance Balance

06/30/11 Additions Deletions 06/30/12
Furniture and equipment $ 10,095 $ - $ 10,095
Computer software 78,188 - 78,188
Accumulated depreciation (88,283) - (88,283)
$ - $ - 5 -

Balance Balance

06/30/10 Additions Deletions 06/30/11
Furniture and equipment $ 10,095 $ - $ 10,095
Computer software 77,345 843 - 78,188
Accumulated depreciation (87,440) (843) - (88,283)
$ - $ - $ - 3 -

Note 9 - Due to State

In 2011, the State of North Dakota appropriated funds to the North Dakota Development Fund to develop a child
care loan program for the purpose of providing loans to new and expanding child care facilities within the state of
North Dakota. The program was extended in the last legislative session through June 30, 2013, at which time it
expires. On that date, the appropriation amount is set to be returned to the state. As of June 30, 2012 and 2011,
$1,250,000 and $1,250,000 is due back to the state, respectively.

Note 10 - State Appropriation
During the year ended June 30, 2012 the North Dakota Development Fund received $1,000,000 for a new funding
program called the Small Business Technology Program.

Note 11 - Commitments and Contingencies

Development Fund

The Board of Directors has approved equity investments, loans, grants and guaranty of collections at June 30,
2012 and 2011, for which funds have not been disbursed or written agreements entered into in the approximate
amount of $1,036,244 and $3,362,579.



North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012 and 2011

Regional Rural Development Revolving Loan Fund

The Board of Directors has approved equity investments, loans, and guaranty of collections at June 30, 2012 and
2011, for which funds have not been disbursed or written agreements entered into in the approximate amount of
$757,095 and $1,137,666.

Child Care Loan Program

The Board of Directors has approved loans at June 30, 2012 and 2011, for which funds have not been disbursed or
written agreements entered into in the approximate amount of $3,363 and $25,867.

Note 12 - Risk Management

North Dakota Development Fund is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The following are
funds/pools established by the State for risk management issues:

The 1995 legislative session established the Risk Management Fund (RMF), an internal service fund, to provide a
self-insurance vehicle for funding the liability exposures of state agencies resulting from the elimination of the
state's sovereign immunity. The RMF manages the tort liability of the state, its agencies' employees, and the
University System. All state agencies participate in the RMF and their fund contribution was determined using a
projected cost allocation approach. The statutory liability of the State is limited to a total of $250,000 per person
and $1,000,000 per occurrence.

The Corporation participates in the North Dakota Fire and Tornado Fund and the State Bonding Fund through the
policies of the North Dakota Commerce Department. The North Dakota Commerce Department pays an annual
premium to the Fire and Tornado Fund to cover property damage to personal property. Replacement cost
coverage is provided by estimating replacement cost in consultation with the Fire and Tornado Fund. The Fire and
Tornado Fund is reinsured by a third party insurance carrier for losses in excess of one million dollars per
occurrence during a 12 month period. The State Bonding Fund currently provides the Commerce Department with
blanket fidelity bond coverage in the amount of $100,000 per employee. The State Bonding Fund does not
currently charge any premium for this coverage.

The Corporation participates in the North Dakota Workforce Safety and Insurance, (WSI) an Enterprise Fund of
the State of North Dakota. WSI is a state insurance fund and a "no fault” insurance system covering the State's
employers and employees financed by premiums assessed to employers. The premiums are available for the
payment of claims to employees injured in the course of employment.

There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year and settled claims resulting
from these risks have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.



North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Combining Balance Sheets
June 30, 2012 and 2011

Regiona
Rural
Development Small Business
Development Revolving Child Care Technology
Fund Loan Fund Loan Program Program 2012 2011
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,247,295 $ 4,962,446 $ 493419 $ - $ 11,703,160 $ 4,650,365
Interest receivable on
deposits and loans 37,623 32,384 - - 70,007 73,886
Investments - - - 1,000,966 1,000,966 9,236,500
Current portion of loans receivable 2,005,523 926,119 135,507 - 3,067,149 2,603,133
Intercompany receivable (payable) (5,229) 5,229 - - - -
Total current assets 8,285,212 5,926,178 628,926 1,000,966 15,841,282 16,563,884
Noncurrent Assets
Loans receivable, net of current portion 6,951,200 2,216,744 214,200 - 9,382,144 7,841,863
Total assets $ 15,236,412 $ 8,142,922 $ 843,126 $ 1,000,966 $ 25,223,426 $ 24,405,747
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities
Accrued expenses $ 13,653 $ - $ - $ - $ 13,653 $ 13,653
Dueto state - - 1,250,000 - 1,250,000 1,250,000
Total liabilities 13,653 - 1,250,000 - 1,263,653 1,263,653
Net Assets
Unrestricted 15,222,759 8,142,922 (406,874) 1,000,966 23,959,773 23,142,094
Total net assets 15,222,759 8,142,922 (406,874) 1,000,966 23,959,773 23,142,094

Total liabilities and net assets $ 15,236,412 $ 8,142,922 $ 843,126 $ 1,000,966 $ 25,223,426 $ 24,405,747




North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Combining Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

Regional
Rura
Development Small Business
Development Revolving Child Care Technology
Fund Loan Fund Loan Program Program 2012 2011
Operating Revenues
Interest income on loans $ 446,117 $ 119,030 $ 19,192 $ - $ 584,339 $ 584,757
Dividend income 130,275 32,463 - - 162,738 109,128
Gain on sale of investment 8,214 - - - 8,214 93,542
Other 71,186 7,972 643 - 79,801 110,237
655,792 159,465 19,835 - 835,092 897,664
Operating Expenses
General and administrative 420,867 - - - 420,867 397,944
Depreciation expense - - - - - 843
Bad debt expense 581,342 69,830 (2,322) - 648,850 514,888
1,002,209 69,830 (2,322) - 1,069,717 913,675
Operating (Loss) Income (346,417) 89,635 22,157 - (234,625) (16,011)
Nonoperating Revenue (Expense)
Interest income on deposits
and investments 31,210 19,542 586 966 52,304 79,404
State appropriations - - - 1,000,000 1,000,000 -
31,210 19,542 586 1,000,966 1,052,304 79,404
Changein Net Assets (315,207) 109,177 22,743 1,000,966 817,679 63,393
Net Assets, Beginning of Y ear 15,537,966 8,033,745 (429,617) - 23,142,094 23,078,701

Net Assets, End of Y ear $ 15,222,759 $ 8,142,922 $ (406,874) $ 1,000,966 $ 23,959,773 $ 23,142,094




North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Combining Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

Operating Activities
Other receipts (payments)
Paymentsto suppliers

Net Cash (used for) Provided by
Operating Activities

Non-Capital Financing Activities
Paydown of appropriations
Proceeds from state appropriations

Net Cash (used for) Provided by
Non-Capital Financing
Activities

Investing Activities
Interest and dividends received
Purchase of equipment
Purchase of equity investments
Proceeds from the sale of
equity investments
Purchase of investments
Sale of investments
Disbursements of business loans
Principal received on business loans

Net Cash (used for) Provided by
Investing Activities

Net Change in Cash and
Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivaents,
Beginning of Y ear

Cash and Cash Equivaents,
End of Year

Regional
Rura
Development Small Business
Development Revolving Child Care Technology

Fund Loan Fund Loan Program Program 2012 2011
$ 217,889 $ 7,972 $ 643 $ - $ 226,504 $ 386,666
(420,867) - - - (420,867) (447,691)
(202,978) 7,972 643 - (194,363) (61,025)
- - - - - (49,700)
- - - 1,000,000 1,000,000 -
- - - 1,000,000 1,000,000 (49,700)
481,949 170,292 19,778 966 672,985 689,407
- - - - - (843)
(991,668) - - - (991,668) (87,500)
612,764 4,454 - - 617,218 150,000
- - - (1,000,966) (1,000,966) (13,794,750)
5,947,786 3,280,500 - - 9,228,286 12,575,048
(6,283,744) (727,994) (99,078) - (7,110,816) (3,830,111)
4,182,858 554,570 94,691 - 4,832,119 2,407,911
3,949,945 3,281,822 15,391 (1,000,000) 6,247,158 (1,890,838)
3,746,967 3,289,794 16,034 - 7,052,795 (2,001,563)
2,500,328 1,672,652 477,385 - 4,650,365 6,651,928
$ 6,247,295 $ 4,962,446 $ 493,419 $ - $ 11,703,160 $ 4,650,365




North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Combining Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

Reconciliation of Operating
(Loss) Gain to Net Cash used in
Operating Activities
Operating (loss) gain
Adjustments to reconcile operating
(loss) gain to net cash from
operating activities
Depreciation
Increase in accounts payable
Change in intercompany
receivable (payable)
Gain on sale of investment
Allowance for doubtful
loan receivables
Allowance for realized
loss on investments
Reclassification of interest
and dividend income

Net Cash (used in) Provided by
Operating Activities

Supplemental Schedule of
Noncash Activities
Loan receivable written off
Equity investments written off

Regional
Rural
Development Small Business
Development Revolving Child Care Technology

Fund Loan Fund Loan Program Program 2012 2011
$ (346417) $ 89,635 $ 22,157 $ - $ (234625 % (16,011)
- - - - - 843
- - - - - (49,747)
8,214 - - - 8,214 93,542
202,438 74,284 (2,322) - 274,400 577,388
378,904 (4,454) - - 374,450 (62,500)
(446,117) (151,493) (19,192) - (616,802) (604,540)
$ (202978) $ 7972 $ 643 $ - $ (194,363) $  (61,025)
$ 3,038 $ 277,509 $ - $ - $ 280,547 $ 228327
662,324 - - 662,324 370,800
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MISSION

The Agricultural Products Utilization Commission creates

new wealth and jobs through the development of new and

expanded uses of North Dakota agricultural products.




MAP OF PROJECTS

Between November 2010 and November 2012, APUC funded 42 projects in 25

North Dakota communities, totaling over $1.6 million in grants and sponsorships.
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APUC projects by community:

* Antler —Thompson Farm * Grand Forks — Grand Forks Region

* Beach — Beach Pulses, L1.C Economic Development Corp.

* Bismarck — Carbontec Energy Corporation * Harvey Amberland Toods, Inc — Phase [
* Bismarck — Common Enterprise Development Corporation * Harvey — Amberland Foods, Inc — Phase [l
* Bismarck — The Dakota Manufacturing Extension Partnership * Jamestown — Endless Harvest

* Bismarck — North Dakota FFA Foundation * Jamestown — Jamestown/ Stutsman County
* Bottineau — Dakota College at Bottineau Jobs Development Corp.

* Bulfalo — Red Trail Vineyard * LaMoure — Northern Plains Sustainable

* Carrington — Dakota Sun Gardens Agriculture Society — Phase |

* Cogswell — Heimbuch Potatoes, LLC * Mapleton — Inven'tus, LLC

* Dickinson —Trojan Hoist Company * McKenzie — Black Leg Ranch

4 Fargo — NDSU EPA Advanced Biofuel * Minot — Crunchtuls North ®akota, LLC
* Fargo —NDSU Low Density Fiber Board * Minot— Cutbank Creck Farm

L Fargo —NDSU Nitrogen Fertilizer * New Salem StOPSGHSOY

* Fargo — NDSU Vegetables by LEP * Ross — West Dakota Feed & Seced

* Fargo — North Dakota 4-H Foundation * Stanton — Destiny Dairy

* Fargo — North DakotaTrade ®ffice * Sterling — Bessy’s Best

¢ Fargo — Northern Corn Development Corporation * Thompson — Sun Valley Container

* Fargo — Progressive Nutrient Systems * Walcott — c2renew, LLC

* Fargo — Red River Commaodities, Inc. * Walhalla — Food First, LLC

* Fargo —Ron Iverson, LLC * West Fargo — Warp Speed ‘Torque Drive

* Fargo —VEM, LLC * Williston — Williston Area Development Corp.
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The North Dakota Agricultural Products titilization Commission

(APUC) consists of nine members. The governor appoints five
members to two-year terms. Three of these appointees must be

actively engaged in faring and two must be actively engaged in

business. The Commiissioner of Agriculture appoints one member

to a two-year term. This member must also be actively involved in

farming, All terms begin July I.

The board also indudes three statutory members or their designees:

* Paul Lucy, Director, ND Department of Commerce,
Economic Development and [Finance Division

* Dean Bresciani, President, North Dakota State University
* Doug Gochring, Commissioncr, ND Departinent
of Agricul ture

APUC STAFF

Kerri Kralt John F. Schneider

Program Assistant Lxecutive Director



BASIC & APPLIED RESEARCH GRANTS

Basic & Applied Research Grants assist in research for processing agricultural

protlucts and by-products in North Dakota.These grants cannot be aimed at

business expansion or creation without regard to agricultural products, must
not include research that cannot reasonably be expected to result in a

marketable product, or cannot have been duplicated by other research efforts.




Dakota College at Bottineau
Holly Mawby, Bottineau

Grant Amount: § 11,200
‘lotal Budget: $ 12,200

Funds will be used to purchase a compost tea system,
compost tumblers and injection system which will then be
uscd to rescarch the cffectivencss of compost tea for nutrient

management in high tunnecl vcgclal)le production.

Food First, LLC
Robert Thornberg, Walhalla

Grant Ameunt: § 36,000
Total Budgct: S 45,000

Funds will be used to quantify the impact arabinoxylans and
other prebiotics from wheat, oats, barley and tlax have on
stimulating growth of beneficial bifidobacterium to improve
digestive health. Prebiotic benefits are being assessed for
ProBiotcin as a nutritional supplement to boost beneticial

(probiotic) bacteria in human digestive tracts.

Grand Forks Region Economic Development Corp.
Keith Lund, Grand Forks

Grant Ameunt: $ 54,350
Total Budget: $ 63,350

[unding defrayed the costs associated with the development and

completion of a regional agri-business assct and resource map,

stratcgic plan, and identifi cation of diversification opportunitics.

It includes an assessment of needed resources with required
related performance metrics or milestones for the launch of a

successful new business.

BASIC & APPLIED RESEARCH GRANTS

NDSU EPA Advanced Biofuel

Dr. Cole Gustafson, Fargo

Dept. of Agriculture & Biosystems Engineering
Grant Amount: § 61,317
Total Budget: S 73,317

Funding defrayed the cost ofhiringa research scientist to
conduct a life cyc:lc analysis of greenhouse emissions from
encrgy beet biofuel. The goal is to docuinent the energy
beet pathway to secure EPA approval an “advanced” biofuel.
This study will conduct life cycle analysis to identity optimal
feedstock locations and to minimize feedstock transport and

handling costs rclated 1o the process ol energy beet biotuel.

NDSU Low Density Fiber Board

Dr. Dilpreet Bajwa, Fargo
Dept. of Mechanical Engineering & Applied Mechanics

Grant Amount: § 24,465
Total Budget: $ 40,000

Masonite PrimeBoard, Inc. of Wahpeton currently uses wheat
straw for making fiber boards. Uncertainty of raw material
supply and increased demand for wheat straw has forced

them to explore alternative agriculture fibers. This project
will support idcntif)'ing the feasibility of using soy and corn
agriculture fibers for manufacturing existing products without
compromising the quality and durability characteristics of low
density fiber boards. The new product will be green,

cco-friendly and qualify for sustainable material credit.



BASIC & APPLIED RESEARCH GRANTS

NDSU Nitrogen Fertilizer

Dr. Cole Gustafson, Fargo

Dept. of Agriculture & Biosystems Engineering
59,960

99,460

GrantAmount: §

Total Budget:  §

Funding supported the hiring of a research scientist to conduct
a feasibility analysis of the use of flarcd gas as a feedstock to
produce a low-cost, reliable and green supply of nitrogen
fertilizer for North Dakota farmers. Commerdialization of
flared gas-based nitrogen fertilizer will spur rural development,
increase farm-level productivity and profitability, and provide

added value to agricultural crops.

NDSU Vegetables by LEP

Dr. Chiwon Lee, argo
Dept. of Plant Sciences

25,360
72,490

Grant Amount: $

Total Budget: S

Funds will be used for graduate and undergraduate student
wages (70%) plus cquipment and lab supplics (30%) to
investigate the feasibility of growing selected vegetables using
LEP (light emitting plasma) light with reduced cnergy input.

If successful, a new agricultural business may well be established
in the state by producing highly nutritious vegetables year round

for regional and national markets,

Economics of Collecting Flared Gas to Produce Nitrogen Fertilizer

NDSU Department :'_lfﬁyrfhu.s'r'nesx and Applied Economics

Flames flickering across western North Dakota’s landscape
are the result of natural gas being burned ofl to normalize
pressure at well sites, but they also represent untapped
opportunity. Since natural gas is one component to
manufacturing fertilizer, the North Dakota State Liniversity
(NDSLI) Department of Agribusiness and Applied Economics
conducted a feasibility analysis to determine how to make the
most of the state’s natural gas.

“The thinking is that we have this tremendous amount of
natural gas in western North Dakota, and we haven’t had the
opportunity to put it all to use yet,” said NDSU Associate
Professor Dr. David Saxowsky.

“A lot of fertilizer manufacturing is occurring outsidc the
LUnited States and being imported, so the question is, if
we have all this natural gas, can’t we do the manufacturing
ourselves?”

The key to the study was determining the economy of scale
for a possible fertilizer plant, In this case, bigger is better.

“We learned that small scale manufacturing of fertilizer
appears to be quite expensive. In order to pull down the
cost and be competitive, you have to do it large scale, likely
manufacturing 750,000 tons per year,” Saxowsky said.

Based on these findings, Saxowsky hopes a business plan will
follow. It’s why he appreciates the APUC funding,

“It’s so rewarding for the university and the researchers to be
working with business people who are looking for these types
of opportunities and are ready to take the next step when the
results are positive,” Saxowsky said.



FARM DIVERSIFICATION GRANT

Farm Diversification Grants give priority to projects dealing with the

diversification of a family farm to non-traditional crops, livestock, or
on-farm, value-added processing of agricultural commodities. Traditional
crops and livestock are generally defined as those that the North Dakota
Agricultural Statistics Service maintains statistics on. The project must

have the potential to create additional income for the farm unit.



FARM DIVERSIFICATION GRANT

Thompson Farm

Tracie Thompson, Antler

Grant Amount: § 5,250
lotal Budget: S 25,646

Funds allowed the construction of a hoophouse, a commerecial
vegelable processing/sterage building and the development of a
commercial vegetable operation. The Thompson Farm is already
looking at expansion opportunities and the Dakota College
Entrepreneurial Center for Horticulture wishes to promote
its success story as an Extension site for their ongoing

teaching and research.

BUILDING A HOOPHOUSE

Thompson Farm

Tracie Thompson used to spend her days behind a desk,
eight to five, working for someone else. ®@ne day she
traded in her skirts and heels for work jeans and boots
to join her husband on the farm near Antler. Now while
he’s corralling cows, she’s corralling vegetables in a

high tunnel.

“I had to research everything, and when I decided it
was something I was going to do, I just jumped in head
first,” Thompson said.

A high tunnel resembles a greenhouse, but is built out
of special grade plastic that traps 85 percent of the sun’s
UVA rays to create an extended growing environment.
Thompson is able to start planting vegetables in the
ground early in the spring and can then extend the
growing season into winter,

With the help of APUC funds, Thompson was able
to revise the design of the high tunnel and build an
additional building to house a kitchen and storage
rooms. She has grown her customer base from small

local grocery stores to include Marketplace Foods
and Cash Wise Foods.

In addition, the Dakota College Entrepreneurial Center
for Horticulture uses her garden as an extension site for
their ongoing teaching and research.

“It’s amazing how many people want to give their
families better food; they just don’t know how to go
about it,” Thompson said. “To me, teaching somebody
to do that is worth everything that I've already done.”



MARKETING & UTILIZATION GRANTS

Marketing & Utilization Grants provide necessary assistance to the research
and marketing needs of the state by developing new uses for agricultural
products and by-products, and by seeking efficient systems for processing
and marketing these products. It also is used to promote efforts that increase
productivity, provide added value to agricultural products, stimulate and

foster agricultural diversification and encourage processing innovations.

LA,
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MARKETING & UTILIZATION GRANTS

Amberland Foods, Inc. - Phase |

lami Fiest, Harvey

31,000
21,450

Grant Amount: $
Total Budget: S

Funds assisted in advertising, travel and sample products.

Amberland l'oods, Inc. will also develop marketing materials.

Amberland Foods, Inc. - Phase |l
Tami Feist, Harvey

47,000
82,000

Grant Amount: §

Total Budgct: $

Funds supportcd a website rcdcsign including programming,
SE®, placement, order pages, landing pages and outbound

mail costs [or the web. The site provides customers greater info
about the company and stimulates cross-sclling/ marketing with

successful out-of-state businesses.

Beach Pulses, LLC
Mat Chaudhey, Beach

GrantAmount: § 75,000
Total Budget:  § 2,500,000

Funds will be used to develop and implement a marketing plan
to promote North Dakota pulsc crops in multi-regional markets.
They will also assist in potentially acquiringa prominent
presence in the domestic market that is concentrated in

imported valuc-added pulscs.

Bessy's Best

Blaine Goetz, Sterling

103,282
110,709

Grant Amount: §

Total Budget: $

The grant funds will be used to pay for newspaper, radio and
billboard advertising; a permanent sign ncar the business
location; website development; and a mobile trailer for
marketing products. Additional funding was awarded to hire a

consultant to help develop a marketing and ad\'erlising plan.

c2renew, LLC
Corey Kratcha, Walcott

26,000
51,000

Grant Amount: §

Total Budget: S

Funds were used to launch production of the tirst customer
orders for biocomposites and to defray costs for meetings with

potential customers and marketing matcrial development.

Carbontec Energy Corporation
Mary Fletcher, Bismarck

Grant Amount; $

Total Budget: $

63,000
160,000

The funds will be used to conducta feasibility study on a
possible production location in Jamestown. This biobased project
would provide another use for North Dakota agricultural

biomass products and/ or biomass by-products.



Common Enterprise Development Corporation

Heidi Demars, Bismarck

GrantAmount: $ 10,500
Total Budget: s 130,000

The grant funds will be used to conduct a feasibility study and
explore the potential demand [or a consumer-driven local
foods cooperative in Bismarck-Mandan. The feasibility study
will provide the data needed in order to move forward with the
fundraising and membership eflorts of the steering committee

and subcommittecs,

Crunchfuls North Dakota, LLC
Deepa Senoy, Minot

GrantAmount: § 65,000
Total Budget: ~ § 240,000

The grant will defray the costs of travel expenscs and bar
development using North Dakota grown dry beans, peas, lentils
and chickpcas (DPLC). The DPLC bar would focus on bringing
new and nutritious foods, like healthy recovery snack bars,

in compliance with the Soldier F-ueling Initiative Program for

military subsistence,

Destiny Dairy

Ole Johnson, Stanton

GrantAmount: § 45,000
‘lotal Budget: $ 12,965

The grant will defray the costs of market testing nutrient-
rich compost [or home, retail and commercial uses, as well as
industrial and ficld applications. Funds will also be uscd for

advertising, promotions and attendance at trade shows.

MARKETING & UTILIZATION GRANTS 12

Endless Harvest

Steve Froehlich, famestown

GrantAmoumt: §

Total Budget: S

68,000
133,000

Funds will be used for hiring a controlled environment
agriculture (CAE) consulting firm which will explore funding
sources, provide representable lettuce types and educational
tours, and finalize specific design components of a proposed
facility. Lettuce grown will be uscd for developing market

prcscntation and consumecr prcf ercncces.

Heimbuch Potatoes, LLC
Chad Heimbuch, Cogswel!

Grant Amount: § 46,400
Total Budget: ~ § 225,000

Funds will be used for advanced promotion due to the
company’s increased potato and onion production, as well as
promote other product lines including additional colors of

potatoes and red and yellow onions.

Jamestown/Stutsman County Jobs Development Corp.

Connie Ova, Jamestown

GrantAmount: §

Total Budgct: $

76,000
150,000

Funds helped to defray the costs of hiring a consultant

to conduct a feasibility study of two 10-acre controlled
environment agriculture (CAE) leaflettuce production
facilities in the Jamestown area. This study showed that a CEA
facility is feasiblc and that Jamcstown is idcally positioncd on
major transportation routes. Opportunities could include
manufacturing, cducation, food processing and a CEA

knowledge center.



MARKETING & UTILIZATION GRANTS

North Dakota Trade Office
Dean Gorder, Iargo

42,500
122,500

GrantAmount: $

Total Budget: S

The grant will assist in the expansion of trade mission programs
by defraying the costs of additional databases for market
rescarch, Funds will also be used to purchase headsets for
multilingual translation when attending trade missions to bring

buyers of agricultural products to North Dakota.

Northern Corn Development Corporation

Tom Lilja, Fargo
GrantAmount: § 100,000
Total Budgct: $ 500,000

Funds were used to acquire professional accounting, marketing
and legal services to complete the business plan and acquire the

necessary equity to launch the enterprise.

Northern Plains Sustainable Agriculture
Society - Phase |

Karri Stroh, LaMoure
Grant Amount: § 15,566
Total Budget:  § 75,642

Funding supported outreach and relationship building with
end-users to better understand customer needs and develop a
marketing plan to meet those needs. The grant provided NPSAS
with first-hand k nowle dge on where the organic industry is
headed and what the role is within the industry. NPSAS had

the opportunity to highlight North Dakota organic products
and build awareness of the products available. The experience
provided up-to-date information on new trends and innovative

ideas and boosted thcir presence in the industry.

Progressive Nutrient Systems

Dan Ofson, Fargo

76,000
222,500

Grant Amount: §
Total Budget: S

Funds from this grant willbe used to demonstrate the technical
feasibility and the business/cconomic opportunity for a modular
distributed ammonia-based system. Analysis will also address the
system s impact on improving the economic and enviromnental

sustainability of North Dakota's corn/cthanol production,

Red River Commoaodities, Inc.

Daniel Hofland, targo
GrantAmount: § 126,000
Total Budget: ~ § 321,000

Funds were used for SunButter advertising in three major food
Imagazines, as well as development and distribution of two
press releases, two direct customer mail picces and a SunButter
ingredient marketing brochure. Funds will also help defray the

costs for attendance in upcoming food expos.



Ron Iverson, LLC

Ron Iverson, f'argo

GrantAmount: § 48,500
Total Budget: ~§ 100,000

Funds will be used to conduct a feasibility study for a cereal
plant that will manufacture regular, gluten free and organic
cereal for human consumption. Regular cercal will be
manufactured during Phase One, while the gluten free and
organic lines will be introduced during Phase Two. Products
will use North Dakota grown ingredients as much as possible,
If ingredicnts cannot be sourced locally, the company will work

with producers to grow them in the area.

West Dakota Feed & Seed

Kevin Kvamme, Ross

GrantAmount: § 40,000
Total Budget: 3 91,000

Funds will be used for attending national specialty crop
conventions to develop relationships with potential canary seed

buyers and exploring the potential canary seed tea market.

MARKETING & UTILIZATION GRANTS
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SUNBUTTER INGREDIENT MARKET LAUNCH

Red River Commodities

Created to become a new source of demand for North
Dakota’s sunflowers, SunButter has evolved into a way
to keep schools safe for allergy sufferers and enrich
other food products. Red River Commodities joined

the United States Department of Agriculture over a
decade ago to research the process of making SunButter,
and now the nut-free product is found on grocery
shelves in all major chains across the country, as well as
school cafeterias.

*“When a time came to decide whether we should
continue with SunButter or drop it as a good idea at

a bad time, the school lunch demand came along and
really kept us going,” said Dan Hofland, vice president
of marketing. “It was a key factor, and APUC played an
important part in keeping that demand going.”

APUC funds allowed SunButter to market itsclf through
brochures, print ads, webinars, and by defraying costs
for food expo attendance. The product had humble
beginnings, though. Hofland remembers filling the

back of his pickup with the product and taking it to

the grocery store’s customer service counter asking,
*Where do you want this?” when they didn’t have
distribution in place yet.

*“That’s how we got started, and once we proved
demand, then we were able to look into distribution,”

Hoftand said.

Now Red River Commodities is working to get
SunButter into industrial markets, and APUC funds are
again being used to market the product. Holland said
they are beginning to see results from those cfforts and
have high hopes for the future of SunButter,




NATURE BASED AGRITOURISM GRANTS

Nature Based AgriTourism Grants are for enterprises which seek to attract

visitors to a working farm or ranch, or any agricultural, horticultural or

agribusiness operation to enjoy, be educated or be involved in activities.

Eligible projects include but are not limited to farm or ranch tours, hands-
on chores, self-harvesting of produce, hunting operations, fishing operations

located on applicants’ land, bird watching, trail rides and corn mazes.




Black Leg Ranch
Jeremy Doan, McKenzie

11,000
24,300

Grant Amount: §

Total Budget: S

This grant assisted in the renovation of a ranch guesthouse.
'unds were used to buy windows, doors, staircase materials, loft
railing, and other improvements to the inside and outside of the
building to attract more guests. A scwer and drain field werc also
putin place. Tbis renovation allows Black Leg Ranch to house

additional people for hunting and other activities.

Cutbank Creek Farm
Peg&y Walter, Minot

Grant Amount: §$

10,500

Total Budget: $ 37,433

Funding supported the expansion of Cutbank Creck Farm,
located near Upham, to a U-Pick and larger commercial
produce garden operation. The grant will be used for marketing,
supplics and equipment for direct and wholesalc produce along

with the on-farm U-Pick.

Homesteaded in 1882, the Black Leg Ranch boasts a

true cowboy experience for tourists and history buffs
alike. Located near Sterling, the ranch provides hunting,
fishing and horseback riding activities along with a newly
renovated lodge. An APUC grant helped defray the costs of
improvements, including a bar and commerecial kitchen.

“This was a big, major project,” said owner Jeremy Doan.
“There is so much craftsmanship in this lodge, inside and
out.There’s a huge deck that wraps around it, a grand
entrance, and private rooms, and even a honeymoon suite
with a Jacuzzi.”

NATURE BASED AGRITOURISM GRANTS
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Dakota Sun Gardens

Bruce and Merleen Gussiaas, Carrington

10,500
20,000

Grant Amount: §

Total Budget: 3

The grant helped defray the costs of marketing the gardens
and winery. Funds also assisted in the building of another yard
attraction, supporting various plant materials and the purchase

of a berry variety for a unique wine production.

Red Trail Vineyard
Rodney Hogen, B(_sza/o

Grant Amount: § 4,725

Total Budget:  § 6,692

Funds were used to advance promotion of the vineyard through
the use of social media. This project helps inform new and
existing customers of special events, new products and in-house

specials throughout the year.

As a lifth generation ranch, guests often ask to view
pictures, talk to the family, and dive into the farmstead’s
history. Doan said since the ranch preceded North Dakota
statehood, and contains the remains of the ghost town of
Brittin, it has gained international appeal.

“We recently started the agritourism aspect, and it’s finally
taking effect. It’s been a slow process, growing that side,”
Doan said.



PROTOTYPE DEVELOPMENT & TECHNOLOGY GRANTS

APUC provides grants in two areas of agricultural innovations: Prototype
Development & Technology Grants. A huge array of equipment can be useful

in conducting business in rural living and agricultural economics. Prototype
Grants are restricted to inventions improving the operations of food processing
equipment and agricultural equipment.Technology Grants are to encourage
innovation and APUC maintains a broad view of technology, such as hardware,
software, devices or processes. Biotechnology will be considered as long as those

advances improve agricultural product utilization as food, feeds, fuels and fiber.




InvenTus, LL1C

Norm Miller, Mapleton
Grant Amount: § 26,000
Total Budget: s 122,000

Funds will be used to complete the clectronics and supply
portion of the prototype Hydro-Pack for a fuel economy cell to
be mounted with gas or diescl engines to conserve 30 percent
in fuel usage. Along with fuel conservation, the emissions arc
reduced accordingly. Commercialization will be done through

adealcr network,

StopSensor
Larry Mosbrucker, New Salem

GrantAmount: $ 25,000

‘lotal Budget: 5§ 53,300

Funds will help bring StopSensor to market with the production
of 15 prototype devices and related accessories to be used in
field tests and product demonstrations. These units will be
tested in a variety of agricultural applications from small farm
operations to agronomy centers. i'unds will also be used to
obtain a patent and to implement refinements to StopSensor’s

design based on field test results.

Sun Valley Container

Dan Hanson, Thompson

25,000
78,359

Grant Ameunt: §

Total Budget: 3

[Funds will be used for product design and prototype testing.
They will also be used for attorney and patent fees necessary

to obtain a patent statc-of-the-art plastic sugar container.

PROTOTYPE DEVELOPMENT & TECHNOLOGY GRANTS
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Trojan Hoist Company

Scott Thompson, Dickinson

25,000
60,000

GrantAmount: §

Total Budg et: $

The grant will assist in the development of a portable crane
system suited for agriculture uses. The project will include
presentations Lo prospective customers, devel opment of
mounting adapters, crane test samples and other refmements

based on customer feedback.

VEM, LLC
Ryan Raguse, Fargo

GrantAmount: § 28,500

Total Budget: $ 200,000

Funds will assist with prototype development, such as parts,
wages for seftware development, alpha/beta testing, patent/
trademark rescarch and patent applications far a mobile

application for autosteer technol ogy.

Warp Speed Torque Drive

Ernie Brookins, West Fargo

26,000
71,000

GrantAmount: $§

Total Budget: S

Funds will help finalize a production model of a hybrid drive
system retrotfit kit for an Allison transmission and advance it

from the prototype phase to the production model.
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PROTOTYPE DEVELOPMENT & TECHNOLOGY GRANTS

StopSensor is a device to help machinery or truck drivers
properly align their equipment in order to avoid missing the
mark when dumping grain, oil, cement or sand. As a farmer,
StopSensor inventor Larry Mosbrucker understood the
hassles and safety issues of repeatedly checking positioning
or needing a spotter.

“I knew there had to be a better way so a person doesn’t
have to jump in and out of the truck all the time to check
your positioning,” Mosbrucker said. “I had this problem my
wholelife in farming, and then it just clicked. But I knew the
product had to be something simple, not complicated ”

StopSensor was warmly welcomed in agriculture circles, and
is now ﬁnding success within the oil industry. Maosbrucker

was able to produce 15 prototype devices with APUC funds,
and he feels the product has potential to make a huge impact.

“It’s a big safety thing,” Mosbrucker said. “To talk to the safety
guys for the oil companies really was powerful. They really
thought this could be something.”

Rail representatives have also encouraged Mosbrucker
to design StopSensor for trains to load oil or other cargo
more efficiently.

“They have to stop and start 300 times per train,” Mosbrucker
said. “If I could build something to put them into the right
spot all the time, that would be incredible. That market is
gigantic, and what about all the other commodities with
trains? | mean, the sky’s the limit.”



SPONSORSHIPS

North Dakota 4-H Foundation
_M)/Iie Lavold, Fargo

$1,000 Sponsorship

APUC sponsored the 4-H Judging Contests program, which
helps educatc kids in effectively judging factors ranging from
traditional crops and land, beef and dairy to new initiatives

in science.

North Dakota FFA Foundation
Beth Bakke Stenhjem, Bismarck

$1,000 Sponsorship

APUC has been a 20-plus year sponsor to the National FFA
Organization (for merly Future Farmers of America) Proficiency

Award for Value-Added Food Processing.

Last year, the North Bakota 4-H Foundation budgeted over
$100,000 in direct program support for 4-H programs

in North Dakota, ranging from traditional crops and land
judging to new initiatives in science, such as robotics. The
organization relies on donors and sponsors to fund the
programs, and while many designate their gift to a particular
curriculum, unrestricted funds like those APUC provides

helps fill the gaps to meet the budget.

4.H enrolls over 5,000 members in traditional clubs and
reaches around 20,000 kids with short term programs like
camps or Science Day projects. North Dakota 4-H was
included in a recent study conducted by Tufts University
that evaluated the impact of community-based programs on
positive youth development, The study showed kids involved
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North Dakota FFA Foundation
Beth Bakke Stenhjem, Bismarck

$1,000 Sponsorship

APUC sponsored the Ag Processing Proficiency awards and
travel stipends for the proficiency {inalists to attend the National

FFA Convention held in Indianapolis, [N.

Williston Area Development Corp.

Ann Kvande, Williston

$1,000 Sponsorship

APUC hc]pc:d sponsor a showease event that focuses on
improving the economic and environmental performance of

agriculture in the Mon-Dak region.

in a program such as 4-H are more likely to avoid risky
behaviors such as drugs, drinking, smoking and bullying and
are more likely to graduate, attend college and give back to
their communities.

“The study showed kids in these programs have a heightened
sense of community awareness and citizenship, so within the
programs the life skills are happening, but there’s all this
other positive youth development that's happenirg,” My lie
Lavold, development director of the North Dakota 4-H
Foundation, said. “So every gift that we get helps us deliver
those things and impacts the kids, and that in turn comes
back and impacts our communities.”
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TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE GRANT

TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE GRANT

‘fechnical Assistance Grants are designed to maintain and expand
North Dakota's existing value-added busincsses. The grants are
intended to help busincsscs become more competitive, productive
and profitable. An eligible candidate for this grant is an existing
company located, operating and registercd in North Dakota that
adds value to agricultural products, including food manufacturers

and beverage manufacturers.

The Dakota Manufacturing Extension Partnership

Rand/v Schwartz, Bismarck

Grant Total ; 3
Total Budgct: s

35,529
52,835

Funds will be used for consultant and expert fees, travel,
materials, facilities, Mcrwyn concept testing for the companics,
and fiscal agent fees. The pilot project, [nnovation Engineering
Management System, assists three APUC qualified companies
(<50 cmployccs) to accclerate existing idcas and projects to
implementation and commercialization. It also works to create
meaningtul, unique ideas to grow the business with new and

current customers.

INNOVATING FOR AGRICULTURAL PRODUCT GROWTH

The Dakota Manufacturing Extension Partnership

The Dakota Manufacturing Extension Partnership
(MEP) has joined a national network to pilot the
Innovative Engineering Management System. It allows
established companies, including three APUC-qualified
companies, to get beyond traditional barriers and allow
their creative juices to flow again.

“With the support of APUC, we can get companies
exposed to how to create and implement ideas that are
meaningful and unique to the marketplace,” said MEP
director Randy Schwartz. “Most companies don’t have a
system or process in place to do this.”

Schwartz said 40 percent of companies are reactive,
while only 15 percent are proactive. The goal of
Dakota MEP is to reverse that trend,

“Ideally we’re trying to tell companies to become
proactive and less reactive in terms of how they create
ideas and how they engage and empower people to
move ideas forward,” Schwartz said. “It takes about
two years to fully implement this, This is designed for
companies that are going to continue to grow, invest
and develop their people.”

Dakota MEP has a successful track record, generating
companies an average of $ [.4 million in benefits and
impacts. In the second quarter of 2012, Dakota MEP
teamed with eight companies in which benefits and
impacts averaged almost $2 million per project.

“That’s what makes us a lot different than other
programs in that the size of the companies we're
working with can generate those kinds of benefits and
impacts,” Schwartz said. “It’s quite a bit different than
what a startup or relatively small company could do.”
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FUNDING SOURCES
$1,701,483
$1,518,859
$738,284
$300,000
General Funds Gas Tax Refund Federal Grants Authority Carry-Over Authority

APUC’s appropriation for the 201 1-201 3 biennium totaled §4,258,626 and was provided from the following sources:

* Up to $738,284 was authorized to be collected from the Agricultural Fuel Tax Fund, funded by a $.02 “check-of f”

of tarmers’ off-road gas tax refunds.
* $1,701,483 was appropriated dircctly from the state gencral fund.

* At the beginning of the biennium an additional $1,518,859 was authorized as carry-over authority from the

previous biennium.

Financials as of September 30, 2012

Expenditures Budgeted
Salaries & Benefits $ 183,964 $ 290,989
Operating Expenses $ 40,518 $ 96,790
Grant Commitments * $ 812,620 $ 3,870,847
Total Expenditures $1,037,102 $4,258,626

Remaining Appropriation: $3,221,524

* Includes C arry-Over Commitment
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—— State of

North Dakota

Office of the Governor

Jack Dalrymple

Governor

North Dakota’s Centers of Excellence and Centers of Research Excellence are
partnering with our research institutions and private sector companies to generate
jobs and new business opportunities.

The Centers program is one based on partnerships. It seeks to build on the
intellectual resources, high-tech equipment and training capacities of our colleges
and universities by allowing the private sector access to these valuable assets.
Currently, 115 companies have formed partnerships with the Centers of Excellence and
Centers of Research Excellence. These partnerships have leveraged $190 million of
matching funds for the state’s investment of $52.4 million in the Centers.

Overall, the Centers program has had an economic impact of $634.6 million since its
creation in 2005. As of June 30, 2012, the Centers program has produced over $14 in
economic impact for every $1 of state funds invested since their creation according
to a 2012 North Dakota State University study.

The Centers program and its partners generate results, having created over 1,080
direct jobs and an estimated payroll over $69.2 million.

North Dakota must continue to aggressively pursue research in our state’s target
industries. The Centers of Excellence and Research Excellence are key factors in
helping private sector businesses uncover promising new opportunities to keep
North Dakota’s economy growing and prosperous for future generations.

Sincerely,

Dby ryole-

Jack Dalrymple
Governor
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L. INTRODUCTION
The Centers of Excellence & Research Excellence are hubs of research and
development on the campuses of North Dakota’s colleges and universities,

partnering with private companies to commercialize new products and

services. The Centers explore research in the fields of energy, agriculture,

life sciences, aerospace, manufacturing and electronics.




ECONOMIC IMPACT

The Centers of Excellence program has
had $635 million in estimated total

economic impact to North Dakota’s economy.

This includes a direct impact of $216 million
generated by the Centers, grant recipients
and their partners.

ECONOMIC IMPACT

$635,000,000
Total impact

I
$216,000,000

Direct impact

$44,100,000
Award fundjs spent

$600 m

$400 m

$0 $200 m

$800m

FUNDS INVESTED
TO DATE

Since the first Centers of Excellence were
approved by the State Legislature in 2003,
a total of $69.9 million of state funds have
been invested in 25 Centers of Excellence

& Research Excellence and an additional

16 research, infrastructure and economic
development projects. Of these funds,
$44.1 million has been spent by the Centers
and grant recipients as of June 30, 2012.

CENTERS OF EXCELLENCE INVESTMENT
$69.9 million awarded through June 30, 2012

$17,482,817
Awaiting Disbursement

$8,313,779
Disbursed $44,134,504
(not Spent) Spent

The Centers of Excellence Program has contributed to the creation or expansion of
24 businesses. This includes nine new spinoff companies, ten companies that expanded to
North Dakota, and five North Dakota companies that have expanded within the state.
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MATCHING FUNDS

As of June 30, 2012 the Centers and grant
recipients have obtained over $189 million
of matching and leveraged funds. When
comparing matching and leveraged funds
received to award funds spent, a ratio better
than 4:1 is realized.

MATCHING & LEVERAGED
FUNDS RECEIVED

$116.2m

$90 m

$60m

$30m

Cash Cash In-Kind
Reserve

$100 m $95.3m _$94.6 m

$80m

$60m

$40m

$20m

Private Non- State
Private

JOBS IMPACTED

Centers and grant recipients impact
North Dakota jobs in several ways:

1) Jobs are created at the Centers themselves;

2) Private sector partners create new jobs as
a result of their projects with a Center; and

3) Centers facilitate job growth by providing
workforce training.

533
Jobs impacted
by Training
470
Private
Sector Jobs
79
Jobs created
at Centers

As of June 30, 2012, Centers, grant recipients
and their partners have created or contributed
to the creation of 1,082 jobs at an estimated
annual payroll of $69.2 million.

In FY12 the Williston State College
Petroleum Safety and Technology
Center provided training to over 6,900
individuals (duplicated count) for 338
oil and gas companies operating in
North Dakota.
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The following pages detail new awards approved in Fiscal Year 2012.

For details on previously approved Centers of Excellence and Centers of

Excellence Enhancement Grants, visit www.NDCentersOfExcellence.com.




CENTERS OF EXCELLENCE COMMISSION MEMBERS

The Centers of Excellence Commission oversees the selection process and administration of
Centers of Excellence, Centers of Excellence Enhancement Grants, Centers of Research Excellence,
Base Realignment Grants, and Limited Deployment Cooperative Airspace Projects (LDCAP).

The Centers of Excellence Commission, with assistance from the North Dakota Department of
Commerce, oversees the post-award monitoring of all Centers and grant recipients. The process
includes quarterly updates, site visits, third-party audits and an in-depth annual review of each
award. All grant recipients are required to complete at least six years of post-award monitoring.

One objective of the post-award monitoring activities is to measure the progress of an award
against the results proposed in its respective application for funding. Another objective of the
post-award monitoring activities is to ensure grant recipients are spending award funds in
compliance within the scope of their project and in accordance with program requirements.
Centers and grant recipients that demonstrate progress and compliance with program
requirements are funded in stages according to their respective Centers of Excellence
Commission-approved budget.

North Dakota Economic Development
Foundation Members

A. Mark Nisbet, Chairman
North Dakota Principal Manager
Xcel Energy, Fargo

B. Tim Hennessy, Vice Chairman
Regional President
US Bank, Bismarck

C. Jim Traynor
Director of Client/Channel Management
Intelligent InSites, Fargo

State Board of Higher Education Members

D. Duaine Espegard
Retired Regional President
Bremer Bank, Grand Forks

E. Terry Hjelmstad
Retired School Administrator
Minot Public Schools, Grand Forks

F. Don Morton
Senior Director
Microsoft, Fargo

| 81



Centers of Research Excellence

Beginning in 2011, the Centers of Excellence program sharpened its focus on research, development and
commercialization activities. The program was retitled Centers of Research Excellence and is now only
accessible by the University of North Dakota, North Dakota State University or related non-profit
foundations working in partnership with the private sector.

Although many of the criteria for approval are similar, a significant change was made to the matching
funds requirements. Under Centers of Research Excellence, a Center must obtain $2 of matching
funds for every $1 of state funds. Of the $2 of matching funds, at least one dollar must be cash, of
which at least fifty cents must be from the private sector. The 2011 Legislature allocated $5 million for
new Centers of Research Excellence. Centers and grant recipients that demonstrate progress and
compliance with program requirements are funded in stages according to their respective Centers of
Excellence Commission-approved budget. All numbers reflected in this report are as of June 30, 2012.

As of June 30, 2012 the Centers of Excellence Commission has approved two new Centers.

19|



Center for Technologically Innovative Processes and Products
North Dakota State University

Launch Date: August 2012  Award: $320,000 Matching & Leveraged Funds: $0

The Center will collaborate with private sector partners to perform research and development focused
on key stages of product development and production. The research and development activities are
aimed at identifying new materials and process that will generate higher quality, lower production
costs and improved profit margins. These outcomes may lead to new or improved products, new
markets and new technologies for future product development.

Center for Life Sciences Research and Applications
North Dakota State University

Launch Date: November 2012 Award: $1.35 million Matching & Leveraged Funds: $0

The Center will partner with Sanford Health to perform human genomics and bioinformatics
research focused initially on breast cancer, behavioral genetics and certain rare diseases in
children. The Center will also collaborate with other partners to research DNA-based forensics
and other DNA-based applications.

The potential outcomes of the Center’s research may be creation, development and testing/evaluation

of new diagnostics, treatments and related healthcare services that have commercial potential in
North Dakota and elsewhere.
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Base Realignment Grants

The 2011 Legislature allocated $3 million for Base Realignment Grants which are to be used for
infrastructure and economic development projects or programs to accommodate growth in proximity
to, or at, the Grand Forks Air Force Base. As of June 30, 2012 the Centers of Excellence Commission
has approved five Base Realignment Grants.

Global Hawk Sensor Operator Part Task Trainer
University of North Dakota

Launch Date: December 2011  Award: $878,204 Matching & Leveraged Funds: $9.787 million

This project teams the University of North Dakota Unmanned Aircraft Systems (UAS) Center of
Excellence with Northrop Grumman Corporation on the development of a training simulator prototype
for Global Hawk Block 40 sensor operators. This project also includes development of a business
capture plan and an unsolicited proposal to the U.S. Air Force to establish a Global Hawk Block 40
training program in Grand Forks. The proposed training program is expected to increase the number of
sensor operators trained and provide significant cost avoidance for the U.S. Air Force.

The Global Hawk is a high altitude long endurance UAS used for surveillance and as a communications
relay. The Grand Forks Air Force Base has been designated by the U.S. Air Force as the main operating
base for the Block 40 version of the Global Hawk. Six Global Hawk Block 40 aircraft are currently
based out of Grand Forks, with that number expected to grow to eleven.

|11 |



Integrating UAS into the National Airspace, Phase II
University of North Dakota

Launch Date: December 2011  Award: $255,440 Matching & Leveraged Funds: $151,000

This grant continues funding for an effort to position North Dakota as the prime location to research,
develop and deploy UAS, as well as accelerate UAS integration into the national airspace. An Airspace
Integration Team of North Dakota aviation professionals and experts was formed to facilitate these
efforts, initially focusing on the development of an unsolicited proposal to the Federal Aviation
Administration (FAA) to establish a UAS test site in North Dakota. The proposed test site would provide
a place for industry to research, develop and deploy UAS while demonstrating that UAS can operate
safely in the national airspace. The Airspace Integration Team has transitioned its efforts toward
answering a solicited request by the FAA for applications for National Test Sites.

Currently, UAS usage is dominated by military applications occurring in other parts of the world.
However, there is broad potential for civilian applications should the FAA approve their usage in
the national airspace. UAS is estimated to be a multi-billion dollar industry.

Joint Distributed Common Ground System
University of North Dakota Center for Innovation Foundation

Launch Date: December 2011  Award: $125,706  Matching & Leveraged Funds: $46,000

This grant provided funding for a study examining the feasibility of establishing a joint Distributed
Common Ground Station (DCGS) at the Grand Forks Air Force Base. A DCGS is a large, secure facility
where data from manned and unmanned aircraft are analyzed for various intelligence purposes. Other
opportunities such as establishing training and maintenance facilities at the Grand Forks Air Force
Base were also explored under the study. The overarching goal of the study was to identify promising
initiatives that align with Air Force needs that also provide cost savings and bolster activity at the
Grand Forks Air Force Base.

The University of North Dakota UAS Center of Excellence opened a MQ-1/9 UAS
Training Center at the Grand Forks Air Force Base in August 2011. The training
center will be used to train instructors, pilots and sensor operators for both civil and
military customers. Customs and Border Patrol is currently using the program for
recurrent pilot training.

[12]



Enhanced Use Lease for Grand Forks Air Force Base
University of North Dakota Center for Innovation Foundation

Launch Date: August 2012  Award: $486,750 Matching & Leveraged Funds: $0

This grant provides funding to advance opportunities identified in the “Joint Distributed Common
Ground System” feasibility study by submitting an Enhanced Use Lease application to the U.S. Air
Force. If the application is approved, the U.S. Air Force and Grand Forks County will enter into
negotiations for an Enhanced Use Lease at the Grand Forks Air Force Base.

Obtaining an Enhanced Use Lease would allow Grand Forks County to begin development activities on
approximately 200 acres of underutilized land at the Grand Forks Air Force Base, which could include
training and maintenance facilities as part of a UAS business park at the Grand Forks Air Force Base.
This base realignment grant provides funding for the Enhanced Use Lease application process as well
as the negotiation process, should the U.S. Air Force approve the initial application.

Airspace Integration Team UAS National Test Site Application
University of North Dakota

Launch Date: November 2012 Award: $500,000 Matching & Leveraged Funds: $0

Congressional language in a defense spending bill and the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA)
Reauthorization bill require the FAA to create six UAS test sites in the United States. The test sites will
provide a controlled environment where limited integration of UAS into the national airspace will occur.
The six test sites will serve as a blueprint for full integration of UAS into the national airspace.

In addition to providing considerable scientific benefits, the six national test sites are sure to become
economic engines that attract significant private sector activity. The UAS industry is estimated to be a
multi-billion dollar annual industry. As a result of the Congressional action, North Dakota’s Airspace
Integration Team has refocused its efforts on successfully navigating the formal selection process
administered by the FAA. The Airspace Integration Team will remain committed to establishing a
compelling case for North Dakota as a national test site, and this grant provides funding to facilitate
those efforts.
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Limited Deployment Cooperative Airspace Project

Unmanned Aircraft Systems (UAS) have had a tremendous impact on U.S. military strategy and
operations. There is also vast potential for UAS applications in civilian industries such as energy and
agriculture. Before UAS can be fully integrated into the national airspace for civilian usage, it must be
demonstrated that UAS can operate safely and in harmony with other aircraft in the national airspace.

The 2011 Legislature allocated $4 million for Limited Deployment Cooperative Airspace Projects
(LDCAP) that bring the University of North Dakota and North Dakota State University together in
partnership with MITRE, the research arm of the Federal Aviation Administration; NASA-Langley
Research Center; Draper Laboratory; the North Dakota National Guard; and Appareo Systems. As of
June 30, 2012 the Centers of Excellence Commission has approved two projects.

The goals of LDCAP include establishing a controlled experimental environment where live field tests

may be performed and evaluated. The data generated from the field tests will be used to identify and
address critical safety concerns regarding the full integration of UAS into the national airspace.
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Limited Deployment Cooperative Airspace Project
University of North Dakota

Launch Date: October 2011  Award: $2.7 million Matching & Leveraged Funds: $3.2 million

The University of North Dakota is collaborating with MITRE, NASA-Langley, Draper Laboratory and the
North Dakota National Guard to investigate the viability of Automatic Dependent Surveillance-Broadcast
(ADS-B) “sense and avoid” capability for UAS. The ability of a UAS to “sense and avoid” other aircraft is
a critical safety concern. ADS-B technology allows an aircraft, manned or unmanned, to broadcast
essential information about its location and to gather similar data from other nearby aircraft, allowing
pilots to make necessary adjustments to safely avoid other air traffic.

The University of North Dakota and its collaborators are also testing whether radar data can be used to
feed Traffic Information Service-Broadcast (TIS-B), which provides “ADS-B-like” surveillance for aircraft
not equipped with ADS-B technology.

Automatic Dependent Surveillance-Broadcast Miniaturization Program
North Dakota State University

Launch Date: November 2011 Award: $1.3 million Matching & Leveraged Funds: $2.424 million

North Dakota State University is collaborating with Appareo Systems to research and design a
miniaturized radio chip that uses ADS-B technology to broadcast an aircraft’s GPS position, altitude
and other relevant information to air traffic control and other aircraft. The availability and utilization
of this data is expected to enhance safe operations of all aircraft, manned and unmanned, in the
national airspace.

The radio chip under development by North Dakota State University and Appareo will offer reduced
power consumption, weight and cost as compared to current commercially available ADS-B radio chips.
These advancements increase the viability of broad implementation of ADS-B technology as part of a larger
strategy allowing for the eventual full integration of UAS into the national airspace.

“LDCAP is an extremely valuable test which addresses research questions

surrounding ADS-B and ground-based radars as a sense and avoid capability.”
- Frank Jones, NASA-Langley Research Center
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PROGRAM PARTNERS

AAG, Inc.

Access Energy, LLC

Aerosim

Agri ImaGIS

Akzo-Nobel Aerospace Coatings
Aldevron

Alliance Pipeline, Inc.

Altravax

Appareo Systems, LLC

Arkema, Inc.

Ashland, Inc.

Avenue Right

Avianax, LLC

Basin Electric Power Cooperative
Bayer Material Science
BenchMark Energy

Bobcat Company

Boeing

Boldmethod

BOSH Global Services

Catalyst Clincial Research, LLC
Caterpillar Remanufacturing Drivetrain
Clear Springs

Clinical Supplies Management
CombDel Innovations

Computer Modeling Group

Connecticut Center for
Advanced Technology

Continental Resources, Inc.
Corsair Engineering
CorsiTech

Crew Training International
Cutbank Creek Produce
Denbury, Inc.

DenYon Energy

Elinor Specialty Coatings
Eltron Research & Development, Inc.
FARRMS

Fisher & Associates

General Atomics Aeronautical Systems

General Dynamics

General Electric

GeoOptics, Inc.

Goodrich

Great Northern Power Development
Great Point Energy

Headwaters/Great River Energy-Blue
Flint Ethanol

Hess Corporation

High Plains Equipment

Impact Foundation

Infinity Development Partners, LLC
InnerGeo, LLC

Insitu, Inc.

IntegenX

Intraglobal Biologics, Inc.

Jeffrey Donohoe Associates, LLC
KBR, Inc.

Killdeer Mountain Manufacturing
Krisara Engineering

Kuraray Chemicals, Americas

L-3 Communications

LM Wind Power

Lockheed Martin

Marathon Oil Corp.

MaxWest Environmental Systems, Inc.
MDU

Merlin RAMCo, Inc.

Monsanto

Navigator Development Group, Inc.
Next Healthcare, Inc.

Nissan Chemical America Corp.
North Dakota Biodiesel

North Dakota Farmers Market &
Growers Association

North Star Organic Farms
Northrup Grumman Corporation
Novadigm Therapeutics
Operational Security Services, Inc.

Pedigree Technologies
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Poudre Valley Environmental Sciences, Inc.
PPG Industries

Pratt & Whitney Rocketdyne, Inc.
Praxis Strategy Group

Presco, LLC

Rapid Engines

ReconRobotics

Red Trail Energy

Riverbound Farm

Rockwell Collins

Schiltz Goose Farms, North, Inc.

SDS International, Inc.

SeaTec, LLC

SGC Energia

Shell Chemicals

Simlat

Somahlution

SpaceAge Synthetics

Spiritwood Station

St. Mary Land and Exploration Company
Starkey Laboratories, Inc.

Superior Edge

Technology Applications Group
Tesoro

Thompson Farm

TIORCO

Tri-State Aviation

Triton Systems, Inc.

United States Automotive Partnership
United Technologies Research Center
Unmanned Applications Institute Int'l.
URS Corporation

V2 Aerospace, Inc.

Western Research Institute

Whiting Petroleum Corp.

Wholesale Supply Company, Inc.
Wynntryst, LLC

Xcel Energy



University, College Launch Awards Match & Leveraged Funds

Centers of Excellence or related Foundation Date (in millions) Received (in millions)
Center for Innovation UND Jan 2005 $0.800 $3.565
Center for Advanced Electronics Design & Manufacturing NDSU Feb 2006 $3.000 $14.005
Dakota Precision Ag Center LRSC Feb 2006 $0.850 $1.890
National Center for Hydrogen Technology UND EERC Feb 2006 $2.500 $58.606
National Energy Center of Excellence BSC Feb 2006 $3.000 $7.292
Center for Surface Protection NDSU May 2006 $4.000 $8.682
Center of Excellence for Agbiotechnology: Oilseed Development NDSU May 2006 $3.500 $12.000
Enterprise University* VCSU May 2006 $1.000 $5.140
Petroleum Safety & Technology Center WSC May 2006 $0.400 $1.183
Unmanned Aircraft Systems Center of Excellence UND May 2006 $2.500 $15.838
Institute for Technology & Business gsrl]JteSrtrom Oct 2006 $1.150 $5.179
Center of Excellence in Life Sciences & Advanced Technologies UNDRF March 2007 $3.500 $4.005
Technology Incubator NDSU March 2007 $1.250 $5.038
Beef Systems Center of Excellence NDSU Oct 2007 $0.800 $2.000
Center for Biopharmaceutical Research & Production NDSU June 2009 $5.015 $6.262
Center for Integrated Electronics Systems NDSU June 2009 $2.050 $3.510
Center of Excellence for Passive Therapeutics UNDRF June 2009 $2.650 $6.554
Center of Excellence in Space Technology & Operations UND June 2009 $1.000 $0.165
Petroleum Research, Education & Entrepreneurship Center UND June 2009 $3.000 $6.604
SUNRISE BioProducts Center of Excellence UND June 2009 $2.950 $3.854
Center for Sensors, Communications & Control NDSU Jan 2011 $2.800 $0.014
Entrepreneurial Center for Horticulture DCB June 2011 $0.400 $0.915
Center for Advanced Technology Development and Commercialization NDSU Nov 2012 $3.900 $0.000
Enhancement Grants
Center for UAS Research Education & Training UND June 2010 $2.754 $1.358
Research 1 Expansion NDSU Jan 2011 $4.000 $0.293
North Dakota UAS Airspace Initiative UND March 2011 $0.100 $0.007
UAS Software & Curriculum Development UND March 2011 $0.600 $0.193
Certificate Programs for Full Motion Video UND Center
& Activity-Based Intelligence Analysis for Innovation gt i U
Grand Forks Air Force Base Realignment Business Transition Program UND June 2011 $0.200 $0.055
Materials & Nanotechnology Center NDSU Sept 2011 $1.000 $0.000
V2 Aerospace, Inc. Technical Assistance UND Center Sept 2011 $0.370 $0.103
for Innovation
Law Enforcement and Public Safety Agency Small UAS Course UND May 2012 $0.230 $0.048
Centers of Research Excellence
Center for Technologically Innovative Processes & Products NDSU Aug 2012 $0.320 $0.000
Center for Life Sciences Research & Applications NDSU Nov 2012 $1.350 $0.000
Base Realignhment Grants
Integrating UAS into the National Airspace, Phase I UND Dec 2011 $0.255 $0.151
Global Hawk Sensor Operator Part Task Trainer UND Dec 2011 $0.878 $9.787
Joint Distributed Common Ground System UND Dec 2011 $0.126 $0.046
Enhanced Use Lease for Grand Forks Air Force Base UND Aug 2012 $0.487 $0.000
Airspace Integration Team UAS National Test Site Application Proposal UND Nov 2012 $0.500 $0.000
Limited Deployment Cooperative Airspace Project
Limited Deployment Cooperative Airspace Project UND Oct 2011 $2.700 $3.200
Automatic Dependent Surveillance-Broadcast Miniaturization Program NDSU Nov 2011 $1.300 $2.424
GRAND TOTALS $69.931 $189.991

*Enterprise University concluded its operations and returned $200,545.51 of its original $1 million Centers of Excellence Award to the North Dakota general fund.
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BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT -
BY THE NUMBERS

17

New businesses or expansions
completed since January 2011

> 2,318

Total employment (direct/indirect)
projected through 2017

> $600 million

Personal income projected through 2017

> §2.5 billion

Economic output projected through 2017

> $127 million

State tax revenue projected through 2017

84

New projects actively considering
North Dakota or who have an interest level
in the state since January 2011

30

Company site visits to consider North Dakota
as a business location since January 2011




United Pulse Trading

Although the growing oil industry has been
getting a lot of attention in North Dakota lately,
agriculture is still king as the state’s largest
industry. For United Pulse Trading, North Dakota
is a prime location to capitalize on the growing
market for dried peas, beans and other products
known as pulse crops. “We are the number

one producer of dried peas and lentils,” says
Eric Bartsch, general manager for United Pulse
Trading, a value-added pulse crop processer. “In
2000 we had less than 100,000 acres in North
Dakota. Now we are close to 700-800,000 acres
of dried peas, lentils and chickpeas.”

In 2007, the company opened its processing
facility in Williston, ND, close to the source of
the crop fields. The pulse crops are processed,
cleaned and color sorted, making them ready for
the table. The company packages and ships the
products to over 100 countries, including India

and countries in North Africa and the Middle East.

Bartsch sees North Dakota as one of their key
factors of success. “We have facilities located
in six countries around the world. We have a
pretty far reach. Of all the areas where we’ve
expanded, North Dakota has really been one of
the best places.”

Doing Business Better » »

‘ (; Of all the areas where

we’ve expanded, North Dakota

has really been one of the

best places.

Eric Bartsch
United Pulse Trading

United Pulse Trading received assistance from
the state of North Dakota to get the Williston
facility built and operating. “We used the North
Dakota Development Fund from the North Dakota
Department of Commerce, and the PACE loan
program through the Bank of North Dakota.

It's really programs like these that have made
North Dakota a perfect environment for
expanding business.”

United Pulse itself is growing and looking to
expand. The company currently employs 35
people in Williston with additional staff in
Bismarck. A new United Pulse processing facility
in Minot is expected to be in operation by first
quarter 2013, milling another 100,000 metric
tons of area producers’ split peas and chickpeas
while adding approximately 40 new jobs. The
North Dakota Department of Commerce worked
closely with United Pulse and the Minot Area
Development Corporation to assist United

Pulse with several finance and tax incentives
available to the company. “The programs and
the environment in the state are pro-business,”
Bartsch says. “It really gives a company an
advantage to expand here.”



TOURISM -
BY THE NUMBERS

$4.8 billion

Contributed by tourism to the
state’s economy in 2011

$119

Returned in visitor spending for
every $1 invested in advertising
the state

#1

In the nation for tourism expenditure

growth at 14.9% compared to national
average of 6.8%

10 million

Persons reached by Tourism’s
online presence

20%

Increase in the hotel sector since 2010

3,667

Additional rooms available to travelers at 43
new properties throughout the state



Doing Business Better » »

‘ ‘ We knew that if Regent
were to become a destination, we
had to have a motel. If it wasn’t
for the help of the North Dakota
Department of Commerce, we

wouldn’t have had a start.

Gary Greff
Enchanted Castle, Regent, ND

Enchanted Highway and Enchanted Castle

When the highway to the rural town of Regent, North
Dakota was upgraded from gravel to pavement, Gary
Greff wondered how he could encourage travelers
on the nearby interstate to make a detour and stop
at the community’s local businesses. When Greff
noticed people stopping their vehicle to take pictures
next to a welded statue of a man holding a hay bale
created by a local farmer, an idea was born.

“Id never laid a bead of weld in my life before |
started this project,” Greff said. “But you can do
anything you want if you set your mind to it. I'm living
proof of that.”

The first sculpture, The Tin Family, was erected
in 1991, and others soon followed. Currently, the
Enchanted Highway boasts seven sculptures,
including “Geese in Flight,” which is listed in the
Guinness Book of World Records as the world’s
largest scrap metal sculpture.

Since the sculptures have been erected, a recent
vehicle count shows traffic on the highway has
dramatically increased.

The Enchanted Highway Gift Shop sign-in book
records visitors from all 50 states and many
different countries. “Regent hasn’t gotten any
bigger, so we know the Enchanted Highway had

its influence,” said Greff, who now heads the
Enchanted Highway Foundation. “I've had more
than one person say they would not be in Regent if
it wasn’t for the Enchanted Highway.”

With support from the North Dakota Department
of Commerce’s Tourism Division, the Enchanted
Highway Foundation is developing a hotel, bringing
additional economic activity to the area. The
Enchanted Castle opened in 2012 and is drawing
tourists, hunters and workers from the region.

The Enchanted Highway is located off Interstate
94, exit 72 east of Dickinson, and extends for 32
miles south to Regent. There is no cost to view
the sculptures, but visitors are encouraged to
visit the Enchanted Highway Gift Shop and make
a donation. For more information, visit
www.enchantedhighway.net



COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT -
BY THE NUMBERS

24,000

People impacted by Community
Development and Community
Services Block Grants

632

Families and individuals in the
Relocation program who notified us
of their move to North Dakota

70

Families with disabilities assisted with
Shelter Plus Care housing assistance grants

82

Homes rehabilitated with Community
Development Block Grants and HOME Program

144

New affordable housing and rental units
with Community Development Block Grants
and HOME Program

244

Proposed jobs from Community Development
Block Grants projects




Dale’s Clothing

Dale’s Clothing has been a landmark in downtown
Bowman, North Dakota for 38 years. When the
original owners, Dale and Martha, were ready to
retire, the community worried that it would lose one
of the few clothing shops in the region.

“Bowman has a thriving, diverse economy, but
losing Dale’s Clothing would’ve been a big loss to
the community,” explains Ashley Alderson, Bowman
County Development’s executive director. “We used
the Renaissance Zone and other development

incentives to help another local family purchase this

successful business.”

Dave and Tana Smolnikar of Bowman owned a
trucking business, but after Dave was involved in

a life-threatening accident, they decided it was
time for a change and saw opportunity in Dale’s
Clothing store. “In 12 weeks, we went from owning
a trucking company to owning a clothing store and
embroidery shop,” explains Tana, recounting the
event. “I believe there was an upper hand in the
whole situation.”

Doing Business Better » »

‘ C There is a lot of monetary

commitment when you purchase a
business. | think all the (assistance)
programs are absolutely amazing
and we couldn’t have done any of

it without their help. % 9

Dave and Tana Smolnikar
Dale’s Clothing, Bowman, ND

To help with the initial investment, the Smolnikars
utilized business investment programs from the
state, including the Renaissance Zone program
from the North Dakota Department of Commerce,
which provides tax incentives to help revitalize
North Dakota’s downtown areas and keep

them vibrant.

“I don’t think (buying the business) would’ve been
possible without it,” says Tana of the Renaissance
Zone program. “There is a lot of monetary
commitment when you purchase a business. |
think all the (assistance) programs are absolutely
amazing and we couldn’t have done any of it
without their help.”

When asked about the name of the store, the
Smolnikars insist they have no plans to change
the name from Dale’s Clothing. “It's been Dale’s
Clothing for 38 years,” says Tana. “We didn’t
change the name; it's an icon down here in
southwestern North Dakota.”



WORKFORCE
DEVELOPMENT -
BY THE NUMBERS

8,000

Out-of-state job seekers
connected to the Experience ND
Relocation Program

632

Families and individuals assisted
since July 2008 in relocating to
North Dakota

109

Businesses participating in Operation Intern

348

Internships with funding assistance from
Operation Intern

210,000

Views on Career Conversations podcast videos

5,500

Students and parents reached with Youth
Forward'’s information on North Dakota
education and job opportunities




Spectrum Aeromed

Transporting medical patients by airplane or
helicopter presents unique challenges. Medical
equipment needs to be accessible, yet secure.
Compact equipment design is important due to the
tight spaces of smaller aircraft.

Spectrum Aeromed, based in North Dakota and
recently recognized as one of Inc. Magazine’s 500
fastest-growing companies, provides smart solutions
for air ambulance equipment. From stretchers to
oxygen storage, the company equips aircraft from
around the world with life flight systems.

Eighty percent of Spectrum Aeromed’s business
comes from international sales, with many clients
based in South America, the Middle East, Europe
and Russia. All of Spectrum Aeromed’s operations
are in Fargo near Hector International Airport

with the exception of two small customer service
operations in Washington state and Germany.

The company’s customers appreciate the ease of
international travel and transactions out of Fargo.
“So much of our business is international that if

we bring in an aircraft from Brazil, Mexico or even

Doing Business Better » p

‘ C NDSU and UND are world-
class educational institutions.
Being able to hook into those
sources of talent is really a key

point of differentiation. It allows

us to do some things here that we

really couldn’t do elsewhere.

Dean Atchison
Spectrum Aeromed

Canada, they can do customs right here,” says
Spectrum Aeromed CEO and President
Dean Atchison.

Atchison cites the business-friendly climate of North
Dakota as one of the factors contributing to the
company’s success. “North Dakota gets it, from the
governor on down,” Atchison says. “We don’t need
to show entrepreneurs how to do things. We need to
set up programs and then let them be successful. |
think that’s what really happens in North Dakota.”

Spectrum Aeromed has been able to employ five
interns thanks to the North Dakota Department

of Commerce’s Operation Intern, a cost-sharing
program that encourages businesses to employ
and train interns. The company has also developed
relationships with local universities for workforce
recruitment. “North Dakota State University

and University of North Dakota are world-class
educational institutions,” states Atchison. “Being
able to hook into those sources of talent is really a
key point of differentiation. It allows us to do some
things here that we really couldn’t do elsewhere.”



BUSINESS & INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT

APUC — The Agricultural Products Utilization Commission (APUC) administers grants for the development of new and expanded uses for
North Dakota agricultural products.

» Total sponsored projects from July 2011 - » Total funding provided: $1.6 million
December 2012: 41

CENTERS OF EXCELLENCE & RESEARCH EXCELLENCE — These hubs of research and development at North Dakota
colleges and universities partner with private companies to commercialize new products and services. Detail reflects total impacts through
June 30, 2012.

> Total state dollars invested: $44.1 million » 1,082 new direct jobs

» Total private dollars spent: $95.3 million » More than $4 raised for every $1 awarded

» Total economic impact: $634.6 million

DEVELOPMENT FUND — Providing important gap financing for companies starting or expanding in North Dakota, the Development
Fund coordinates efforts between all financial sources, business and community.

> Invested $7.8 million through 33 loans in 15 cities » Total dollars leveraged for each $1 funded: $14.03
since January 1, 2011 » Total childcare loans accessed since July 2009: 19
» Total jobs at time of funding: 693 » Total childcare dollars loaned since July 2009: $1.011 million

» 24 month job creation: 890

EMPOWER NORTH DAKOTA — The EmPower Commission’s 2012 Policy Updates and Recommendations report was recently
completed in preparation for the 2013 Legislative session.

» EmPowerND.com

ENERGY EFFICIENCY & RENEWABLE ENERGY — Commerce is involved in many activities to promote energy efficiency in the

public and private sectors and to facilitate the development and use of renewable energy sources within the state.

> Total energy grants: 323 » Number of housing units weatherized: 1,654
> Total funding provided: $59.1 million » Blender pumps installed: 210
» Number of public buildings retrofitted: 197 = Increase in gallons of fuel blended with ethanol sold: 15.5%

INNOVATE ND — innovate ND provides education and support to help people turn business ideas into reality in North Dakota.

» Total new businesses in operation or development in state: 135

RENAISSANCE ZONES — By providing incentives to investors to find new uses for existing buildings, Renaissance Zones are helping
to attract new businesses and housing to downtown areas across the state. Detail reflects activity from July 2011 through December 2012.

» Total cities participating: 55 » Total approved/completed projects: 1,172/923

SMALL BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CENTER (SBDC) — The Small Business Development Center provides business
assistance in the form of counseling, training and research that results in job creation/retention and economic wealth. Detail reflects activity
from July 2011 through December 2012.

» Businesses served: 2,927 » Jobs created: 1,440

» Hours of consultation: 18,985 » Jobs retained: 1,021

» Businesses started: 262 » Total capital infused into small businesses in 2011-12:
$208.8 million

TOURISM — The efforts of our statewide hospitality industry, business partners and the Tourism Division make tourism the third-
largest industry in North Dakota.

» Forevery $1 invested in advertising the state, $119 was » Tourism expansion and infrastructure grants awarded funds to
returned in visitor spending. 16 projects, with results including new lodges, campgrounds,
» North Dakota’s tourism industry leads the nation in art and historic site expansions and a winery tasting room and
growth with visitor expenditures increasing to 14.9% vs. event center.
national average of 6.8%. Increases were also seen in » Through December 2012, Tourism’s online presence had
travel-generated payroll (7.6%) and travel-generated tax reached a unique audience of more than 10 million.
revenue (6.1%). » Tourism Development in North Dakota reported a 20% increase
» Tourism contributed $4.8 billion to the state’s economy in the hotel sector since 2010. With 43 new properties built
in 2011. throughout the state, an additional 3,667 rooms were available

to travelers.



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANTS (CDBG) — CDBG provides financial assistance to local governments
through grants and loans for public facilities, housing rehabilitation and economic development projects benefiting low to very low
income individuals.

» Total homes rehabilitated: 46 » Total dollars expended in match funds: $20.1 million
» Total new affordable housing units: 67 » Number of residents impacted: 24,065
» Total proposed jobs from projects: 244

COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANTS (CSBG) — CSBG is an anti-poverty grant addressing low income challenges such

as employment, education, income management, housing, emergency services, nutrition, self sufficiency and health.

» Total CSBG funds distributed to communities in > 24,086 residents in 12,805 families impacted
2011-12: $6.2 million

EMERGENCY GRANTS — Through federal funding, Commerce delivers financial assistance to facilities and programs within North
Dakota which provide temporary shelter to homeless individuals.

» More than $1.06 million was awarded in 2011-2012 to » Over $450,000 from the Shelter Plus Care Program was provided for
27 homeless and domestic violence providers. housing assistance grants to more than 70 families with disabilities.

HOME PROGRAM — The North Dakota HOME program has two primary activities: home owner assistance and rental unit
production and assistance.

» Affordable rental units produced: 77 » Total funding provided for HOME rental, acquisition, rehabilitation

» Homebuyers assisted: 151 and construction: $3.2 million

» Single family homes rehabilitated: 36 » Other funds leveraged for the development of affordable housing:
$12.1 million

COMMUNITY SERVICES INITIATIVES ALSO INCLUDE:

» Backpacks for Kids » Manufactured Housing
» Childcare Grants » North Dakota Census Office
» Homeless Grants

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT

CAREER CONVERSATIONS — career Conversations connects students, parents and educators to professionals with perspectives
on life in high-demand careers, using short videos profiling their occupation.

» Number of views: 210,000 » Career Conversations videos posted as of December 2012: 60

EXPERIENCE NORTH DAKOTA — Experience North Dakota provides one-to-one personalized assistance and connects out-of-state
job seekers with career opportunities, training, and relocation information such as housing, community resources and recreation.

» Over 8,000 out-of-state job seekers in the Relocation » 632 families and individuals in the Relocation program
Program database who notified us of their move to North Dakota
» 87,000 unique visitors to ExperienceND.com since July 2011

OPERATION INTERN — The Operation Intern grant program expands internship opportunities available with North Dakota employers.

» Businesses participating: 109 » Number of interns who notified us they were hired for full-time
» Number of internships funded: 348 jobs from 2007-2012: 78

YOUTH FORWARD — Youth Forward connects people ages 12-24 to a future in North Dakota by promoting jobs, entertainment,
education and opportunities in our state.

» People reached with career and education opportunities information:
®= Student leaders and advisors: >2,000 = Rural high school students and parents: >5,500

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS ALSO INCLUDE:

» AmeriCorps » Workforce Enhancement Grants
» Talent Initiative » Governor’'s Workforce & HR Conference

10
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Arrive a Guest. Leave a Legend.



What maokes
up tourism in

North
Dakota?

Governor Jack and First Lady Betsy Dalrymple North Dakota Economic Base 2011
(NDSU: in billions)
“North Dakota hosted more than Aad 7E><Dorts $1.25 _
17 million visitors in 2012, each 1 Agriculture $7.8
enjoying North Dakota’s rich Manufacturing

’ | $2.42
history, vibrant culture and

legendary experiences. Tourism is
our third-largest industry and it's
helping to grow our economy one
trip at a time. We invite you to
Arrive a Guest. Leave a Legend.”

Dol il

A message from Commerce Commissioner Alan Anderson

Tourism $4.8 Qil $7.16

Governor Jack and First Lady Betsy Dalrymple

Tourism is one of five industries the North Dakota Department of Commerce targets to broaden the state’s
economic base, create new wealth and generate high-paying, career-track jobs.

Tourism is the third-largest contributor to North Dakota’s economic base.
Tourism industry growth is visible in increased visitors and through the
number of new hotels constructed across the state.

Clearly, North Dakota tourism efforts are paying off. We've been marketing

North Dakota as a great place to live, work, play and conduct business.

Of course, tourism focuses on the fun part — playing in North Dakota. As

commissioner of the Department of Commerce, I'm proud of the results our

tourism efforts have brought and look forward to partnering with industry to Al AT TR RIS BT S A AP
continue growth into the future. day on the water.
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. 330000 @

o Attributed to tourism
(1 out of every 12 jobs in ND)

’

357 Festivals
& Events

A message from Tourism Director Sara Otte Coleman

It isn’t just oil that’s bringing people to North Dakota. Tourism pumps millions of
dollars into every county and continues to be one of the state’s leading industries.
For the past five years, traveler spending in North Dakota has grown faster than the
national average.

Events and businesses serving North Dakota’s visitors also improve our residents’
quality of life. The scenery and fun displayed in our advertising and earned media
pieces not only attract visitors, but help create a positive image for our state,
which, in turn, attracts workforce and families. Our photography has been used in
countless articles about the state and websites as far away as Australia.

Tourism is strong and research shows that dollars spent marketing North Dakota are
an excellent investment. The US Travel Association economic research shows we
continue to lead the nation in growth and growing faster than the national
average. Our Tourism Satellite Account (TSA) shows more leisure and business
Sara Otte Coleman and husband,
travel statewide. Visitor stats show growth in attractions, accommodations, border GEr:
crossings and deplanements. Our efforts in international marketing, outdoor
promotions, group travel, public relations and social media engagement are helping build our Legendary brand
and attract more visitors. Tourism development efforts are focused on expanding the experiences we have
ND Visitor Spending 2011 to offer residents and out-of-state visitors alike. Our grant
(IHS Global) programs have helped open eight new tourism operations.
Forty-two new hotels have opened in North Dakota in the
past two years, including 11 in communities east of US Highway
83. Our hotels have enjoyed strong demand but we are now
starting to see decreases in occupancy rates. More available
rooms mean more opportunity for new visitors to North Dakota.
The growth is exciting and our team is passionate about
working with our industry partners to continue the progress.

Food 34%

Shopping 22%

Entertainment
10%

Transportation 11%

Accommodations 17% §M¢ W@ 60 me




Advertising North Dakota

North Dakota advertises in target markets in order
to drive travel results. North Dakota Tourism
currently targets markets in Minnesota, Wisconsin,
South Dakota and Montana and the Canadian
provinces of Manitoba and Saskatchewan.
Advertising messages are selected for these
markets based on research and motivating traffic.

2012 Advertising Investment
$1,942,406

Sponsorships 2%
Radio 5%

Out-of-Home Television 32%

10%

Newspaper
14%

Magazine 17% Digital 20%

Legendary Strategy - United States

This strategy is targeted toward audiences in
Minnesota, Wisconsin and South Dakota and is
used in national media buys.

Television: Broadcast in six markets, direct response
in eight markets.

Print: Nine publications with a circulation of
2,486,747, an additional 9,887,082 in circulation
through five travel directory ads.

Newspaper: Inserts distributed in all North Dakota
papers and 35 US and Canadian papers reaching a
circulation of 2.3 million.

Out-of-Home: Five weeks of signage at Target
Field, nine weeks of billboards and two months of
truckside billboards in the Minneapolis area.

Border/City Experience Strategy

This strateqy is targeted

toward Canadian

audiences in Manitoba

and Saskatchewan,

Canada, Minnesota,

eastern Montana and

northern South Dakota.

Television: Broadcast

in two near-border

markets.

Print: Three

publications with a

circulation of 326,390.

Newspaper: In addition to the 2.3 million
circulation summer insert, a fall insert was
distributed in eight Canadian papers reaching
436,000 households.

Radio: Two weeks of radio in three markets.
Out-of-Home: Seven-week campaigns of billboards,
bus wraps and transit signage in Winnipeg and
Regina.

Magazine ad

‘L“‘

Legendary Niche Strategy

Messages specifically targeted to specialty
audiences regionally and nationally.

Birding: Three publications with a circulation of
76,092.

Golf: Two publications with a circulation of
141,000.

Hunting/Fishing: 12 weeks of cable in 11
Minnesota, Wisconsin, South Dakota and North
Dakota markets, Jason Mitchell Outdoors
sponsorship, UND versus Minnesota men’s hockey
sponsorship with Fox Sports North/Fox Sports
Wisconsin and one publication with a circulation
of 110,000.

Motorcycling: Five publications with a circulation
of 82,090.

NNoriPbese

LEGENDARY
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Digital Advertising 2012 Tourjs ARy
M Annyy, Re
Digital marketing results for North Dakota show Port
click-through rates for online ads and open-rates
on emails are far above industry norms. Traffic to
the NDTourism.com website also reflects the R . 1
investment being made through all types of media Advertlsmg is 3 Solid Return
in target markets. on Investment
+ Digital ad click-through: .22% vs. 0.08% industry
average Tourism'’s total advertising investment of $1.9 million
+ Email open rate: 20.43% vs. 7% industry average returned $236.9 million or $119 in visitor spending
* NDtourism.com: for every $1
* 15% of sitg traffic.originates from Canada invgsted. The A lnvestth ARt ey S B ek
and other international markets Arrive o Guest. Noan ROI
* 28% of traffic comes from North Dakota Leave a Legend.
+ 56% of traffic from other US states campaign has ;88; i] : :ég
shown improved 5004 $1 = $55
Cooperative Advertising effectiveness 2005  $1=$81
from 2010- 2007 $1 = $123
Seven in-state partners cooperatively advertised in 2011, which — $1 = 391
i i i had 3 1:91 2012 $1 = $119
newspaper inserts and email promotions developed
by North Dakota Tourism in 2012. return.

2012 Incremental Trips Generated
by Tourism Advertising
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Advertising North Dakota generated 1.4 million trips in 2012. The number of
travelers visiting North Dakota has consistently increased due to advertising and
promotion.

Email promotion




Making North Dakota an International Success

International travelers find

countries .
great interest and appeal Promotion Successes 2012

requestl ng VlSltor in North Dakota’s culture, * Exposure Through RMI - Featured

. . e S e T in Real/ America quide which will
information on 3

Dakot (o | ith be distributed at shows in
O G YR Australia, New Zealand and the

industry, focusing on Nordic region.

international tour operators, - One-Stop Branding - Supporting

travel agents and media Brand USA efforts for a central

representatives. In website and magazine that

cooperation with Rocky promotes US travel to international
visitors.

Mountain International (RMI),
North Dakota is featured as
part of a3 marketing effort

+ Video Vignettes - Developed
one, two and three minute
videos showcasing North Dakota

around an international for use at international shows.
experience that includes the « EAM tours - Hosted 29

states of Idaho, Montana, familiarization tours in conjunction
South Dakota and Wyoming. with Rocky Mountain International

(RMI) since 2011.

United
States

North Dakota advertising has
been translated into Spanish,
Danish, Swedish, Finnish,
Norwegian, Japanese, French

Canada AR

International Markets

United
Klngdom + Sweden <+ Luxembourg

+ Denmark < France
+ Iceland  ltaly
« Finland - United Kingdom

Germany - Germany -+ Australia

+ Belgium < New Zealand

* Norway -+ Netherlands

International print ad

Brazil

@InternationalND International North Dakota
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Promotion Successes 2012

» “Legendary” branded professional
angler Jim Carroll was featured in
two episodes of "7he Next Bite
with Keith Kavsfecz” filmed in
North Dakota, as well as several
videos on hunting and fishing
being shared through social
media.

* Sport Show Success - 16 partners
participated in promoting outdoor
recreation at eight sport shows,
which have resulted in increased
bookings and media features.

+ Brad Durick Outdoors - Credits
business growth to opportunities
such as a Tourism Marketing
Grant and participation as a
booth partner at an Omaha sport
show where he filled his June
schedule for quided channel
catfishing on the Red River.

Showcasing
Legendary Outdoor
Adventure

North Dakota continues to
provide outdoor experiences that
inspire, exhilarate and excite our
visitors. Tourism promotes the
rich outdoor culture of North
Dakota with key agency partners
from North Dakota Game and
Fish and North Dakota State
Parks, as well as a wide variety
of stakeholders providing visitor
experiences.

@0OutdoorsND

207 HD ®
2 TOUrISm Ann ¥ RY
€port
Magazine ad

QOutdoors North Dakota

Promotion Successes 2012

+ Relationship Building - Presented
North Dakota Group Travel at
seven travel shows and scheduled
more than 250 appointments
with operators.

* Group Promotion - Promoted
North Dakota to new group travel
operators in Vermont, Michigan
and Virginia. As a result, Telgen
Tours, Vermont, created a new
group tour and brought more
than $10,000 in direct spending
during its visit.

» Dream Destination - "7he
Dakotas” itinerary is being
promoted in national group tour
publications, websites and
through social media.

» Group Travel - Hosted two tour
company FAMs in 2012, resulting
in 190 people returning to the
state.

Going Group in North Dakota

The Group Travel Marketing program specializes in promoting and
coordinating travel to North Dakota by creating and maintaining
relationships with tour operators, group travel planners, banking
professionals, reunions and other travel groups. Expos, familiarization
tours and marketing sales missions are avenues for stakeholders to
represent product and capture a group tour audience.

@GroupTravelND

On-line ad

Group Travel North Dakota; | Love Motorcycling in North Dakota




CELEBRATING 10 YEARS OF

L ESGRES NTTD AR £Ye

* Visits go up significantly at state parks and

2002 Launched Legendary brand NUAENAN

2004 Enhanced Legendary campaign
launched in the US and Canada

Legendary campaign capitalized on
the Lewis & Clark bicentennial

2006 Launch of Legendary border/city e

experience and niche strategies

The Legendary brand grows with - o L L 0 sl al
2007 new website and campaign

Legendary campaign adds social media,
2008 more online and out-of-home advertising :

Launch of | am Legendary! RU?
campaign theme :

2011 | am Legendary! RU? campaign continues
with expanded partner participation T T TR T A '

----------------------------------------------------- = + RULegendary.com and social media
! campaign used as part of media mix.

Arrive @ Guest. Leave a Legend. launches, !
20 12 10-year Legendary book unveiled

NNoriPbese
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‘  Legislature approves lodging tax and ND :
! Tourism applies additional $2.9 million to )
L Lewis & Clark media efforts, enhancing AT Sy )~ IR B il Rny
] reach and frequency of US campaign. ' . First visitor :
i i 1 study shows ;
! » Cable TV, newspaper inserts and online ' ' 5.7 million '
! search marketing launched in the US; radio ' | overnight :
! and newspaper inserts launched in Canada. ' ' Visits and :
----- SRR Sty K w2, o DDESErA L =0 Sy it T et D e s E IR S s O L 1 2 4 7o o e :
_____________________________________________________________________ . regional :
i market share. !
______________________________________________ i - New website :
« Campaign adds TV in Canada and Wisconsin, as well : launched. E
as specific niche print advertising. ! : :
- State park visitors, airline boarders, occupancy rates,
lodging taxes and unique website visitors all increase.
« Visitor study shows 6 million overnight trips in North | r--cccmmmcm e e e e e e oo .

Dakota with 5.5 percent of the regional market share.

* First-ever tourism satellite account shows 60% of
tourism expenditures are from out of state and core
tourism is the fourth-largest private-sector employer
in the state.

____________________________________________

North Dakota leads the
nation in all four
cateqories reported by
US Travel Association:
growth of travel
expenditures,
travel-generated taxes,

Stakeholder input

brand book.

1 1

1 1

1 1

1 1

1 1

1 1

1 1

i results in anniversary : travel-related jobs and
: i payroll.

‘ i
1 1
1 1
1 1
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requesting visitor
information on

Minnesota

Illinois

Wisconsin

Michigan

Ohio

Promoting Image and Attracting Guests

Media interest in North Dakota continues to increase and the value

of positive coverage cannot be underestimated. Public relations, or
earned-media, efforts garnered more than 270 positive stories in 131
media outlets in 2012. Here are a few highlights:

Outdoor
* A Week in Pothole Paradise” -
Field & Stream, November 2012:
Coordinated logistics and licenses
with ND Game and Fish for a hunt
that resulted in a five-page feature
highlighting duck hunting in North
Dakota. Field & Stream, November
» Hosted the editor of NationalParksTraveler.com, resulting in 23
articles about the state’s national historic sites.

International 't.“

* "An Eroded World” - Australia
Geographic Magazine, October
2012: Hosted journalist in North
Dakota which resulted in a
six-page feature.

« 'Auf Den Spuren Sitting Bulls” (On
the Traces of Sitting Bull), Motorad
Magazine, December 2012: First of
many articles to be featured in the German-speaking markets.

Australian Geographic Magazine, October

General

* "New Frontiers: Getaway in North
Dakota’s Badlands” — Midwest
Living, May/June 2012: Hosted
editor for western exploration
resulting in a six-page feature
highlighting Medora, Theodore
Roosevelt National Park and other  wigwest Living, May/June
Badlands attractions.

» Society of American Travel Writers - Assisted two freelancers during
their visit to North Dakota which has resulted in continued positive
travel stories about their experience.

N D
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Digital Strategies 2012 Touris

Tourism’s digital strategy is an integrated effort to build brand identity,

increase awareness and impressions of North Dakota as a travel destination, promote
interest from media and engage travelers. Through its website, blog, newsletters and social networks,
Tourism garnered a unique digital audience of more

than 10.2 million in 2012.

» Unique website traffic: 445,322
» Unique digital guides use: 31,021
* Newsletter subscribers: 22,389

» Facebook “fans”: 11,996
 Twitter followers: 14,635

* YouTube subscribers: 111

* Flickr members: 403

Promoted social media post celebrates 10,000 fans

3,000,000
ND Tourism 2011-2012 @NorthDakota

Digital Analytics Comparison

Travel North Dakota

2,000,000

1,000,000

S NCEEBLE S MARL VARR] ¢ MAY!, e JUNE 3 UL S FAUG 13 SEPT 4O GT EINON T DEC

Total Digital Unique Audience increased 163% from 2011 to 2012
(3.8 million in 2011 versus 10.2 million in 2012)

e

Enchanted H Ighway, Regent The Enchanted Highway, along 32 miles of
highway north of Regent, features the world’s
largest metal sculptures designed, welded
and painted by artist Gary Greff as a way of
bringing tourists to the community. Greff plans
to add four more sculptures to the seven already
erected. He also is converting Regent’s former

school into a 24-room motel, aptly named “The
Enchanted Castle.”




Enhancing AgriTourism Opportunities

Tourism promotes the growth of North Dakota’s agritourism
industry by offering education and networking for operators
and those considering development of
attractions. Passage of the AgriTourism
Limited Liability leqislation in 2011 is
fostering growth of the industry with 22
businesses currently registered with the
Tourism Division. A total of 81 existing or potential agritourism
businesses have been identified in North Dakota.

AgriTourism North Dakota

Enhancing Tourism Development

Tourism works to identify business opportunities and conduct
development functions to support start-up, retention, expansion and
attraction of businesses in the tourism industry. Areas of emphasis
include agriculture-based tourism, expanding recreation offerings,
expanding education vacations and rural tourism development.

Tourism Grant Programs

49 total awards totaling $1.09

million for marketing, events and

construction for tourism

development.

+ $319,000 - New for-profit
businesses (6 grants)

+ $210,000 - Existing for-profit
businesses (4 grants)

« $774,600 - Community and
nonprofit (39 grants)

The Tourism Infrastructure Grant
Program’s purpose is to fund new
tourism operations capable of
attracting visitors from outside
North Dakota for at least one
overnight stay.

Grants help build attractions

NNoriPbese
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Hotel Room Inventory Expanding 12 T°Urisn~, 3 Ry
Nnuy|
Tourism has been involved in tracking hotel growth, providing information REpo t

to potential hotel developers and sending information/welcome packets to all new properties.

While many new hotels have opened in western North Dakota, projects in 11 communities east of US Highway
83 have opened or are under development, leading to more hotel availability. Forty-two new hotels have added
3,500 rooms to the state since 2011 and 39 properties have announced 3,678 rooms to be added in 2013.

Hotel Property Growth Since 2002

400

350

Coteau des
Prairies Lodge,
Havana

300

Coteau des Prairies

Tl ! ! , , : , : : | ; i Lodge offers unique

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 accommodations with

* Estimate based on announced projects as of 2-1-2013. grand and modern

Hotel Demand Monthly Percent Change 2012 amenities in an

35% authentic Ponderosa
30%

Pine lodge. Decorated
25%
- with local artwork and

15% rustic wood furniture,

this 14-bedroom ]odge
comfortab])/ entertains

10%

T

5%

e 45 guests and is sure

-10% to be a destinatjonfor

-15% business retreats, outdoor
-20%

enthusiasts, crafters,
JAN FEB MAR APR MAY 5 JUNER LU LY AUGESSERTL-LOCT: = NOVAIDEC

quilters, families and the

Revenue per Available Room (ReVPAR) emmme Average Daily Rate  emmme Occupancy
casual traveler.

Source: Smith Travel Research
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Helping our Visitors

Coming in 2013, NDTourism.com
will be launching a new site with
greater usability for travelers
seeking key information on travel
to North Dakota. Travel counselors
answered more than 5,100 calls
from potential visitors to its
toll-free line in 2012.

Online information requests through
NDTourism.com included:

» 73,729 orders for online
brochure requests, an 11%
increase.

* 100% increase in web inquiries
from NDTourism.com.

ND Tourism
Representation

North Dakota is represented

on 3 number of statewide and
national boards and organizations,
including: US Travel Association,
National Council of State Tourism
Directors, CenStates Travel and
Tourism Research Association
Board of Directors, Outdoor
Writers Association of America,
Discover America, Midwest

Travel Writers Association,
International Association of
Business Communicators, National
Tour Association, American

Bus Association, Bank Travel,
Heritage Club International,
National Agritourism Professionals
Association and Family
Motorcoach Association.

Publications Promoting North Dakota

Tourism produces a number of publications to help promote the legendary
experiences the state offers. Publications are made available through

3 variety of methods: request fulfillment, at sport and travel shows,
in-state rest areas, visitor centers, ports of entry, traveler-frequented
businesses and airports.

Travel Guide

Due to continued high demand, 335,000
copies of the 2012 Travel Guide were
printed. The digital version of the Travel
Guide was accessed 28,795 times by
unique visitors, an 80% increase over
2011. The 2013 Travel Guide is now
available across the state with 340,000
in print.

e

,

Official Highway Map

A total of 1.2 million 2011-12 official highway
maps were printed and distributed in partnership
with the ND Department of Transportation. The
new 2013-2014 Official North Dakota Highway
Map features a slightly larger size and a run of
1.2 million copies.

Hunting & Fishing Guide

Sixty thousand (60,000) copies of the

Hunting and Fishing Guide were printed.
There will be 50,000 copies available

in 2013. The digital version had 2,226

unique visits.

NNoriPbese
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wiE | 137%

increase

visitors to major attractions,
up 7% from 2011

national park visitors in 2012

unique website
visits in 2012,

up 4% from 2011

stops at local visitor centers (www.NDTourism.com)
in 2012, up 9% from 2011

deplanements in 2012

In 2011, increases of Canadian visitors
in North Dakota included:

e 15% more spending ($242,439,300)
* 11.1% more overnights (1,578,700)
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10t most
visited U.S.

state by
Canadians

60% of visitors are
non-resident travelers

$943

tax savings to
each North Dakota
household thanks
to visitor revenue

North Dakota Department of Commerce — Tourism Division
1600 E. Century Ave., Suite 2 | PO Box 2057 | Bismarck, ND 58502-2057
Phone: 800-435-5663 | NDTourism.com
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North Dakota Development Fund Annual Report 2011 - 2012

“The North Dakota Development Fund
is a valuable financing tool for North
Dakota businesses, providing a strong

return on investment for taxpayers
and contributing significantly to
job creation. As we continue to grow
our economy and create economic
opportum'tjes for our citizens, it
is important that we provide the
financing support for start-up or
. . . »
expansion projects in our state.

- Jack Dalrymple, Governor

Jack Dalrymple
Governor

Al Anderson
Commissioner
ND Department of Commerce

North Dakota Development Fund
Board Members

The Governor appoints an eight-member Board of Directors that
oversees the North Dakota Development Fund. Each member
represents a different business sector from the state.

Richard McKennett, Chairman | Williston
Member-at-Large

Bob McNeill, Vice-Chairman | Dickinson
Private Sector

John Erickson | Grand Forks
Industrial Technology and Research Sector

Rob Gayton | Mandan
Native American Sector

Vacant
Rural Sector

Darcy Volk | Bismarck
Exported Services Sector

Terri Zimmerman | Fargo
Finance Sector

Al Anderson | Bismarck
Commissioner of ND Department of Commerce
Agency Sector

The Following Development Fund
Staff Facilitates This Process

Dean Reese, CEO
701-328-5334 | dreese@nd.gov

Scot Long, Vice President
701-328-7256 | slong@nd.gov

Nathan D. Schneider, Credit Technical Analyst
701-328-5349 | ndschneider@nd.gov

Lacey A. Jangula, Technical Accounting/Credit Analyst
701-328-5310 | lajangula@nd.gov



About the North Dakota Development Fund

The North Dakota Development Fund was created through
legislation in 1991 as an economic development tool. It provides
flexible gap financing through debt and equity investments for new
or expanding North Dakota primary sector businesses.

The Development Fund makes investments of up to $300,000.
The Board of Directors may adjust the limit when deemed
appropriate. In general, the following criteria apply to Development
Fund investments:

The entrepreneur must have a realistic financial commitment
at stake. Usually, principals are required to have a minimum
of 15 percent equity in the project.

Refinancing of debt is not eligible.

Principal shareholders with 20 percent or greater ownership
are generally required to guarantee the debt. Other
shareholders may also be required to guarantee.

The Development Fund will not participate in more than
50 percent of a project’s capitalization needs.

Financing is available to any primary sector business project
with the exception of production agriculture.

Primary sector includes individuals and businesses which,
through the employment of knowledge or labor, add

value to a product, process or service which results in the
creation of new wealth. Primary sector includes tourism and
specific types of investor-owned agriculture, and is typically
businesses such as manufacturers, food processors or export
service companies. Investor-owned agriculture includes
livestock feeding or milking operations, or other value-added
agriculture located apart from an individual farm operation
that is professionally managed and has employees.

Loan and equity programs managed by the North Dakota
Development Fund include:

North Dakota Development Fund
Regional Rural Revolving Loan Fund
Rural Incentive Growth Loan Program
Small Business Technology Program
Child Care Loan Program

New Venture Capital Program
Entrepreneur Loan Program
Entrepreneurial Center Loan Program

Please contact the North Dakota Development Fund or visit

www. NDDevelopmentFund.com for additional information

on the programs listed above.
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Dean Reese, CEO
ND Development Fund

“The investments made by the
Development Fund
in 2011 to 2012 contributed to
the projected creation of

152 jobs in the primary sector. ’

>

Introduction

The Development Fund invested $7,114,904 in 28 primary sector and child care
businesses from July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2012. The Development Fund has provided
gap financing in which investments, since inception, have reached $97 million.

With the Development Fund’s dollars invested, there has been $107,286,856
leveraged from other financing institutions resulting in a $15.08 to 1 ratio - for every
Development Fund dollar invested, $15.08 was invested from other sources.

The investments made by the Development Fund in 2011 to 2012 contributed to the
projected creation of 152 jobs in the primary sector.

The Development Fund reported an estimated June 30, 2012 fiscal year-end operating
income of $414,225 before bad debt expense, as compared to $498,877 for the
fiscal year-end 2011. The decrease in income is attributable to a decrease in interest
income on loans and an increase in bad debt expense. The Development Fund saw an
increase in general and administrative expenses of ($22,923) from 2011 to 2012. The
Development Fund continues to pay all costs of operating the fund including salaries
and benefits. The increase in administrative expense was attributable to an increase
in salary expense and repo expense from 2011 to 2012. The cash flow generated from
principal and interest collections remains strong at $6.3 million. The Development Fund
continues to be a “revolving” loan fund as it has collected $9.8 million the past two
years, which in turn can be used for future loan and equity investments.

Net loss before nonoperating revenues (expense) declined by $218,614 from
($16,011) in 2011 to ($234,625) in 2012. The decline in the net loss was due mainly
to the decrease in interest income and an increased allocation to bad debt expense for
the year.

Since the inception of the Development Fund, it has invested $97 million in 519
companies with over $30.8 million invested in rural communities. The investments
made by the Development Fund have contributed to the projected creation of 10,389
primary sector jobs. The Development Fund helped 12 start-up businesses begin
operations in North Dakota in 2011 to 2012. Of the 12 start-up businesses, five were
in rural communities.

The economic activity continued to be strong in North Dakota in 2012 as compared
to the national economy. In providing flexible financing, the Development Fund helped
primary sector businesses start-up or expand, which in turn created new jobs and
generated new revenues. This report includes highlights of 2012 along with the
accompanying financial statements.

Dean Reese, CEO
North Dakota Development Fund



Development Fund Investment Locations
from July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2012

DF- Development Fund Projects | RR - Regional Rural Revolving Loan Fund Projects | CC - Child Care Loans

Growth in Development Fund Projects Development Fund Cash Flow (Millions)

NUMBER OF PROJECTS
CASH FLOW (IN MILLIONS)

70 72

YEARS (BIENNIUMS) YEARS
The Development Fund invested in 28 projects from 2011-12. The Development Fund collected $6.4 million in 2011-12, averaging
The number of projects funded to date are on track to meet $5.2 million in collections in the past eight years. The Development
or exceed the number of projects from the last biennium Fund continues to revolve and the funds collected continue to be used
(2009-2011). to fund future loan and equity investments in the state.
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28 Businesses Benefited from North Dakota Development Fund
Investments from July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2012

DEVELOPMENT FUND

Aldrich Metal Supply Company
Carbontec Energy Corporation
DKX Advanced Manufacturing
Baker Boy Bake Shop, Inc.
Boost Information Systems, Inc.
Cargill, Inc.

Dog IDs

IDA of Moorhead Corporation
Leikas Group, LLC

Loyalty Builders, Inc.

Pedigree Technologies, LLC
American Defense Ind.

Ideal Aerosmith, Inc.

Midwest Energy Emissions
Next Healthcare, Inc.

Telpro, Inc.

Zachmeier Manufacturing, Inc.
Accuity Medical International, Inc.
Fixes 4 Kids, Inc.

Streamline, Inc.

BNG Technologies, LLC

REGIONAL RURAL REVOLVING LOAN
Tuff-E Manufacturing

Sheyenne Tooling and Mfg, Inc.
Killdeer Mountain Mfg.

Firehouse Ribs

CHILD CARE LOAN
Perfect Start Daycare
Rachel’s Daycare, LLC
Tiny Tykes, Inc.

Bismarck
Bismarck
Bismarck
Dickinson
Fargo

Fargo

Fargo

Fargo

Fargo

Fargo

Fargo
Grand Forks
Grand Forks
Grand Forks
Grand Forks
Grand Forks
Mandan
Wahpeton
Wahpeton
Wahpeton
West Fargo

Carson
Cooperstown
Killdeer
Medina

Bismarck
Bismarck
Wahpeton

$ 137,500
$ 333,333
$ 50,000
$ 800,000
$ 300,000
$ 2,000,000
$ 87,500
$ 150,000
$ 50,000
$ 300,000
$ 750,000
$ 140,993
$ 200,000
$ 125,000
$ 150,000
$ 25,000
$ 100,000
$ 150,000
$ 300,000
$ 62,500
$ 90,000

150,000
150,000
300,000
114,000

B H B H

©+

25,000
18,000
56,078

©® &

TOTAL $ 7,114,904



Tuff-E Manufacturing — Carson

REGIONAL RURAL REVOLVING LOAN

A dozen years ago, Peter Reis purchased Tuff-E
Manufacturing, a steel fabrication and manufacturing
business in Carson. He employed three full-time staff and
focused primarily on livestock equipment. Today, he employs
34 full-time employees to handle the manufacturing of
hopper bottom grain bins and oil field production tanks.

To keep up with demand, Tuff-E Manufacturing expanded its
building space to provide additional room for its fabrication
work. The local bank assisted with the start of Tuff-E
Manufacturing’s expansion, but Reis said his company
eventually got into a cash flow crunch and required

more funding than what the bank could offer. The bank
recommended Reis consider the Development Fund.

“This was a really difficult project to get done, and the
people at the Development Fund got it done in a very short
period of time and made it come together,” Reis said.

“To be honest, it was a lifesaver.”

The Development Fund not only brought the 7,200
square foot addition to completion, it gave hope to
a small-town businessman.

“There are a lot of businesses in North Dakota where
people have a lot of vision and drive to make a business
expand, but don’t have the capital means to do it,” Reis
said. “I think it's great that North Dakota has something like
the Development Fund to help do that, because without it,

| don’t know that our business would have progressed to
where it is today.”

Loyalty Builders, Inc. — Fargo

DEVELOPMENT FUND

Loyalty Builders is a marketing analytics software company
that allows retailers and other merchants to use data

from customer behavior and transactions to help predict
customers’ future purchases and increase revenue.

Loyalty Builders sells its software across the country, and
President Dennis Erdle said the new Fargo location was
a great fit for the company to expand its operations due
to the talent available from the North Dakota University
System and assistance from the Development Fund.

“The Fund gave us the confidence to open here, because
to have the support of the North Dakota business
community was critical in helping us open the office,”

Erdle said. “It's doing a great job of helping the business
climate get going.”

The funds allowed Loyalty Builders to set up the Fargo
office, hire six employees and market the business.

The company offers a variety of advanced marketing
techniques to its clients as well as a library of resources
to learn more about customer behavior.

Erdle said there is a high demand for these types of
analytics, particularly because many customers will
experience up to 20 times the return on investment
compared to traditional marketing methods.
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Tiny Tykes, Inc. — Wahpeton

CHILD CARE LOAN

Justin and Jamie Neppl needed more space for their growing The new location required some renovations, so the
Tiny Tykes daycare business in Wahpeton, so they purchased Development Fund assisted with costs to install new
an additional building increasing their capacity from 18 to 49 windows throughout, a more efficient HVAC system and
children. The move was made possible by the Development to remove trees on the property.

Fund which provided working capital, additional equipment

and property improvements.

“It's nice when parents are complimenting the things and
noticing we’re trying to improve the childcare, the building,”

“It provided more opportunity since it helped us to make that Jamie Neppl said. “(After the improvements), the space
next move to the next place,” Justin Neppl said. “Many of our opened up and it was more welcoming.”

families are on childcare assistance so that income comes
in a month behind. We almost have to front payroll for two
months before our accounts receivable starts catching up,

so having that working capital helps out quite a bit.”

Dog IDs — Fargo

DEVELOPMENT FUND

Dog IDs produces personalized dog collars and custom dog identification
tags to promote dog safety and responsible dog ownership. Strictly web-
based, the Fargo company offers a large selection of unique designs for
man’s best friend.

The Development Fund provided working capital to develop the website and
hire additional staff. It also assisted with their marketing efforts and the
purchase of equipment to keep up with customer demand.

“Without the Development Fund, we would have had to say no to some of the
opportunities we capitalized on in the past year,” said co-owner Clint Howitz.
“It supported our growth in general to fulfill the large sales spikes we had at
various times.”

Howitz predicts even faster growth ahead, so the funding is critical for
continued success.

“A large portion of our expenses are non-tangibles such as web and software
development which is extremely difficult to finance,” Howitz said. “Without
the Development Fund backing us, we most likely wouldn’t have found the
financing we needed via traditional lending institutions, and our business
development progression would have been much slower over this last year.”



Next Healthcare, Inc. — Grand Forks

DEVELOPMENT FUND

When seeking the perfect location for a biotechnology
service, founder Vin Singh chose Grand Forks, opening Next
Healthcare, Inc. in early March. Singh said North Dakota'’s
central location, low costs and access to the University of
North Dakota’s excellent bioscience program and medical
school made the decision an easy one. By providing tissue
and cell storage solutions to the general public, Next
Healthcare, Inc. utilizes technology to allow people to
potentially treat their diseases or conditions with their

own cells.

Singh has received a good response to his company’s
services since it became fully operational in July.

The Development Fund assisted Next Healthcare, Inc.
with lab operating expenses.

Firehouse Ribs — Medina

REGIONAL RURAL REVOLVING LOAN

Firehouse Ribs may be tucked away in a small town, but
business is far from small. The Medina-based production
facility and restaurant sells smoked ribs and pulled pork
along with their signature barbeque sauces nationwide.

“I'm a small town girl and | fall in love with small towns,”
said co-owner Tracy Frank. “Then | get there and try to work
with them and do as much as | possibly can and | thought
Medina would be a good place to do that.”

There is no doubting her commitment as she and fellow
owner Robert Heier commute 80 miles each day from Valley
City to run the business. Medina’s old meat locker plant was
a perfect fit, even at only 970 square feet - the smallest
USDA-inspected plant in the state.

“We had to set up a GMP [Good Manufacturing Practice]
lab, which is the highest quality standard,” Singh said.
“That takes time, people and resources to make happen.
The funds enabled us to launch our lab operation and
commercialize our service.”

Next Healthcare, Inc. hopes to expand its network of
doctors and customer base, as well as lab operations.

“Currently we have a network of doctors that offers the
service to their patients,” Singh said. “Now we're starting to
go directly to consumers, educating them about the service
and its benefits so they can then go to their doctor and ask
them to offer it as a service to their other patients.”

“We push a lot of product out of here,” Frank said. “The
Development Fund allowed us to double and triple up on
equipment and now we're at almost one and a half times
our normal production, so instead of making 3,000 pounds
per day, we can almost do 7,000.”

The business has even built a relationship with Walmart.
The retail giant currently carries Firehouse Ribs products
within the tri-state area, but by January the label will go
nationwide. It's a big leap from where Frank and Heier
stood prior to the Development Fund loan. “It was nerve
wracking for a while because if we would not have been
able to expand, we would have been shutting our doors,”
Frank said. “We would have been just another closed-down
small business.”
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Governor of North Dakota
The Legislative Assembly

Board of Directors
North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Bismarck, North Dakota

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the North Dakota Development Fund,
Inc. a component unit of the State of North Dakota, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011,
as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Fund's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements of the North Dakota Development Fund, Inc. are intended
to present the financial position, changes in financial position, and the cash flows of only that portion of
the financial statements of the State of North Dakota that is attributable to the transactions of North
Dakota Development Fund, Inc. They do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of
the State of North Dakota as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, the changes in its financial position or, where
applicable, its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the North Dakota Development Fund, Inc. as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.



In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated October 25, 2012
on our consideration of the North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in
assessing the results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 13 through 16 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements taken as a
whole. The accompanying supplementary information on pages 17 through 33 is presented for purposes
of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. The supplementary
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Cio/dﬁdgzu”

Bismarck, North Dakota
October 25, 2012



North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2012

The discussion and analysis of the financial performance of the North Dakota Development Fund that follows is
meant to provide additional insight into the Development Fund’s activities for the year ended June 30, 2012.
Please read it in conjunction with the Development Fund’s financial statements and footnotes, which are
presented within this report.

Financial Highlights

Total revenue increased by $910,328 (93.20%) to $1,887,396. Operating revenues decreased by $62,572 (6.95%)
to $835,092. Cash flow increased by $2,801,754 (79.25%) to $6,336,733. The Fund collected $4,832,119 in
principal payments in 2012, which was an increase of $2,424,208 (200%) from 2011. The increase in total
revenues and operating revenues was attributable to additional payouts of loans on the books of the North Dakota
Development Fund.

The Development Fund received $162,738 in dividend payments in 2012 from equity investments made, an
increase from the $109,128 received in dividend payments in 2011. The increase was attributable to additional
payments received in dividend payments to the Development Fund in 2012 as compared to 2011.

General and administrative expense increased by $22,923 (5.76%) from $397,944 in 2011 to $420,867 in 2012.
The increase in administrative expense was attributable to an increase in salary expense and repo expense from
2011 to 2012.

Operating loss before non-operating revenues and expenses increased by ($218,614) from ($16,011) in 2011 to
($234,625) in 2012. The decline in the operating loss in 2012 was attributable to an increase in reserve for bad
debt expense and an increase in general and administrative expense in 2012 as compared to 2011 in addition to
the reduction in operating revenues from $897,664 in 2011 to $835,092 in 2012.

Interest income on deposits decreased by $27,100 (34.50%) from $79,404 received in 2011 to $52,304 received in
2012. The decrease was the result of decreased interest rates received on the investments being made in
certificates of deposit at the Bank of North Dakota.

Change in net assets increased by $754,286 from $63,393 in 2011 to $817,679 in 2012. The increase was
attributable to the Development Fund receiving an appropriation from the North Dakota Legislature in the amount
of $1 million dollars for a new funding program called the Small Business Technology Program in July of 2011.

Net assets increased by $817,679 from $23,142,094 in 2011 to $23,959,773 in 2012. The increase was
attributable to the Development Fund receiving an appropriation from the North Dakota Legislature in the
amount of $1 million dollars for a new funding program called the Small Business Technology Program.

Noncurrent net assets (excluding equipment) increased by $1,540,281 from $7,841,863 in 2011 to $9,382,144 in
2012. The noncurrent assets consist of the Development Fund’s loan and equity investments. The equity
investments made decreased by $815,502 from 2011 to 2012. The equity investments that were charged off
during 2012 were $662,324 as compared to $370,800 in 2011. The loan investments made increased by
$2,525,778 from 2011 to 2012. The loan investments that were charged off during 2012 were $280,547 as
compared to $228,327 in 2011. The Development Fund saw a decline in equity requests in 2012, but saw an
increase in requests for loans. Also included in the loan investment balance were loans closed under the new
Child Care Loan Program created by legislative intent and an appropriation from the legislative session in 2009
and became effective July 1, 2009.



North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2012

Interest receivable on deposits and loans decreased by ($3,879) to $70,007. The receivable remained stable in
2012 due to the continued improved monitoring of past due accounts and not having to put additional accounts on
non-accrual.

Cash and cash equivalents increased by $7,052,795 (250%) to $11,703,160 (cash balance is before loan and
investment commitments). The increase in cash and cash equivalents was attributable to less dollars being
invested in certificate of deposits due to the reduction in CD rates and wanting to put the funds to work in primary
sector businesses in the State of North Dakota. The investment account (which includes certificate of deposit
investments) decreased by $8,235,534 from $9,236,500 in 2011 to $1,000,966 in 2012.

The Development Fund invests their excess funds into longer-term deposits for a higher rate of return to coincide
with the funding commitments made by the Development Fund to companies for loans and equity investments,
which are not required to be funded in the short-term. But, due to the low rate of interest being offered on
certificate of deposits on a longer term, the Development Fund has kept the excess funding liquid in saving
accounts and putting the funds to work in loan and equity investments to primary sector businesses in the State
of North Dakota.

Twenty-eight projects were funded totaling $7,114,904.

Required Financial Statements

The discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Development Fund’s financial
statements. The financial statements of the Development Fund provide accounting information similar to that of
many other business entities. The Balance Sheet summarizes the assets and liabilities, with the difference between
the two reported as net assets. It also serves as a basis for analysis of the soundness and liquidity of the
Development Fund. The statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets summarize the
Development Fund’s operating performance for the year. The statements of Cash Flows summarize the flow of
cash through the Development Fund as it conducts its business.

Condensed Balance Sheet
June 30, 2012 and 2011

Assets 2012 2011 2010
Current assets 15,841,282 16,563,884 17,207,305
Noncurrent assets 9,382,144 7,841,863 7,234,496

Total assets 25,223,426 24,405,747 24,441,801

Net Assets
Current liabilities 1,263,653 1,263,653 1,363,100
Unrestricted 23,959,773 23,142,094 23,078,701

Total net assets 23,959,773 23,142,094 23,078,701
Total liabilities and net assets 25,223,426 24,405,747 24,441,801




North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2012

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash deposits with the Bank of North Dakota and are included in the current
assets section of the balance sheet. Additional discussion of cash and cash equivalents can be found in Note 2 to
the financial statements.

Equity Investments

Equity investments consist of capital investments in new or expanding primary sector businesses in or relocating

to North Dakota and are included in noncurrent assets. Additional discussion of equity investments can be found

in Notes 4 and 5 to the financial statements.

Loans Receivable

Loans receivable consist of loans to new or expanding primary sector businesses in or relocating to North Dakota
and are included in current and noncurrent assets in the balance sheet. Additional analysis of loans receivable can
be found in Notes 6 and 7.

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
for the Year Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

2012 2011 2010
Operating Revenues

Interest income on loans $ 584,339 $ 584,757 $ 660,760
Dividend income 162,738 109,128 149,679
Gain on sale of investment 8,214 93,542 -
Other 79,801 110,237 55,118
835,092 897,664 865,557

Nonoperating Revenue
State appropriations 1,000,000 - -
Interest income on deposits 52,304 79,404 91,968
1,052,304 79,404 91,968

Total Revenue 1,887,396 977,068 957,525




North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2012

Operating Expenses
General and administrative
Depreciation expense
Bad debt expense

Change in Net Assets
Net Assets, Beginning of Year

Net Assets, End of Year

2012 2011 2010
420,867 397,944 386,615

) 843 766

648,850 514,888 1,121,985
1,069,717 913,675 1,509,366
817,679 63,393 (551,841)
23,142,094 23,078,701 23,630,542

$ 23959773 $  23142,004 $ 23078701




North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Balance Sheets
June 30, 2012 and 2011

2012 2011
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,703,160 $ 4,650,365
Interest receivable on deposits and loans 70,007 73,886
Investments 1,000,966 9,236,500
Current portion of loans receivable 3,067,149 2,603,133
Total current assets 15,841,282 16,563,884
Noncurrent Assets
Loans receivable, net of current portion 9,382,144 7,841,863
Total assets $ 25,223,426 ) 24,405,747
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities
Accrued expenses $ 13,653 $ 13,653
Due to state 1,250,000 1,250,000
Total current liabilities 1,263,653 1,263,653
Net Assets
Unrestricted 23,959,773 23,142,094
Total net assets 23,959,773 23,142,094
Total liabilities and net assets $ 25,223,426 $ 24,405,747

See Notes to Financial Statements




North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

2012 2011

Operating Revenues
Interest income on loans $ 584,339 $ 584,757
Dividend income 162,738 109,128
Gain on sale of investment 8,214 93,542
Other 79,801 110,237
835,092 897,664

Operating Expenses
General and administrative 420,867 397,944
Depreciation expense - 843
Bad debt expense 648,850 514,888
1,069,717 913,675
Operating Loss (234,625) (16,011)

Nonoperating Revenue

State appropriations 1,000,000 -
Interest income on deposits and investments 52,304 79,404
1,052,304 79,404
Change in Net Assets 817,679 63,393
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 23,142,094 23,078,701
Net Assets, End of Year $ 23,959,773 $ 23,142,094

See Notes to Financial Statements




North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

Operating Activities
Other receipts
Payments to suppliers

Net Cash used for Operating Activities

Investing Activities
Interest received on cash and cash equivalents
Purchase of equipment
Purchase of equity investments
Proceeds from the sale of equity investments
Purchase of investments
Sale of investments
Disbursements of business loans
Principal payments received on business loans

Net Cash provided by (used for) Investing Activities
Non-Capital and Related Financing Activities
Paydown of appropriations
Proceeds from state appropriations
Net Cash provided by (used for) Financing Activities
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

See Notes to Financial Statements

2012 2011
$ 226504  $ 386,666
(420,867) (447,601)
(194,363) (61,025)

672,985 689,407

- (843)

(991,668) (87,500)

617,218 150,000
(1,000,966) (13,794,750)
9,228,286 12,575,048
(7,110,816) (3,830,111)
4,832,119 2,407,911
6,247,158 (1,890,838)

- (49,700)

1,000,000 -
1,000,000 (49,700)
7,052,795 (2,001,563)
4,650,365 6,651,928

$ 11,703,160 $ 4,650,365




North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating
loss to net cash from operating activities

Depreciation
Decrease in accounts payable
Gain on sale of investment
Allowance for doubtful loan receivables
Allowance for realized loss on investments
Reclassification of interest and dividend income

Net Cash Used for Operating Activities
Supplemental Schedule of Noncash Activities

Loans receivable written off
Equity investments written off

See Notes to Financial Statements

2012 2011

$ (234,625)  $ (16,011)
- 843

- (49,747)

8,214 93,542

274,400 577,388

374,450 (62,500)
(616,802) (604,540)

$ (194,363) $ (61,025)
$ 280547  $ 228,327
$ 662,324  $ 370,800



North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012 and 2011

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Organization and Nature of Activities

The North Dakota Development Fund, Inc. (the Corporation) was established pursuant to Chapter 10-30.3 of the
North Dakota Century Code as amended by the passage of Senate Bill 2058 during the 1991 legislative session.
The Corporation is a statewide nonprofit development corporation with the authority to take equity positions in; to
provide loans to; or to use other innovative financing mechanisms to provide capital for new or expanding
primary sector businesses in North Dakota or relocating to North Dakota.

The Corporation uses funds to report on its financial position and the results of its operations. Fund accounting is
designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating transactions related to
certain corporate functions or activities.

The following activities are used by the Corporation:

Development Fund

The Development Fund is used to account for fund investments, including equity positions, loans, loan
guarantees, and other innovative financing mechanisms for new or expanding primary sector businesses in North
Dakota or relocating to North Dakota.

Regional Rural Development Revolving Loan Fund

The Regional Rural Development Revolving Loan Fund is used to account for fund investments including equity
positions, loans, loan guarantees, or debt financing on a matching basis to new or expanding primary sector
businesses in rural areas.

Small Business Technology Program

The Small Business Technology Fund is used to provide matching investments to startup technology-based
businesses.

Child Care Loan Program

The Child Care Loan Program is used to account for fund investments including loans and loan guarantees for
new or expanding child care facilities in North Dakota.

The Corporation may form additional corporations, partnerships or other forms of business associations in order
to further its mission.

The Director of the Department of Commerce Division of the Economic Development and Finance shall appoint
the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation. All investments, contracts, partnerships, limited liability
companies, and business transactions of the Corporation are the responsibility of the Chief Executive Officer and
the eight-member Board of Directors, who are appointed by the Governor.



North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012 and 2011

Reporting Entity

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, The Financial
Reporting Entity, the Corporation should include all component units over which the Corporation exercises such
aspects as (1) appointing a voting majority of an organization’s governing body and (2) has the ability to impose
its will on that organization or (3) the potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or
impose specific burdens on the Corporation. GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain
Organizations are Component Units, an Amendment of GASB Statement 14, further defined reporting units as a
legally separate, tax exempt affiliated organization that meet all of the following criteria:

* The economic resources of the organization entirely or almost entirely directly benefit the Corporation or
its constituents, and

* The Corporation or its component units are entitled to or can otherwise access, a majority of the economic
resources of the organization, and

* The economic resources that the Corporation is entitled to, or can otherwise access, are significant to the
Corporation.

Based upon criteria set forth in GASB No. 14 and No. 39, no organizations were determined to be part of the
reporting entity. The Corporation is included as part of the primary government of the State of North Dakota’s
reporting entity.

Basis of Accounting

The Corporation is presented in the accompanying financial statements as a proprietary fund type — an
enterprise fund.

An enterprise fund is used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private
business enterprises, where the intent is that costs of providing goods or services to the general public or other
funds on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges. The Corporation operates
primarily with appropriations from the State of North Dakota’s general fund.

As a proprietary fund type, the Corporation accounts for its transactions using the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized for its transactions when they are earned, and expenses are recognized when they
are incurred.

The Corporation follows the pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), which
is the nationally accepted standard-setting body for establishing generally accepted accounting principles for
governmental entities. In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 20, the
Corporation follows all applicable GASB Pronouncements as well as Financial Accounting Standards Board
pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with GASB
pronouncements.



North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012 and 2011

Revenue and Expense Recognition

The Corporation presents its revenues and expenses as operating or non-operating based on recognition
definitions from GASB Statement No. 9, Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and Nonexpendable Trust Funds
and Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting. Operating activities are those activities that
are necessary and essential to the mission of the Corporation. Operating revenues include all charges to
customers, research contracts and grants, dividends earned on equity investments and interest earned on loans.
Revenues from non-exchange transactions and state appropriations that represent subsidies or gifts to the
Corporation, as well as investment income, are considered non-operating since these are either investing, capital
or noncapital financing activities. Operating expenses are all expense transactions incurred other than those
related to investing, capital or noncapital financing activities. Revenues received for capital financing activities, as
well as related expenses, are considered neither operating nor non-operating activities and are presented after non-
operating activities on the accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Loans receivable consist primarily of loans to new or expanding businesses in North Dakota or relocating
businesses to North Dakota. The Corporation performs credit evaluations and maintains a security interest until
related loans are collected.

Cash Equivalents

The Corporation considers all highly liquid investments purchased with maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

Investments

Investments are reported at fair value. All investment income, including changes in the fair value of investments,
is recognized in the statement of revenue, expenses, and changes in fund net assets.

Equity Investments

The Corporation records its equity investments at cost adjusted for other than temporary impairment as
determined by the Board of Directors. The other than temporary impairment of equity investments is included in
fund equity. Realization of the carrying value of these investments is subject to future developments inherent in
such investments (see Note 4).

Among the factors considered in determining whether an other than temporary impairment of an investment has
occurred are the cost of the investment, development since the acquisition of the investment, the financial
condition and operating results of the issuer, the long-term potential of the business of the issuer, and other factors
generally pertinent to the valuation of investments. The Development Fund has relied on financial data of
investees and, in many instances, on estimates by the management company and of the investee company as to the
potential effect of future developments.

Expense Allocation

The Development Fund pays all expenses of the Corporation.



North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012 and 2011

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are
particularly susceptible to significant change in the near-term relate to the determination of the allowance for loan
losses and valuation of equity investments.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation

All fixed assets are recorded in the accompanying financial statements at cost. Donated fixed assets are stated at
fair market value at the time of donation. Equipment with a cost greater than $5,000 is capitalized and reported in
the accompanying financial statements. The Corporation's fixed assets are being depreciated on a straight-line
basis over estimated useful life of three years.

Loans
Loans are reported at their outstanding unpaid principal adjusted for charge-offs and the allowance for loan losses.

Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance. The accrual of interest on loans is discontinued at the
time the loan is 90 to 120 days delinquent unless the credit is well secured and in process of collection. Loans are
placed on non-accrual or charged-off at an earlier date if collection of principal or interest is doubtful. All current
year interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on non-accrual or charged off is reversed against
interest income. All prior year interest accrued but not collected is charged-off against the allowance for loan
losses. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery method, until qualifying for
return to accrual. Loans are returned to accrual status when all principal and interest amounts contractually due
are brought current and future payments are reasonably assured.

The Corporation has determined that the accounting for nonrefundable fees and costs associated with originating
or acquiring loans does not have a material effect on their financial statements. As such, these fees and costs have
been recognized during the period they are collected and incurred, respectively.

Allowance For Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a provision for loan
losses charged to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the
uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to a recovery account.

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon management’s
periodic review of the collectability of the loans in light of historical experience, the nature and volume of the
loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower’s ability to repay, estimated value of any
underlying collateral and prevailing economic conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires
estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available.



North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012 and 2011

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Corporation
will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual
terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment
status, collateral value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due.
Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as
impaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case
basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower’s prior payment
record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured on a
loan-by-loan basis by either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective
interest rate, the loan’s obtainable market price, or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral
dependent. The Corporation separately identifies individual loans for impairment disclosures by rating them on a
scale of 1 to 6.

Note 2 - Deposits and Investments

The Corporation is required to maintain its deposits at the Bank of North Dakota (a related party). As of June 30,
2012, the Corporation had the following cash and investments:

Less
Fair Than
Value One Year
Cash
Bank of North Dakota $ 11,703,160 $ 11,703,160
Investments
Certificates of deposit
Bank of North Dakota 1,000,966 1,000,966

$ 12,704,126 $ 12,704,126

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates of investments will adversely affect the fair value of the
investments. At June 30, 2012, the schedule above shows the investments by investment type, amount and the
duration.

Cash and investments were recorded on the statement of net assets as follows:

Balance
Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,703,160
Investments 1,000,966

$ 12,704,126




North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012 and 2011

Custodial and Concentration of Credit Risk
For deposits and investments, the custodial credit risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, the Corporation will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in possession of an outside

party. The Corporation’s deposits are uncollateralized. All of the Corporation’s deposits are with the Bank of
North Dakota.

Note 3 - Interest Receivable

Interest receivable at June 30, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

2012 2011

Interest receivable from loans $ 70,007 $ 73,886

Note 4 - Equity Investments

Equity investments in business concerns as of June 30, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

2012 2011
Development Fund $ 3,114,165 $ 3,922,830
Rural Development Revolving Loan Fund 1,164,653 1,171,490
4,278,818 5,094,320
Valuation allowance - Other than temporary impairment (4,278,818) (5,094,320)
$ - $ -

Among the factors considered in determining whether an other than temporary impairment of an investment has
occurred are the cost of the investment, development since the acquisition of the investment, the financial
condition and operating results of the issuer, the long-term potential of the business of the issuer, and other factors
generally pertinent to the valuation of investments. The Development Fund has relied on financial data of
investees and, in many instances, on estimates by the management company and of the investee company as to the
potential effect of future developments.

The Corporation acquired its investment by direct purchase from the issuer under investment representations, and
the Board of Directors valued the securities on the premise that they may not be sold without registration under
the Securities Act of 1933. The price of securities purchased was determined by direct negotiation between the
Corporation and the seller.



North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012 and 2011

Note 5 - Equity Investments — Valuation Allowance

Changes in the valuation allowance for equity investments as of June 30, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Balance, beginning of year

Provision for equity investment losses
Transfers

Equity investments charged off

Balance, end of year

Note 6 - Loans Receivable

Loans receivable at June 30, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Development Fund

Rural Development Revolving Loan Fund

Child Care Loan Program

Allowance for loan losses

Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losses
Less: current portion of loans receivable

Loans receivable, net of current portion

Note 7 - Allowance for Loan Losses

Changes in the allowance for loan losses as of June 30, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Balance, beginning of year
Provision for loan losses
Transfers

Loans charged off

Balance, end of year

2012 2011

$ 5094320 $ 5,684,125
374,450 (62,500)
(527,628) (156,505)
(662,324) (370,800)

$ 4278818 $ 5,094,320
2012 2011

$ 11755681 $ 9,134,747
5,428,604 5,528,147
794,326 789,939
17,978,611 15,452,333
(5,529,318) (5,007,837)
12,449,293 10,444,996
3,067,149 2,603,133

$ 09382144 $ 7,841,863
2012 2011

$ 5007837 $ 4,502,271
274,400 577,388
527,628 156,505
(280,547) (228,327)

$ 5529318 $ 5,007,837




North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012 and 2011

Note 8 - Equipment

A statement of changes in fixed assets for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

Balance Balance

06/30/11 Additions Deletions 06/30/12
Furniture and equipment $ 10,095 $ - $ 10,095
Computer software 78,188 - 78,188
Accumulated depreciation (88,283) - (88,283)
$ - $ - 5 -

Balance Balance

06/30/10 Additions Deletions 06/30/11
Furniture and equipment $ 10,095 $ - $ 10,095
Computer software 77,345 843 - 78,188
Accumulated depreciation (87,440) (843) - (88,283)
$ - $ - $ - 3 -

Note 9 - Due to State

In 2011, the State of North Dakota appropriated funds to the North Dakota Development Fund to develop a child
care loan program for the purpose of providing loans to new and expanding child care facilities within the state of
North Dakota. The program was extended in the last legislative session through June 30, 2013, at which time it
expires. On that date, the appropriation amount is set to be returned to the state. As of June 30, 2012 and 2011,
$1,250,000 and $1,250,000 is due back to the state, respectively.

Note 10 - State Appropriation
During the year ended June 30, 2012 the North Dakota Development Fund received $1,000,000 for a new funding
program called the Small Business Technology Program.

Note 11 - Commitments and Contingencies

Development Fund

The Board of Directors has approved equity investments, loans, grants and guaranty of collections at June 30,
2012 and 2011, for which funds have not been disbursed or written agreements entered into in the approximate
amount of $1,036,244 and $3,362,579.



North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012 and 2011

Regional Rural Development Revolving Loan Fund

The Board of Directors has approved equity investments, loans, and guaranty of collections at June 30, 2012 and
2011, for which funds have not been disbursed or written agreements entered into in the approximate amount of
$757,095 and $1,137,666.

Child Care Loan Program

The Board of Directors has approved loans at June 30, 2012 and 2011, for which funds have not been disbursed or
written agreements entered into in the approximate amount of $3,363 and $25,867.

Note 12 - Risk Management

North Dakota Development Fund is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The following are
funds/pools established by the State for risk management issues:

The 1995 legislative session established the Risk Management Fund (RMF), an internal service fund, to provide a
self-insurance vehicle for funding the liability exposures of state agencies resulting from the elimination of the
state's sovereign immunity. The RMF manages the tort liability of the state, its agencies' employees, and the
University System. All state agencies participate in the RMF and their fund contribution was determined using a
projected cost allocation approach. The statutory liability of the State is limited to a total of $250,000 per person
and $1,000,000 per occurrence.

The Corporation participates in the North Dakota Fire and Tornado Fund and the State Bonding Fund through the
policies of the North Dakota Commerce Department. The North Dakota Commerce Department pays an annual
premium to the Fire and Tornado Fund to cover property damage to personal property. Replacement cost
coverage is provided by estimating replacement cost in consultation with the Fire and Tornado Fund. The Fire and
Tornado Fund is reinsured by a third party insurance carrier for losses in excess of one million dollars per
occurrence during a 12 month period. The State Bonding Fund currently provides the Commerce Department with
blanket fidelity bond coverage in the amount of $100,000 per employee. The State Bonding Fund does not
currently charge any premium for this coverage.

The Corporation participates in the North Dakota Workforce Safety and Insurance, (WSI) an Enterprise Fund of
the State of North Dakota. WSI is a state insurance fund and a "no fault” insurance system covering the State's
employers and employees financed by premiums assessed to employers. The premiums are available for the
payment of claims to employees injured in the course of employment.

There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year and settled claims resulting
from these risks have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.



North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Combining Balance Sheets
June 30, 2012 and 2011

Regional
Rural
Development Small Business
Development Revolving Child Care Technology
Fund Loan Fund Loan Program Program 2012 2011
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,247,295 $ 4,962,446 $ 493,419 $ - $ 11,703,160 $ 4,650,365
Interest receivable on
deposits and loans 37,623 32,384 - - 70,007 73,886
Investments - - - 1,000,966 1,000,966 9,236,500
Current portion of loans receivable 2,005,523 926,119 135,507 - 3,067,149 2,603,133
Intercompany receivable (payable) (5,229) 5,229 - - - -
Total current assets 8,285,212 5,926,178 628,926 1,000,966 15,841,282 16,563,884
Noncurrent Assets
Loans receivable, net of current portion 6,951,200 2,216,744 214,200 - 9,382,144 7,841,863
Total assets $ 15,236,412 $ 8,142,922 $ 843,126 $ 1,000,966 $ 25,223,426 $ 24,405,747
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities
Accrued expenses $ 13,653 $ - $ - $ - $ 13,653 $ 13,653
Due to state - - 1,250,000 - 1,250,000 1,250,000
Total liabilities 13,653 - 1,250,000 - 1,263,653 1,263,653
Net Assets
Unrestricted 15,222,759 8,142,922 (406,874) 1,000,966 23,959,773 23,142,094
Total net assets 15,222,759 8,142,922 (406,874) 1,000,966 23,959,773 23,142,094

Total labilities and net assets $ 15,236,412 $ 8,142,922 $ 843,126 $ 1,000,966 $ 25,223,426 $ 24,405,747




North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Combining Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

Regional
Rural
Development Small Business
Development Revolving Child Care Technology
Fund Loan Fund Loan Program Program 2012 2011
Operating Revenues
Interest income on loans $ 446,117 $ 119,030 $ 19,192 $ - $ 584,339 $ 584,757
Dividend income 130,275 32,463 - - 162,738 109,128
Gain on sale of investment 8,214 - - - 8,214 93,542
Other 71,186 7,972 643 - 79,801 110,237
655,792 159,465 19,835 - 835,092 897,664
Operating Expenses
General and administrative 420,867 - - - 420,867 397,944
Depreciation expense - - - - - 843
Bad debt expense 581,342 69,830 (2,322) - 648,850 514,888
1,002,209 69,830 (2,322) - 1,069,717 913,675
Operating (Loss) Income (346,417) 89,635 22,157 - (234,625) (16,011)
Nonoperating Revenue (Expense)
Interest income on deposits
and investments 31,210 19,542 586 966 52,304 79,404
State appropriations - - - 1,000,000 1,000,000 -
31,210 19,542 586 1,000,966 1,052,304 79,404
Change in Net Assets (315,207) 109,177 22,743 1,000,966 817,679 63,393
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 15,537,966 8,033,745 (429,617) - 23,142,094 23,078,701

Net Assets, End of Year $ 15,222,759 $ 8,142,922 $ (406,874) $ 1,000,966 $ 23,959,773 $ 23,142,094




North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Combining Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

Operating Activities
Other receipts (payments)
Payments to suppliers

Net Cash (used for) Provided by
Operating Activities

Non-Capital Financing Activities
Paydown of appropriations
Proceeds from state appropriations

Net Cash (used for) Provided by
Non-Capital Financing
Activities

Investing Activities
Interest and dividends received
Purchase of equipment
Purchase of equity investments
Proceeds from the sale of
equity investments
Purchase of investments
Sale of investments
Disbursements of business loans
Principal received on business loans

Net Cash (used for) Provided by
Investing Activities

Net Change in Cash and
Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents,
Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents,
End of Year

Regional
Rural
Development Small Business
Development Revolving Child Care Technology

Fund Loan Fund Loan Program Program 2012 2011
$ 217,889 $ 7,972 $ 643 $ - $ 226,504 $ 386,666
(420,867) - - - (420,867) (447,691)
(202,978) 7,972 643 - (194,363) (61,025)
- - - - - (49,700)
- - - 1,000,000 1,000,000 -
- - - 1,000,000 1,000,000 (49,700)
481,949 170,292 19,778 966 672,985 689,407
- - - - - (843)
(991,668) - - - (991,668) (87,500)
612,764 4,454 - - 617,218 150,000
- - - (1,000,966) (1,000,966) (13,794,750)
5,947,786 3,280,500 - - 9,228,286 12,575,048
(6,283,744) (727,994) (99,078) - (7,110,816) (3,830,111)
4,182,858 554,570 94,691 - 4,832,119 2,407,911
3,949,945 3,281,822 15,391 (1,000,000) 6,247,158 (1,890,838)
3,746,967 3,289,794 16,034 - 7,052,795 (2,001,563)
2,500,328 1,672,652 477,385 - 4,650,365 6,651,928
$ 6,247,295 $ 4,962,446 $ 493,419 $ - $ 11,703,160 $ 4,650,365




North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.
Combining Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

Reconciliation of Operating
(Loss) Gain to Net Cash used in
Operating Activities
Operating (loss) gain
Adjustments to reconcile operating
(loss) gain to net cash from
operating activities
Depreciation
Increase in accounts payable
Change in intercompany
receivable (payable)
Gain on sale of investment
Allowance for doubtful
loan receivables
Allowance for realized
loss on investments
Reclassification of interest
and dividend income

Net Cash (used in) Provided by
Operating Activities

Supplemental Schedule of
Noncash Activities
Loan receivable written off
Equity investments written off

Regional
Rural
Development Small Business
Development Revolving Child Care Technology

Fund Loan Fund Loan Program Program 2012 2011
$ (346,417) % 89,635 $ 22,157 $ - $ (234,625) % (16,011)
- - - - - 843
- - - - - (49,747)
8,214 - - - 8,214 93,542
202,438 74,284 (2,322) - 274,400 577,388
378,904 (4,454) - - 374,450 (62,500)
(446,117) (151,493) (19,192) - (616,802) (604,540)
$ (202,978) $ 7972 % 643  $ - $ (194,363) $  (61,025)
$ 3,038 $ 277,509 $ - $ - $ 280,547 $ 228,327
662,324 - - 662,324 370,800
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MISSION

The Agricultural Products Utilization Commission creates

new wealth and jobs through the development of new and

expanded uses of North Dakota agricultural products.




MAP OF PROJECTS

Between November 2010 and November 2012, APUC funded 42 projects in 25

North Dakota communities, totaling over $1.6 million in grants and sponsorships.
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APUC projects by community:

* Antler —Thompson Farm * Grand Forks — Grand Forks Region

* Beach — Beach Pulses, L1.C Economic Development Corp.

* Bismarck — Carbontec Energy Corporation * Harvey Amberland Toods, Inc — Phase [
* Bismarck — Common Enterprise Development Corporation * Harvey — Amberland Foods, Inc — Phase [l
* Bismarck — The Dakota Manufacturing Extension Partnership * Jamestown — Endless Harvest

* Bismarck — North Dakota FFA Foundation * Jamestown — Jamestown/ Stutsman County
* Bottineau — Dakota College at Bottineau Jobs Development Corp.

* Bulfalo — Red Trail Vineyard * LaMoure — Northern Plains Sustainable

* Carrington — Dakota Sun Gardens Agriculture Society — Phase |

* Cogswell — Heimbuch Potatoes, LLC * Mapleton — Inven'tus, LLC

* Dickinson —Trojan Hoist Company * McKenzie — Black Leg Ranch

4 Fargo — NDSU EPA Advanced Biofuel * Minot — Crunchtuls North ®akota, LLC
* Fargo —NDSU Low Density Fiber Board * Minot— Cutbank Creck Farm

L Fargo —NDSU Nitrogen Fertilizer * New Salem StOPSGHSOY

* Fargo — NDSU Vegetables by LEP * Ross — West Dakota Feed & Seced

* Fargo — North Dakota 4-H Foundation * Stanton — Destiny Dairy

* Fargo — North DakotaTrade ®ffice * Sterling — Bessy’s Best

¢ Fargo — Northern Corn Development Corporation * Thompson — Sun Valley Container

* Fargo — Progressive Nutrient Systems * Walcott — c2renew, LLC

* Fargo — Red River Commaodities, Inc. * Walhalla — Food First, LLC

* Fargo —Ron Iverson, LLC * West Fargo — Warp Speed ‘Torque Drive

* Fargo —VEM, LLC * Williston — Williston Area Development Corp.
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ADMINISTRATION

The North Dakota Agricultural Products titilization Commission

(APUC) consists of nine members. The governor appoints five
members to two-year terms. Three of these appointees must be

actively engaged in faring and two must be actively engaged in

business. The Commiissioner of Agriculture appoints one member

to a two-year term. This member must also be actively involved in

farming, All terms begin July I.

The board also indudes three statutory members or their designees:

* Paul Lucy, Director, ND Department of Commerce,
Economic Development and [Finance Division

* Dean Bresciani, President, North Dakota State University
* Doug Gochring, Commissioncr, ND Departinent
of Agricul ture

APUC STAFF

Kerri Kralt John F. Schneider

Program Assistant Lxecutive Director



BASIC & APPLIED RESEARCH GRANTS

Basic & Applied Research Grants assist in research for processing agricultural

protlucts and by-products in North Dakota.These grants cannot be aimed at

business expansion or creation without regard to agricultural products, must
not include research that cannot reasonably be expected to result in a

marketable product, or cannot have been duplicated by other research efforts.




Dakota College at Bottineau
Holly Mawby, Bottineau

Grant Amount: § 11,200
‘lotal Budget: $ 12,200

Funds will be used to purchase a compost tea system,
compost tumblers and injection system which will then be
uscd to rescarch the cffectivencss of compost tea for nutrient

management in high tunnecl vcgclal)le production.

Food First, LLC
Robert Thornberg, Walhalla

Grant Ameunt: § 36,000
Total Budgct: S 45,000

Funds will be used to quantify the impact arabinoxylans and
other prebiotics from wheat, oats, barley and tlax have on
stimulating growth of beneficial bifidobacterium to improve
digestive health. Prebiotic benefits are being assessed for
ProBiotcin as a nutritional supplement to boost beneticial

(probiotic) bacteria in human digestive tracts.

Grand Forks Region Economic Development Corp.
Keith Lund, Grand Forks

Grant Ameunt: $ 54,350
Total Budget: $ 63,350

[unding defrayed the costs associated with the development and

completion of a regional agri-business assct and resource map,

stratcgic plan, and identifi cation of diversification opportunitics.

It includes an assessment of needed resources with required
related performance metrics or milestones for the launch of a

successful new business.

BASIC & APPLIED RESEARCH GRANTS

NDSU EPA Advanced Biofuel

Dr. Cole Gustafson, Fargo

Dept. of Agriculture & Biosystems Engineering
Grant Amount: § 61,317
Total Budget: S 73,317

Funding defrayed the cost ofhiringa research scientist to
conduct a life cyc:lc analysis of greenhouse emissions from
encrgy beet biofuel. The goal is to docuinent the energy
beet pathway to secure EPA approval an “advanced” biofuel.
This study will conduct life cycle analysis to identity optimal
feedstock locations and to minimize feedstock transport and

handling costs rclated 1o the process ol energy beet biotuel.

NDSU Low Density Fiber Board

Dr. Dilpreet Bajwa, Fargo
Dept. of Mechanical Engineering & Applied Mechanics

Grant Amount: § 24,465
Total Budget: $ 40,000

Masonite PrimeBoard, Inc. of Wahpeton currently uses wheat
straw for making fiber boards. Uncertainty of raw material
supply and increased demand for wheat straw has forced

them to explore alternative agriculture fibers. This project
will support idcntif)'ing the feasibility of using soy and corn
agriculture fibers for manufacturing existing products without
compromising the quality and durability characteristics of low
density fiber boards. The new product will be green,

cco-friendly and qualify for sustainable material credit.



BASIC & APPLIED RESEARCH GRANTS

NDSU Nitrogen Fertilizer

Dr. Cole Gustafson, Fargo

Dept. of Agriculture & Biosystems Engineering
59,960

99,460

GrantAmount: §

Total Budget:  §

Funding supported the hiring of a research scientist to conduct
a feasibility analysis of the use of flarcd gas as a feedstock to
produce a low-cost, reliable and green supply of nitrogen
fertilizer for North Dakota farmers. Commerdialization of
flared gas-based nitrogen fertilizer will spur rural development,
increase farm-level productivity and profitability, and provide

added value to agricultural crops.

NDSU Vegetables by LEP

Dr. Chiwon Lee, argo
Dept. of Plant Sciences

25,360
72,490

Grant Amount: $

Total Budget: S

Funds will be used for graduate and undergraduate student
wages (70%) plus cquipment and lab supplics (30%) to
investigate the feasibility of growing selected vegetables using
LEP (light emitting plasma) light with reduced cnergy input.

If successful, a new agricultural business may well be established
in the state by producing highly nutritious vegetables year round

for regional and national markets,

Economics of Collecting Flared Gas to Produce Nitrogen Fertilizer

NDSU Department :'_lfﬁyrfhu.s'r'nesx and Applied Economics

Flames flickering across western North Dakota’s landscape
are the result of natural gas being burned ofl to normalize
pressure at well sites, but they also represent untapped
opportunity. Since natural gas is one component to
manufacturing fertilizer, the North Dakota State Liniversity
(NDSLI) Department of Agribusiness and Applied Economics
conducted a feasibility analysis to determine how to make the
most of the state’s natural gas.

“The thinking is that we have this tremendous amount of
natural gas in western North Dakota, and we haven’t had the
opportunity to put it all to use yet,” said NDSU Associate
Professor Dr. David Saxowsky.

“A lot of fertilizer manufacturing is occurring outsidc the
LUnited States and being imported, so the question is, if
we have all this natural gas, can’t we do the manufacturing
ourselves?”

The key to the study was determining the economy of scale
for a possible fertilizer plant, In this case, bigger is better.

“We learned that small scale manufacturing of fertilizer
appears to be quite expensive. In order to pull down the
cost and be competitive, you have to do it large scale, likely
manufacturing 750,000 tons per year,” Saxowsky said.

Based on these findings, Saxowsky hopes a business plan will
follow. It’s why he appreciates the APUC funding,

“It’s so rewarding for the university and the researchers to be
working with business people who are looking for these types
of opportunities and are ready to take the next step when the
results are positive,” Saxowsky said.



FARM DIVERSIFICATION GRANT

Farm Diversification Grants give priority to projects dealing with the

diversification of a family farm to non-traditional crops, livestock, or
on-farm, value-added processing of agricultural commodities. Traditional
crops and livestock are generally defined as those that the North Dakota
Agricultural Statistics Service maintains statistics on. The project must

have the potential to create additional income for the farm unit.



FARM DIVERSIFICATION GRANT

Thompson Farm

Tracie Thompson, Antler

Grant Amount: § 5,250
lotal Budget: S 25,646

Funds allowed the construction of a hoophouse, a commerecial
vegelable processing/sterage building and the development of a
commercial vegetable operation. The Thompson Farm is already
looking at expansion opportunities and the Dakota College
Entrepreneurial Center for Horticulture wishes to promote
its success story as an Extension site for their ongoing

teaching and research.

BUILDING A HOOPHOUSE

Thompson Farm

Tracie Thompson used to spend her days behind a desk,
eight to five, working for someone else. ®@ne day she
traded in her skirts and heels for work jeans and boots
to join her husband on the farm near Antler. Now while
he’s corralling cows, she’s corralling vegetables in a

high tunnel.

“I had to research everything, and when I decided it
was something I was going to do, I just jumped in head
first,” Thompson said.

A high tunnel resembles a greenhouse, but is built out
of special grade plastic that traps 85 percent of the sun’s
UVA rays to create an extended growing environment.
Thompson is able to start planting vegetables in the
ground early in the spring and can then extend the
growing season into winter,

With the help of APUC funds, Thompson was able
to revise the design of the high tunnel and build an
additional building to house a kitchen and storage
rooms. She has grown her customer base from small

local grocery stores to include Marketplace Foods
and Cash Wise Foods.

In addition, the Dakota College Entrepreneurial Center
for Horticulture uses her garden as an extension site for
their ongoing teaching and research.

“It’s amazing how many people want to give their
families better food; they just don’t know how to go
about it,” Thompson said. “To me, teaching somebody
to do that is worth everything that I've already done.”



MARKETING & UTILIZATION GRANTS

Marketing & Utilization Grants provide necessary assistance to the research
and marketing needs of the state by developing new uses for agricultural
products and by-products, and by seeking efficient systems for processing
and marketing these products. It also is used to promote efforts that increase
productivity, provide added value to agricultural products, stimulate and

foster agricultural diversification and encourage processing innovations.

LA,
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MARKETING & UTILIZATION GRANTS

Amberland Foods, Inc. - Phase |

lami Fiest, Harvey

31,000
21,450

Grant Amount: $
Total Budget: S

Funds assisted in advertising, travel and sample products.

Amberland l'oods, Inc. will also develop marketing materials.

Amberland Foods, Inc. - Phase |l
Tami Feist, Harvey

47,000
82,000

Grant Amount: §

Total Budgct: $

Funds supportcd a website rcdcsign including programming,
SE®, placement, order pages, landing pages and outbound

mail costs [or the web. The site provides customers greater info
about the company and stimulates cross-sclling/ marketing with

successful out-of-state businesses.

Beach Pulses, LLC
Mat Chaudhey, Beach

GrantAmount: § 75,000
Total Budget:  § 2,500,000

Funds will be used to develop and implement a marketing plan
to promote North Dakota pulsc crops in multi-regional markets.
They will also assist in potentially acquiringa prominent
presence in the domestic market that is concentrated in

imported valuc-added pulscs.

Bessy's Best

Blaine Goetz, Sterling

103,282
110,709

Grant Amount: §

Total Budget: $

The grant funds will be used to pay for newspaper, radio and
billboard advertising; a permanent sign ncar the business
location; website development; and a mobile trailer for
marketing products. Additional funding was awarded to hire a

consultant to help develop a marketing and ad\'erlising plan.

c2renew, LLC
Corey Kratcha, Walcott

26,000
51,000

Grant Amount: §

Total Budget: S

Funds were used to launch production of the tirst customer
orders for biocomposites and to defray costs for meetings with

potential customers and marketing matcrial development.

Carbontec Energy Corporation
Mary Fletcher, Bismarck

Grant Amount; $

Total Budget: $

63,000
160,000

The funds will be used to conducta feasibility study on a
possible production location in Jamestown. This biobased project
would provide another use for North Dakota agricultural

biomass products and/ or biomass by-products.



Common Enterprise Development Corporation

Heidi Demars, Bismarck

GrantAmount: $ 10,500
Total Budget: s 130,000

The grant funds will be used to conduct a feasibility study and
explore the potential demand [or a consumer-driven local
foods cooperative in Bismarck-Mandan. The feasibility study
will provide the data needed in order to move forward with the
fundraising and membership eflorts of the steering committee

and subcommittecs,

Crunchfuls North Dakota, LLC
Deepa Senoy, Minot

GrantAmount: § 65,000
Total Budget: ~ § 240,000

The grant will defray the costs of travel expenscs and bar
development using North Dakota grown dry beans, peas, lentils
and chickpcas (DPLC). The DPLC bar would focus on bringing
new and nutritious foods, like healthy recovery snack bars,

in compliance with the Soldier F-ueling Initiative Program for

military subsistence,

Destiny Dairy

Ole Johnson, Stanton

GrantAmount: § 45,000
‘lotal Budget: $ 12,965

The grant will defray the costs of market testing nutrient-
rich compost [or home, retail and commercial uses, as well as
industrial and ficld applications. Funds will also be uscd for

advertising, promotions and attendance at trade shows.
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Endless Harvest

Steve Froehlich, famestown

GrantAmoumt: §

Total Budget: S

68,000
133,000

Funds will be used for hiring a controlled environment
agriculture (CAE) consulting firm which will explore funding
sources, provide representable lettuce types and educational
tours, and finalize specific design components of a proposed
facility. Lettuce grown will be uscd for developing market

prcscntation and consumecr prcf ercncces.

Heimbuch Potatoes, LLC
Chad Heimbuch, Cogswel!

Grant Amount: § 46,400
Total Budget: ~ § 225,000

Funds will be used for advanced promotion due to the
company’s increased potato and onion production, as well as
promote other product lines including additional colors of

potatoes and red and yellow onions.

Jamestown/Stutsman County Jobs Development Corp.

Connie Ova, Jamestown

GrantAmount: §

Total Budgct: $

76,000
150,000

Funds helped to defray the costs of hiring a consultant

to conduct a feasibility study of two 10-acre controlled
environment agriculture (CAE) leaflettuce production
facilities in the Jamestown area. This study showed that a CEA
facility is feasiblc and that Jamcstown is idcally positioncd on
major transportation routes. Opportunities could include
manufacturing, cducation, food processing and a CEA

knowledge center.
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North Dakota Trade Office
Dean Gorder, Iargo

42,500
122,500

GrantAmount: $

Total Budget: S

The grant will assist in the expansion of trade mission programs
by defraying the costs of additional databases for market
rescarch, Funds will also be used to purchase headsets for
multilingual translation when attending trade missions to bring

buyers of agricultural products to North Dakota.

Northern Corn Development Corporation

Tom Lilja, Fargo
GrantAmount: § 100,000
Total Budgct: $ 500,000

Funds were used to acquire professional accounting, marketing
and legal services to complete the business plan and acquire the

necessary equity to launch the enterprise.

Northern Plains Sustainable Agriculture
Society - Phase |

Karri Stroh, LaMoure
Grant Amount: § 15,566
Total Budget:  § 75,642

Funding supported outreach and relationship building with
end-users to better understand customer needs and develop a
marketing plan to meet those needs. The grant provided NPSAS
with first-hand k nowle dge on where the organic industry is
headed and what the role is within the industry. NPSAS had

the opportunity to highlight North Dakota organic products
and build awareness of the products available. The experience
provided up-to-date information on new trends and innovative

ideas and boosted thcir presence in the industry.

Progressive Nutrient Systems

Dan Ofson, Fargo

76,000
222,500

Grant Amount: §
Total Budget: S

Funds from this grant willbe used to demonstrate the technical
feasibility and the business/cconomic opportunity for a modular
distributed ammonia-based system. Analysis will also address the
system s impact on improving the economic and enviromnental

sustainability of North Dakota's corn/cthanol production,

Red River Commoaodities, Inc.

Daniel Hofland, targo
GrantAmount: § 126,000
Total Budget: ~ § 321,000

Funds were used for SunButter advertising in three major food
Imagazines, as well as development and distribution of two
press releases, two direct customer mail picces and a SunButter
ingredient marketing brochure. Funds will also help defray the

costs for attendance in upcoming food expos.



Ron Iverson, LLC

Ron Iverson, f'argo

GrantAmount: § 48,500
Total Budget: ~§ 100,000

Funds will be used to conduct a feasibility study for a cereal
plant that will manufacture regular, gluten free and organic
cereal for human consumption. Regular cercal will be
manufactured during Phase One, while the gluten free and
organic lines will be introduced during Phase Two. Products
will use North Dakota grown ingredients as much as possible,
If ingredicnts cannot be sourced locally, the company will work

with producers to grow them in the area.

West Dakota Feed & Seed

Kevin Kvamme, Ross

GrantAmount: § 40,000
Total Budget: 3 91,000

Funds will be used for attending national specialty crop
conventions to develop relationships with potential canary seed

buyers and exploring the potential canary seed tea market.

MARKETING & UTILIZATION GRANTS
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SUNBUTTER INGREDIENT MARKET LAUNCH

Red River Commodities

Created to become a new source of demand for North
Dakota’s sunflowers, SunButter has evolved into a way
to keep schools safe for allergy sufferers and enrich
other food products. Red River Commodities joined

the United States Department of Agriculture over a
decade ago to research the process of making SunButter,
and now the nut-free product is found on grocery
shelves in all major chains across the country, as well as
school cafeterias.

*“When a time came to decide whether we should
continue with SunButter or drop it as a good idea at

a bad time, the school lunch demand came along and
really kept us going,” said Dan Hofland, vice president
of marketing. “It was a key factor, and APUC played an
important part in keeping that demand going.”

APUC funds allowed SunButter to market itsclf through
brochures, print ads, webinars, and by defraying costs
for food expo attendance. The product had humble
beginnings, though. Hofland remembers filling the

back of his pickup with the product and taking it to

the grocery store’s customer service counter asking,
*Where do you want this?” when they didn’t have
distribution in place yet.

*“That’s how we got started, and once we proved
demand, then we were able to look into distribution,”

Hoftand said.

Now Red River Commodities is working to get
SunButter into industrial markets, and APUC funds are
again being used to market the product. Holland said
they are beginning to see results from those cfforts and
have high hopes for the future of SunButter,




NATURE BASED AGRITOURISM GRANTS

Nature Based AgriTourism Grants are for enterprises which seek to attract

visitors to a working farm or ranch, or any agricultural, horticultural or

agribusiness operation to enjoy, be educated or be involved in activities.

Eligible projects include but are not limited to farm or ranch tours, hands-
on chores, self-harvesting of produce, hunting operations, fishing operations

located on applicants’ land, bird watching, trail rides and corn mazes.




Black Leg Ranch
Jeremy Doan, McKenzie

11,000
24,300

Grant Amount: §

Total Budget: S

This grant assisted in the renovation of a ranch guesthouse.
'unds were used to buy windows, doors, staircase materials, loft
railing, and other improvements to the inside and outside of the
building to attract more guests. A scwer and drain field werc also
putin place. Tbis renovation allows Black Leg Ranch to house

additional people for hunting and other activities.

Cutbank Creek Farm
Peg&y Walter, Minot

Grant Amount: §$

10,500

Total Budget: $ 37,433

Funding supported the expansion of Cutbank Creck Farm,
located near Upham, to a U-Pick and larger commercial
produce garden operation. The grant will be used for marketing,
supplics and equipment for direct and wholesalc produce along

with the on-farm U-Pick.

Homesteaded in 1882, the Black Leg Ranch boasts a

true cowboy experience for tourists and history buffs
alike. Located near Sterling, the ranch provides hunting,
fishing and horseback riding activities along with a newly
renovated lodge. An APUC grant helped defray the costs of
improvements, including a bar and commerecial kitchen.

“This was a big, major project,” said owner Jeremy Doan.
“There is so much craftsmanship in this lodge, inside and
out.There’s a huge deck that wraps around it, a grand
entrance, and private rooms, and even a honeymoon suite
with a Jacuzzi.”

NATURE BASED AGRITOURISM GRANTS
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Dakota Sun Gardens

Bruce and Merleen Gussiaas, Carrington

10,500
20,000

Grant Amount: §

Total Budget: 3

The grant helped defray the costs of marketing the gardens
and winery. Funds also assisted in the building of another yard
attraction, supporting various plant materials and the purchase

of a berry variety for a unique wine production.

Red Trail Vineyard
Rodney Hogen, B(_sza/o

Grant Amount: § 4,725

Total Budget:  § 6,692

Funds were used to advance promotion of the vineyard through
the use of social media. This project helps inform new and
existing customers of special events, new products and in-house

specials throughout the year.

As a lifth generation ranch, guests often ask to view
pictures, talk to the family, and dive into the farmstead’s
history. Doan said since the ranch preceded North Dakota
statehood, and contains the remains of the ghost town of
Brittin, it has gained international appeal.

“We recently started the agritourism aspect, and it’s finally
taking effect. It’s been a slow process, growing that side,”
Doan said.



PROTOTYPE DEVELOPMENT & TECHNOLOGY GRANTS

APUC provides grants in two areas of agricultural innovations: Prototype
Development & Technology Grants. A huge array of equipment can be useful

in conducting business in rural living and agricultural economics. Prototype
Grants are restricted to inventions improving the operations of food processing
equipment and agricultural equipment.Technology Grants are to encourage
innovation and APUC maintains a broad view of technology, such as hardware,
software, devices or processes. Biotechnology will be considered as long as those

advances improve agricultural product utilization as food, feeds, fuels and fiber.




InvenTus, LL1C

Norm Miller, Mapleton
Grant Amount: § 26,000
Total Budget: s 122,000

Funds will be used to complete the clectronics and supply
portion of the prototype Hydro-Pack for a fuel economy cell to
be mounted with gas or diescl engines to conserve 30 percent
in fuel usage. Along with fuel conservation, the emissions arc
reduced accordingly. Commercialization will be done through

adealcr network,

StopSensor
Larry Mosbrucker, New Salem

GrantAmount: $ 25,000

‘lotal Budget: 5§ 53,300

Funds will help bring StopSensor to market with the production
of 15 prototype devices and related accessories to be used in
field tests and product demonstrations. These units will be
tested in a variety of agricultural applications from small farm
operations to agronomy centers. i'unds will also be used to
obtain a patent and to implement refinements to StopSensor’s

design based on field test results.

Sun Valley Container

Dan Hanson, Thompson

25,000
78,359

Grant Ameunt: §

Total Budget: 3

[Funds will be used for product design and prototype testing.
They will also be used for attorney and patent fees necessary

to obtain a patent statc-of-the-art plastic sugar container.

PROTOTYPE DEVELOPMENT & TECHNOLOGY GRANTS
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Trojan Hoist Company

Scott Thompson, Dickinson

25,000
60,000

GrantAmount: §

Total Budg et: $

The grant will assist in the development of a portable crane
system suited for agriculture uses. The project will include
presentations Lo prospective customers, devel opment of
mounting adapters, crane test samples and other refmements

based on customer feedback.

VEM, LLC
Ryan Raguse, Fargo

GrantAmount: § 28,500

Total Budget: $ 200,000

Funds will assist with prototype development, such as parts,
wages for seftware development, alpha/beta testing, patent/
trademark rescarch and patent applications far a mobile

application for autosteer technol ogy.

Warp Speed Torque Drive

Ernie Brookins, West Fargo

26,000
71,000

GrantAmount: $§

Total Budget: S

Funds will help finalize a production model of a hybrid drive
system retrotfit kit for an Allison transmission and advance it

from the prototype phase to the production model.
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PROTOTYPE DEVELOPMENT & TECHNOLOGY GRANTS

StopSensor is a device to help machinery or truck drivers
properly align their equipment in order to avoid missing the
mark when dumping grain, oil, cement or sand. As a farmer,
StopSensor inventor Larry Mosbrucker understood the
hassles and safety issues of repeatedly checking positioning
or needing a spotter.

“I knew there had to be a better way so a person doesn’t
have to jump in and out of the truck all the time to check
your positioning,” Mosbrucker said. “I had this problem my
wholelife in farming, and then it just clicked. But I knew the
product had to be something simple, not complicated ”

StopSensor was warmly welcomed in agriculture circles, and
is now ﬁnding success within the oil industry. Maosbrucker

was able to produce 15 prototype devices with APUC funds,
and he feels the product has potential to make a huge impact.

“It’s a big safety thing,” Mosbrucker said. “To talk to the safety
guys for the oil companies really was powerful. They really
thought this could be something.”

Rail representatives have also encouraged Mosbrucker
to design StopSensor for trains to load oil or other cargo
more efficiently.

“They have to stop and start 300 times per train,” Mosbrucker
said. “If I could build something to put them into the right
spot all the time, that would be incredible. That market is
gigantic, and what about all the other commodities with
trains? | mean, the sky’s the limit.”



SPONSORSHIPS

North Dakota 4-H Foundation
_M)/Iie Lavold, Fargo

$1,000 Sponsorship

APUC sponsored the 4-H Judging Contests program, which
helps educatc kids in effectively judging factors ranging from
traditional crops and land, beef and dairy to new initiatives

in science.

North Dakota FFA Foundation
Beth Bakke Stenhjem, Bismarck

$1,000 Sponsorship

APUC has been a 20-plus year sponsor to the National FFA
Organization (for merly Future Farmers of America) Proficiency

Award for Value-Added Food Processing.

Last year, the North Bakota 4-H Foundation budgeted over
$100,000 in direct program support for 4-H programs

in North Dakota, ranging from traditional crops and land
judging to new initiatives in science, such as robotics. The
organization relies on donors and sponsors to fund the
programs, and while many designate their gift to a particular
curriculum, unrestricted funds like those APUC provides

helps fill the gaps to meet the budget.

4.H enrolls over 5,000 members in traditional clubs and
reaches around 20,000 kids with short term programs like
camps or Science Day projects. North Dakota 4-H was
included in a recent study conducted by Tufts University
that evaluated the impact of community-based programs on
positive youth development, The study showed kids involved
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North Dakota FFA Foundation
Beth Bakke Stenhjem, Bismarck

$1,000 Sponsorship

APUC sponsored the Ag Processing Proficiency awards and
travel stipends for the proficiency {inalists to attend the National

FFA Convention held in Indianapolis, [N.

Williston Area Development Corp.

Ann Kvande, Williston

$1,000 Sponsorship

APUC hc]pc:d sponsor a showease event that focuses on
improving the economic and environmental performance of

agriculture in the Mon-Dak region.

in a program such as 4-H are more likely to avoid risky
behaviors such as drugs, drinking, smoking and bullying and
are more likely to graduate, attend college and give back to
their communities.

“The study showed kids in these programs have a heightened
sense of community awareness and citizenship, so within the
programs the life skills are happening, but there’s all this
other positive youth development that's happenirg,” My lie
Lavold, development director of the North Dakota 4-H
Foundation, said. “So every gift that we get helps us deliver
those things and impacts the kids, and that in turn comes
back and impacts our communities.”
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TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE GRANT

TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE GRANT

‘fechnical Assistance Grants are designed to maintain and expand
North Dakota's existing value-added busincsses. The grants are
intended to help busincsscs become more competitive, productive
and profitable. An eligible candidate for this grant is an existing
company located, operating and registercd in North Dakota that
adds value to agricultural products, including food manufacturers

and beverage manufacturers.

The Dakota Manufacturing Extension Partnership

Rand/v Schwartz, Bismarck

Grant Total ; 3
Total Budgct: s

35,529
52,835

Funds will be used for consultant and expert fees, travel,
materials, facilities, Mcrwyn concept testing for the companics,
and fiscal agent fees. The pilot project, [nnovation Engineering
Management System, assists three APUC qualified companies
(<50 cmployccs) to accclerate existing idcas and projects to
implementation and commercialization. It also works to create
meaningtul, unique ideas to grow the business with new and

current customers.

INNOVATING FOR AGRICULTURAL PRODUCT GROWTH

The Dakota Manufacturing Extension Partnership

The Dakota Manufacturing Extension Partnership
(MEP) has joined a national network to pilot the
Innovative Engineering Management System. It allows
established companies, including three APUC-qualified
companies, to get beyond traditional barriers and allow
their creative juices to flow again.

“With the support of APUC, we can get companies
exposed to how to create and implement ideas that are
meaningful and unique to the marketplace,” said MEP
director Randy Schwartz. “Most companies don’t have a
system or process in place to do this.”

Schwartz said 40 percent of companies are reactive,
while only 15 percent are proactive. The goal of
Dakota MEP is to reverse that trend,

“Ideally we’re trying to tell companies to become
proactive and less reactive in terms of how they create
ideas and how they engage and empower people to
move ideas forward,” Schwartz said. “It takes about
two years to fully implement this, This is designed for
companies that are going to continue to grow, invest
and develop their people.”

Dakota MEP has a successful track record, generating
companies an average of $ [.4 million in benefits and
impacts. In the second quarter of 2012, Dakota MEP
teamed with eight companies in which benefits and
impacts averaged almost $2 million per project.

“That’s what makes us a lot different than other
programs in that the size of the companies we're
working with can generate those kinds of benefits and
impacts,” Schwartz said. “It’s quite a bit different than
what a startup or relatively small company could do.”
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FUNDING SOURCES
$1,701,483
$1,518,859
$738,284
$300,000
General Funds Gas Tax Refund Federal Grants Authority Carry-Over Authority

APUC’s appropriation for the 201 1-201 3 biennium totaled §4,258,626 and was provided from the following sources:

* Up to $738,284 was authorized to be collected from the Agricultural Fuel Tax Fund, funded by a $.02 “check-of f”

of tarmers’ off-road gas tax refunds.
* $1,701,483 was appropriated dircctly from the state gencral fund.

* At the beginning of the biennium an additional $1,518,859 was authorized as carry-over authority from the

previous biennium.

Financials as of September 30, 2012

Expenditures Budgeted
Salaries & Benefits $ 183,964 $ 290,989
Operating Expenses $ 40,518 $ 96,790
Grant Commitments * $ 812,620 $ 3,870,847
Total Expenditures $1,037,102 $4,258,626

Remaining Appropriation: $3,221,524

* Includes C arry-Over Commitment
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—— State of

North Dakota

Office of the Governor

Jack Dalrymple

Governor

North Dakota’s Centers of Excellence and Centers of Research Excellence are
partnering with our research institutions and private sector companies to generate
jobs and new business opportunities.

The Centers program is one based on partnerships. It seeks to build on the
intellectual resources, high-tech equipment and training capacities of our colleges
and universities by allowing the private sector access to these valuable assets.
Currently, 115 companies have formed partnerships with the Centers of Excellence and
Centers of Research Excellence. These partnerships have leveraged $190 million of
matching funds for the state’s investment of $52.4 million in the Centers.

Overall, the Centers program has had an economic impact of $634.6 million since its
creation in 2005. As of June 30, 2012, the Centers program has produced over $14 in
economic impact for every $1 of state funds invested since their creation according
to a 2012 North Dakota State University study.

The Centers program and its partners generate results, having created over 1,080
direct jobs and an estimated payroll over $69.2 million.

North Dakota must continue to aggressively pursue research in our state’s target
industries. The Centers of Excellence and Research Excellence are key factors in
helping private sector businesses uncover promising new opportunities to keep
North Dakota’s economy growing and prosperous for future generations.

Sincerely,

Dby ryole-

Jack Dalrymple
Governor
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L. INTRODUCTION
The Centers of Excellence & Research Excellence are hubs of research and
development on the campuses of North Dakota’s colleges and universities,

partnering with private companies to commercialize new products and

services. The Centers explore research in the fields of energy, agriculture,

life sciences, aerospace, manufacturing and electronics.




ECONOMIC IMPACT

The Centers of Excellence program has
had $635 million in estimated total

economic impact to North Dakota’s economy.

This includes a direct impact of $216 million
generated by the Centers, grant recipients
and their partners.

ECONOMIC IMPACT

$635,000,000
Total impact

I
$216,000,000

Direct impact

$44,100,000
Award fundjs spent

$600 m

$400 m

$0 $200 m

$800m

FUNDS INVESTED
TO DATE

Since the first Centers of Excellence were
approved by the State Legislature in 2003,
a total of $69.9 million of state funds have
been invested in 25 Centers of Excellence

& Research Excellence and an additional

16 research, infrastructure and economic
development projects. Of these funds,
$44.1 million has been spent by the Centers
and grant recipients as of June 30, 2012.

CENTERS OF EXCELLENCE INVESTMENT
$69.9 million awarded through June 30, 2012

$17,482,817
Awaiting Disbursement

$8,313,779
Disbursed $44,134,504
(not Spent) Spent

The Centers of Excellence Program has contributed to the creation or expansion of
24 businesses. This includes nine new spinoff companies, ten companies that expanded to
North Dakota, and five North Dakota companies that have expanded within the state.
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MATCHING FUNDS

As of June 30, 2012 the Centers and grant
recipients have obtained over $189 million
of matching and leveraged funds. When
comparing matching and leveraged funds
received to award funds spent, a ratio better
than 4:1 is realized.

MATCHING & LEVERAGED
FUNDS RECEIVED

$116.2m

$90 m

$60m

$30m

Cash Cash In-Kind
Reserve

$100 m $95.3m _$94.6 m

$80m

$60m

$40m

$20m

Private Non- State
Private

JOBS IMPACTED

Centers and grant recipients impact
North Dakota jobs in several ways:

1) Jobs are created at the Centers themselves;

2) Private sector partners create new jobs as
a result of their projects with a Center; and

3) Centers facilitate job growth by providing
workforce training.

533
Jobs impacted
by Training
470
Private
Sector Jobs
79
Jobs created
at Centers

As of June 30, 2012, Centers, grant recipients
and their partners have created or contributed
to the creation of 1,082 jobs at an estimated
annual payroll of $69.2 million.

In FY12 the Williston State College
Petroleum Safety and Technology
Center provided training to over 6,900
individuals (duplicated count) for 338
oil and gas companies operating in
North Dakota.
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The following pages detail new awards approved in Fiscal Year 2012.

For details on previously approved Centers of Excellence and Centers of

Excellence Enhancement Grants, visit www.NDCentersOfExcellence.com.




CENTERS OF EXCELLENCE COMMISSION MEMBERS

The Centers of Excellence Commission oversees the selection process and administration of
Centers of Excellence, Centers of Excellence Enhancement Grants, Centers of Research Excellence,
Base Realignment Grants, and Limited Deployment Cooperative Airspace Projects (LDCAP).

The Centers of Excellence Commission, with assistance from the North Dakota Department of
Commerce, oversees the post-award monitoring of all Centers and grant recipients. The process
includes quarterly updates, site visits, third-party audits and an in-depth annual review of each
award. All grant recipients are required to complete at least six years of post-award monitoring.

One objective of the post-award monitoring activities is to measure the progress of an award
against the results proposed in its respective application for funding. Another objective of the
post-award monitoring activities is to ensure grant recipients are spending award funds in
compliance within the scope of their project and in accordance with program requirements.
Centers and grant recipients that demonstrate progress and compliance with program
requirements are funded in stages according to their respective Centers of Excellence
Commission-approved budget.

North Dakota Economic Development
Foundation Members

A. Mark Nisbet, Chairman
North Dakota Principal Manager
Xcel Energy, Fargo

B. Tim Hennessy, Vice Chairman
Regional President
US Bank, Bismarck

C. Jim Traynor
Director of Client/Channel Management
Intelligent InSites, Fargo

State Board of Higher Education Members

D. Duaine Espegard
Retired Regional President
Bremer Bank, Grand Forks

E. Terry Hjelmstad
Retired School Administrator
Minot Public Schools, Grand Forks

F. Don Morton
Senior Director
Microsoft, Fargo
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Centers of Research Excellence

Beginning in 2011, the Centers of Excellence program sharpened its focus on research, development and
commercialization activities. The program was retitled Centers of Research Excellence and is now only
accessible by the University of North Dakota, North Dakota State University or related non-profit
foundations working in partnership with the private sector.

Although many of the criteria for approval are similar, a significant change was made to the matching
funds requirements. Under Centers of Research Excellence, a Center must obtain $2 of matching
funds for every $1 of state funds. Of the $2 of matching funds, at least one dollar must be cash, of
which at least fifty cents must be from the private sector. The 2011 Legislature allocated $5 million for
new Centers of Research Excellence. Centers and grant recipients that demonstrate progress and
compliance with program requirements are funded in stages according to their respective Centers of
Excellence Commission-approved budget. All numbers reflected in this report are as of June 30, 2012.

As of June 30, 2012 the Centers of Excellence Commission has approved two new Centers.
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Center for Technologically Innovative Processes and Products
North Dakota State University

Launch Date: August 2012  Award: $320,000 Matching & Leveraged Funds: $0

The Center will collaborate with private sector partners to perform research and development focused
on key stages of product development and production. The research and development activities are
aimed at identifying new materials and process that will generate higher quality, lower production
costs and improved profit margins. These outcomes may lead to new or improved products, new
markets and new technologies for future product development.

Center for Life Sciences Research and Applications
North Dakota State University

Launch Date: November 2012 Award: $1.35 million Matching & Leveraged Funds: $0

The Center will partner with Sanford Health to perform human genomics and bioinformatics
research focused initially on breast cancer, behavioral genetics and certain rare diseases in
children. The Center will also collaborate with other partners to research DNA-based forensics
and other DNA-based applications.

The potential outcomes of the Center’s research may be creation, development and testing/evaluation

of new diagnostics, treatments and related healthcare services that have commercial potential in
North Dakota and elsewhere.
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Base Realignment Grants

The 2011 Legislature allocated $3 million for Base Realignment Grants which are to be used for
infrastructure and economic development projects or programs to accommodate growth in proximity
to, or at, the Grand Forks Air Force Base. As of June 30, 2012 the Centers of Excellence Commission
has approved five Base Realignment Grants.

Global Hawk Sensor Operator Part Task Trainer
University of North Dakota

Launch Date: December 2011  Award: $878,204 Matching & Leveraged Funds: $9.787 million

This project teams the University of North Dakota Unmanned Aircraft Systems (UAS) Center of
Excellence with Northrop Grumman Corporation on the development of a training simulator prototype
for Global Hawk Block 40 sensor operators. This project also includes development of a business
capture plan and an unsolicited proposal to the U.S. Air Force to establish a Global Hawk Block 40
training program in Grand Forks. The proposed training program is expected to increase the number of
sensor operators trained and provide significant cost avoidance for the U.S. Air Force.

The Global Hawk is a high altitude long endurance UAS used for surveillance and as a communications
relay. The Grand Forks Air Force Base has been designated by the U.S. Air Force as the main operating
base for the Block 40 version of the Global Hawk. Six Global Hawk Block 40 aircraft are currently
based out of Grand Forks, with that number expected to grow to eleven.
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Integrating UAS into the National Airspace, Phase II
University of North Dakota

Launch Date: December 2011  Award: $255,440 Matching & Leveraged Funds: $151,000

This grant continues funding for an effort to position North Dakota as the prime location to research,
develop and deploy UAS, as well as accelerate UAS integration into the national airspace. An Airspace
Integration Team of North Dakota aviation professionals and experts was formed to facilitate these
efforts, initially focusing on the development of an unsolicited proposal to the Federal Aviation
Administration (FAA) to establish a UAS test site in North Dakota. The proposed test site would provide
a place for industry to research, develop and deploy UAS while demonstrating that UAS can operate
safely in the national airspace. The Airspace Integration Team has transitioned its efforts toward
answering a solicited request by the FAA for applications for National Test Sites.

Currently, UAS usage is dominated by military applications occurring in other parts of the world.
However, there is broad potential for civilian applications should the FAA approve their usage in
the national airspace. UAS is estimated to be a multi-billion dollar industry.

Joint Distributed Common Ground System
University of North Dakota Center for Innovation Foundation

Launch Date: December 2011  Award: $125,706  Matching & Leveraged Funds: $46,000

This grant provided funding for a study examining the feasibility of establishing a joint Distributed
Common Ground Station (DCGS) at the Grand Forks Air Force Base. A DCGS is a large, secure facility
where data from manned and unmanned aircraft are analyzed for various intelligence purposes. Other
opportunities such as establishing training and maintenance facilities at the Grand Forks Air Force
Base were also explored under the study. The overarching goal of the study was to identify promising
initiatives that align with Air Force needs that also provide cost savings and bolster activity at the
Grand Forks Air Force Base.

The University of North Dakota UAS Center of Excellence opened a MQ-1/9 UAS
Training Center at the Grand Forks Air Force Base in August 2011. The training
center will be used to train instructors, pilots and sensor operators for both civil and
military customers. Customs and Border Patrol is currently using the program for
recurrent pilot training.
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Enhanced Use Lease for Grand Forks Air Force Base
University of North Dakota Center for Innovation Foundation

Launch Date: August 2012  Award: $486,750 Matching & Leveraged Funds: $0

This grant provides funding to advance opportunities identified in the “Joint Distributed Common
Ground System” feasibility study by submitting an Enhanced Use Lease application to the U.S. Air
Force. If the application is approved, the U.S. Air Force and Grand Forks County will enter into
negotiations for an Enhanced Use Lease at the Grand Forks Air Force Base.

Obtaining an Enhanced Use Lease would allow Grand Forks County to begin development activities on
approximately 200 acres of underutilized land at the Grand Forks Air Force Base, which could include
training and maintenance facilities as part of a UAS business park at the Grand Forks Air Force Base.
This base realignment grant provides funding for the Enhanced Use Lease application process as well
as the negotiation process, should the U.S. Air Force approve the initial application.

Airspace Integration Team UAS National Test Site Application
University of North Dakota

Launch Date: November 2012 Award: $500,000 Matching & Leveraged Funds: $0

Congressional language in a defense spending bill and the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA)
Reauthorization bill require the FAA to create six UAS test sites in the United States. The test sites will
provide a controlled environment where limited integration of UAS into the national airspace will occur.
The six test sites will serve as a blueprint for full integration of UAS into the national airspace.

In addition to providing considerable scientific benefits, the six national test sites are sure to become
economic engines that attract significant private sector activity. The UAS industry is estimated to be a
multi-billion dollar annual industry. As a result of the Congressional action, North Dakota’s Airspace
Integration Team has refocused its efforts on successfully navigating the formal selection process
administered by the FAA. The Airspace Integration Team will remain committed to establishing a
compelling case for North Dakota as a national test site, and this grant provides funding to facilitate
those efforts.
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Limited Deployment Cooperative Airspace Project

Unmanned Aircraft Systems (UAS) have had a tremendous impact on U.S. military strategy and
operations. There is also vast potential for UAS applications in civilian industries such as energy and
agriculture. Before UAS can be fully integrated into the national airspace for civilian usage, it must be
demonstrated that UAS can operate safely and in harmony with other aircraft in the national airspace.

The 2011 Legislature allocated $4 million for Limited Deployment Cooperative Airspace Projects
(LDCAP) that bring the University of North Dakota and North Dakota State University together in
partnership with MITRE, the research arm of the Federal Aviation Administration; NASA-Langley
Research Center; Draper Laboratory; the North Dakota National Guard; and Appareo Systems. As of
June 30, 2012 the Centers of Excellence Commission has approved two projects.

The goals of LDCAP include establishing a controlled experimental environment where live field tests

may be performed and evaluated. The data generated from the field tests will be used to identify and
address critical safety concerns regarding the full integration of UAS into the national airspace.
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Limited Deployment Cooperative Airspace Project
University of North Dakota

Launch Date: October 2011  Award: $2.7 million Matching & Leveraged Funds: $3.2 million

The University of North Dakota is collaborating with MITRE, NASA-Langley, Draper Laboratory and the
North Dakota National Guard to investigate the viability of Automatic Dependent Surveillance-Broadcast
(ADS-B) “sense and avoid” capability for UAS. The ability of a UAS to “sense and avoid” other aircraft is
a critical safety concern. ADS-B technology allows an aircraft, manned or unmanned, to broadcast
essential information about its location and to gather similar data from other nearby aircraft, allowing
pilots to make necessary adjustments to safely avoid other air traffic.

The University of North Dakota and its collaborators are also testing whether radar data can be used to
feed Traffic Information Service-Broadcast (TIS-B), which provides “ADS-B-like” surveillance for aircraft
not equipped with ADS-B technology.

Automatic Dependent Surveillance-Broadcast Miniaturization Program
North Dakota State University

Launch Date: November 2011 Award: $1.3 million Matching & Leveraged Funds: $2.424 million

North Dakota State University is collaborating with Appareo Systems to research and design a
miniaturized radio chip that uses ADS-B technology to broadcast an aircraft’s GPS position, altitude
and other relevant information to air traffic control and other aircraft. The availability and utilization
of this data is expected to enhance safe operations of all aircraft, manned and unmanned, in the
national airspace.

The radio chip under development by North Dakota State University and Appareo will offer reduced
power consumption, weight and cost as compared to current commercially available ADS-B radio chips.
These advancements increase the viability of broad implementation of ADS-B technology as part of a larger
strategy allowing for the eventual full integration of UAS into the national airspace.

“LDCAP is an extremely valuable test which addresses research questions

surrounding ADS-B and ground-based radars as a sense and avoid capability.”
- Frank Jones, NASA-Langley Research Center
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PROGRAM PARTNERS

AAG, Inc.

Access Energy, LLC

Aerosim

Agri ImaGIS

Akzo-Nobel Aerospace Coatings
Aldevron

Alliance Pipeline, Inc.

Altravax

Appareo Systems, LLC

Arkema, Inc.

Ashland, Inc.

Avenue Right

Avianax, LLC

Basin Electric Power Cooperative
Bayer Material Science
BenchMark Energy

Bobcat Company

Boeing

Boldmethod

BOSH Global Services

Catalyst Clincial Research, LLC
Caterpillar Remanufacturing Drivetrain
Clear Springs

Clinical Supplies Management
CombDel Innovations

Computer Modeling Group

Connecticut Center for
Advanced Technology

Continental Resources, Inc.
Corsair Engineering
CorsiTech

Crew Training International
Cutbank Creek Produce
Denbury, Inc.

DenYon Energy

Elinor Specialty Coatings
Eltron Research & Development, Inc.
FARRMS

Fisher & Associates

General Atomics Aeronautical Systems

General Dynamics

General Electric

GeoOptics, Inc.

Goodrich

Great Northern Power Development
Great Point Energy

Headwaters/Great River Energy-Blue
Flint Ethanol

Hess Corporation

High Plains Equipment

Impact Foundation

Infinity Development Partners, LLC
InnerGeo, LLC

Insitu, Inc.

IntegenX

Intraglobal Biologics, Inc.

Jeffrey Donohoe Associates, LLC
KBR, Inc.

Killdeer Mountain Manufacturing
Krisara Engineering

Kuraray Chemicals, Americas

L-3 Communications

LM Wind Power

Lockheed Martin

Marathon Oil Corp.

MaxWest Environmental Systems, Inc.
MDU

Merlin RAMCo, Inc.

Monsanto

Navigator Development Group, Inc.
Next Healthcare, Inc.

Nissan Chemical America Corp.
North Dakota Biodiesel

North Dakota Farmers Market &
Growers Association

North Star Organic Farms
Northrup Grumman Corporation
Novadigm Therapeutics
Operational Security Services, Inc.

Pedigree Technologies
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Poudre Valley Environmental Sciences, Inc.
PPG Industries

Pratt & Whitney Rocketdyne, Inc.
Praxis Strategy Group

Presco, LLC

Rapid Engines

ReconRobotics

Red Trail Energy

Riverbound Farm

Rockwell Collins

Schiltz Goose Farms, North, Inc.

SDS International, Inc.

SeaTec, LLC

SGC Energia

Shell Chemicals

Simlat

Somahlution

SpaceAge Synthetics

Spiritwood Station

St. Mary Land and Exploration Company
Starkey Laboratories, Inc.

Superior Edge

Technology Applications Group
Tesoro

Thompson Farm

TIORCO

Tri-State Aviation

Triton Systems, Inc.

United States Automotive Partnership
United Technologies Research Center
Unmanned Applications Institute Int'l.
URS Corporation

V2 Aerospace, Inc.

Western Research Institute

Whiting Petroleum Corp.

Wholesale Supply Company, Inc.
Wynntryst, LLC

Xcel Energy



University, College Launch Awards Match & Leveraged Funds

Centers of Excellence or related Foundation Date (in millions) Received (in millions)
Center for Innovation UND Jan 2005 $0.800 $3.565
Center for Advanced Electronics Design & Manufacturing NDSU Feb 2006 $3.000 $14.005
Dakota Precision Ag Center LRSC Feb 2006 $0.850 $1.890
National Center for Hydrogen Technology UND EERC Feb 2006 $2.500 $58.606
National Energy Center of Excellence BSC Feb 2006 $3.000 $7.292
Center for Surface Protection NDSU May 2006 $4.000 $8.682
Center of Excellence for Agbiotechnology: Oilseed Development NDSU May 2006 $3.500 $12.000
Enterprise University* VCSU May 2006 $1.000 $5.140
Petroleum Safety & Technology Center WSC May 2006 $0.400 $1.183
Unmanned Aircraft Systems Center of Excellence UND May 2006 $2.500 $15.838
Institute for Technology & Business gsrl]JteSrtrom Oct 2006 $1.150 $5.179
Center of Excellence in Life Sciences & Advanced Technologies UNDRF March 2007 $3.500 $4.005
Technology Incubator NDSU March 2007 $1.250 $5.038
Beef Systems Center of Excellence NDSU Oct 2007 $0.800 $2.000
Center for Biopharmaceutical Research & Production NDSU June 2009 $5.015 $6.262
Center for Integrated Electronics Systems NDSU June 2009 $2.050 $3.510
Center of Excellence for Passive Therapeutics UNDRF June 2009 $2.650 $6.554
Center of Excellence in Space Technology & Operations UND June 2009 $1.000 $0.165
Petroleum Research, Education & Entrepreneurship Center UND June 2009 $3.000 $6.604
SUNRISE BioProducts Center of Excellence UND June 2009 $2.950 $3.854
Center for Sensors, Communications & Control NDSU Jan 2011 $2.800 $0.014
Entrepreneurial Center for Horticulture DCB June 2011 $0.400 $0.915
Center for Advanced Technology Development and Commercialization NDSU Nov 2012 $3.900 $0.000
Enhancement Grants
Center for UAS Research Education & Training UND June 2010 $2.754 $1.358
Research 1 Expansion NDSU Jan 2011 $4.000 $0.293
North Dakota UAS Airspace Initiative UND March 2011 $0.100 $0.007
UAS Software & Curriculum Development UND March 2011 $0.600 $0.193
Certificate Programs for Full Motion Video UND Center
& Activity-Based Intelligence Analysis for Innovation gt i U
Grand Forks Air Force Base Realignment Business Transition Program UND June 2011 $0.200 $0.055
Materials & Nanotechnology Center NDSU Sept 2011 $1.000 $0.000
V2 Aerospace, Inc. Technical Assistance UND Center Sept 2011 $0.370 $0.103
for Innovation
Law Enforcement and Public Safety Agency Small UAS Course UND May 2012 $0.230 $0.048
Centers of Research Excellence
Center for Technologically Innovative Processes & Products NDSU Aug 2012 $0.320 $0.000
Center for Life Sciences Research & Applications NDSU Nov 2012 $1.350 $0.000
Base Realignhment Grants
Integrating UAS into the National Airspace, Phase I UND Dec 2011 $0.255 $0.151
Global Hawk Sensor Operator Part Task Trainer UND Dec 2011 $0.878 $9.787
Joint Distributed Common Ground System UND Dec 2011 $0.126 $0.046
Enhanced Use Lease for Grand Forks Air Force Base UND Aug 2012 $0.487 $0.000
Airspace Integration Team UAS National Test Site Application Proposal UND Nov 2012 $0.500 $0.000
Limited Deployment Cooperative Airspace Project
Limited Deployment Cooperative Airspace Project UND Oct 2011 $2.700 $3.200
Automatic Dependent Surveillance-Broadcast Miniaturization Program NDSU Nov 2011 $1.300 $2.424
GRAND TOTALS $69.931 $189.991

*Enterprise University concluded its operations and returned $200,545.51 of its original $1 million Centers of Excellence Award to the North Dakota general fund.
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